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20 0.10%( )
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®
0.45 10
0.40 10 0.35
5,000 0.25 5,000
0.20 0.15
0.02
0.23 10
0.28 10 0.33
(
)
( )
2020 116,374.31
64,652.36 59,565.24 5,172.30
Q)
) () )
)

2020 214.39 4,154.07

75/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020

@
€)

(€))
20.315 ( 15.315 )(2038 20 ( 15
)

* (
) 15.315

) ) (2038
15 )
®)

( ( )
) 20.315 ( 15.315 )(2038

20 ( 15 )

©) ®

Q)

)

76/388



€Y)
@

®

4)

®)

©)

)

(

)

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20.315 ( 15.315 (2038 20 ( 15
) )
( )
(
) 15.315
( )
(2038 15 )
20.315 ( 15.315
(2038 20 ( 15 5 ))
®)

77/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(B)
( )
(
)
1972
FATCA
FFI FATCA
1GA
1GA
1GA FFI FFI
FFI
FI
1GA FFI
1GA 1GA 1GA 1GA
HMRC
1GA 1GA CRS

78/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

OECD
CRS
OECD
2014 10 29
CRS CRS
MCAA 60
2016 CRS
@
HMRC
@
(©)) HMRC
(O] HMRC

) FATCA

79/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

®)
FATCA
(7) FATCA 1GA CRS
(8) FATCA
FATCA 1GA
1GA

FATCA FATCA

80/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

©

10

81/388



183

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

30

82/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FATCA

30

30

FATCA

83/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y) @

©)

84/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
(2020 )
( ) (D)
2,181 8.48
1,699 6.60
1,159 4.50
968 3.76
905 3.52
637 2.48
580 2.25
494 1.92
399 1.55
396 1.54
339 1.32
307 1.19
298 1.16
293 1.14
153 0.59
101 0.39
100 0.39
98 0.38
( 97 0.38
11,204 43.54
3,530 13.72
2,691 10.46
1,526 5.93
862 3.35
703 2.73
279 1.08
203 0.79
158 0.61
148 0.58
134 0.52
101 0.39
94 0.37
88 0.34
10,517 40.87
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( ) (@)

2,477 9.63
922 3.58
124 0.48

84 0.33
28 0.11

3,635 14.13
152 0.59
126 0.49
100 0.39

83 0.32
38 0.15
12 0.05
511 1.99

1,320 5.13

153 0.59
89 0.35
50 0.19
10 0.04

2 0.01
1 0.00
1 0.00

1,626 6.32

4,400 17.10
497 1.93
172 0.67

-210 -0.82
32,352 125.72
-6,619 -25.72
25,733 100.00
( 3,229 )

(

)
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)
(2020 )
() C > C |,

Fannie Mae, TBA 3.500 | 2050 1,999,825 [ 2,100,000 1,989,167 | 7.73
Spain Government Bond 0.250 | 2024 30 1,524,807 | 1,500,000 1,525,959 | 5.93
Spain Government Bond 1.400 | 2028 30 1,455,162 | 1,385,000 1,505,016 | 5.85
Fannie Mae, TBA 3.000 | 2050 1,349,856 | 1,400,000 1,318,545 | 5.12
Nykredit Realkredit A/S 1.000 2050 10 1,065,324 | 8,075,524 1,059,383 | 4.12
Stadshypotek AB 2.000 | 2028 943,001 | 9,000,000 952,790 | 3.70
United Kingdom Gilt 3.250 [ 2044 22 695,168 495,000 872,469 | 3.39
United Kingdom Gilt 0.625 | 2025 899,494 750,000 860,192 | 3.34
Italy Buoni Poliennali 1.750 [ 2024 710,402 | 700,000 726,388 | 2.82
del Tesoro

10 |Japan Treasury Bills (0.146)[ 2020 13 674,147 | 80,000,000 667,678 | 2.59

11 |united Kingdom Gilt 3.750 [ 2021 593,912 500,000 581,013 | 2.26

12 | France Government Bond 1.500 | 2050 25 552,985 455,000 559,030 2.17

13 |Treasury Inflation 0.250 [ 2029 15 413,233 454,082 437,535 | 1.70
Protected Securities

14 |Japan Treasury Bills (0.128)[ 2020 27 430,511 | 50,000,000 417,323 | 1.62

15 | Mtaly Buoni Poliennali 1.350 | 2022 15 405,332 400,000 407,152 | 1.58
del Tesoro

16 | Stovenia Government 1.000 | 2028 401,661 370,000 392,357 | 1.52
International Bond

17 |Slovenia Governnent 0.875 [ 2030 15 305,693 300,000 310,958 | 1.21
International Bond

18 gKg Bank Hipoteczny 0.750 | 2024 24 | 303,173| 300,000 306,657 | 1.19

19 | 'taly Buoni Poliennali 2.450 | 2050 276,355 285,000 288,882 | 1.12
del Tesoro

20 |Freddie Mac 3.500 | 2048 290,020 297,934 283,161 | 1.10

21 |Autonomous Community of 4.900 [ 2021 15 259,421 250,000 263,837 | 1.03
Catalonia

22 | Hawksmoor Mortgages 1.287 | 2053 25 262,482 224,475 248,043 | 0.96

23 |United Kingdom Gilt 3.500 | 2068 22 208,482 95,000 244,183 | 0.95

24 gﬁgk of Ireland Group 1.000 |2025 11 25 251,842 250,000 238,697 | 0.93

25 |Ripon Mortgages PLC 1.056 | 2056 20 236,414 205,704 226,748 | 0.88

26 |Mortimer BTL PLC 2.000 [ 2051 20 229,519 195,866 216,799 | 0.84

27 |Eurogrid GmbH 1.875 | 2025 10 216,025 200,000 214,266 | 0.83

28 'I'r']tc)erty Mutual Group, 2.750 | 2026 223,009 | 200,000 212,798 | 0.83

29 |Digital Euro Finco LLC 2.625 | 2024 15 213,775 200,000 211,014 | 0.82

30 |Province of Ontario 2.400 | 2026 204,773 300,000 210,134 0.82

(2020
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(2020 )
(€))
2020
41,410,018 5,195,714,958 8.84 1,109
10 37,698,761 4,730,063,543 9.38 1,177
11 35,089,794 4,402,716,453 9.80 1,230
12 35,246,796 4,422 ,415,494 10.25 1,286
13 32,440,928 4,070,363,236 10.42 1,307
14 26,939,009 3,380,037,459 10.38 1,302
15 27,093,279 3,399,393,716 10.50 1,317
16 25,757,362 3,231,776,210 10.40 1,305
17 25,111,840 3,150,782,565 10.71 1,344
18 25,733,017 3,228,721,643 10.93 1,371
2019 26,649,948 3,343,768,976 11.19 1,404
10 26,443,187 3,317,826,673 11.11 1,394
11 26,359,571 3,307,335,373 11.06 1,388
12 26,150,448 3,281,096,711 11.01 1,381
2020 26,798,841 3,362,450,580 11.26 1,413
26,838,110 3,367,377,662 11.22 1,408
24,943,785 3,129,696,704 10.69 1,341
25,470,936 3,195,838,340 10.91 1,369
25,738,781 3,229,444 ,852 10.93 1,371
26,239,359 3,292,252,374 11.04 1,385
26,418,214 3,314,693,311 11.18 1,403
26,162,905 3,282,659,690 11.15 1,399
)
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0.258215956 32.398
10 0.272048734 34.134
11 0.198548392 24.912
12 0.123166264 15.454
13 0.765302711 96.023
14 0.091291480 11.454
15 0.070361437 8.828
16 0.087322777 10.956
17 0.126751009 15.903
18 0.046122730 5.787
2020 0.000543363 0.068
0.000367544 0.046
0.000261850 0.033

)

3.74

10 9.19

11 6.59

12 5.85

13 9.12

14 0.49

15 1.83

16 -0.12

17 4.20

18 2.48

) () 100x(a b) b
a

b (
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)
278,700 774,492 4,686,706
(278,700) (774,492) (4,686,706)
10 52,040 721,575 4,017,171
(52,040) (721,575) (4,017,171)
1 281,650 717,806 3,581,015
(281,650) (717,806) (3,581,015)
1 108,160 251,874 3,437,301
(108,160) (251,874) (3,437,301)
13 192,190 515,414 3,114,077
(192,190) (515,414) (3,114,077)
1 127,440 645,585 2,595,932
(127,440) (645,585) (2,595,932)
15 238,850 255,307 2,579,475
238,850) 255,307) (2,579,475)
16 21,310 124,931 2,475,854
(21,310) (124,931) (2,475,854)
17 27,250 158,075 2,345,029
(27,250) (158,075) (2,345,029)
18 100,020 91,380 2,353,669
(100,020) (91,380) (2,353,669)
)y ¢
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2020 31
( ) ( )
125.9%
1.7%
1.2%
Barry Callebaut Services NV
5.500% due 06/15/2023 $ 200 EUR 193
Euroclear Bank S.A.
0.000% due 03/08/2021 EUR 100 100
293
0.5%
Kingdom of Belgium Government Bond
2.250% due 06/22/2057 90 134
427
( EUR 436)
0.4%
0.4%
Bacardi Ltd.
2.750% due 07/03/2023 100 101
101
( EUR 106)
1.6%
0.4%
Fairfax Financial Holdings Ltd.
2.750% due 03/29/2028 100 98
0.1%
Canadian Mortgage Pools
0.898% due 07/01/2020 CAD 42 28
1.1%
Province of Alberta
2.350% due 06/01/2025 100 69
Province of Ontario
2.400% due 06/02/2026 300 210
279
405
( EUR 400)
0.4%
0.4%
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Ltd.
0.296% due 10/12/2020 EUR 100 100
100
( EUR 100)
0.4%
0.4%
Cyprus Government International Bond
0.625% due 01/21/2030 100 94
94
( EUR 99)
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« )
2020 31
( ) ( )
0.3%
0.3%
Czech Republic Government Bond
1.000% due 06/26/2026 CZK 2,300 EUR 88
88
( EUR 88)
6.6%
6.6%
Jyske Realkredit A/S
1.000% due 10/01/2050 DKK 1,492 196
1.500% due 10/01/2050 19 3
2.000% due 10/01/2050 974 134
3.000% due 10/01/2047 10 1
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab
1.000% due 10/01/2050 500 66
2.000% due 10/01/2050 1,216 167
2.500% due 10/01/2047 14 2
3.000% due 10/01/2047 5 1
Nykredit Realkredit A/S
1.000% due 10/01/2050 8,076 1,059
1.500% due 10/01/2047 2 0
2.000% due 10/01/2050 412 57
2.500% due 10/01/2036 1 0
2.500% due 10/01/2047 35 5
Realkredit Danmark A/S
2.500% due 04/01/2036 32 4
2.500% due 07/01/2047 11 2
3.000% due 07/01/2046 12 2
1,699
( EUR 1,689)
5.7%
0.4%
Purple Master Credit Cards
0.000% due 10/25/2030 EUR 100 100
1.9%
BNP Paribas S.A.
0.500% due 02/19/2028 100 96
Bureau Veritas S.A.
1.250% due 09/07/2023 200 197
Dexia Credit Local S.A.
0.500% due 01/17/2025 100 103
RCI Banque S.A.
0.250% due 07/12/2021 100 98
494
3.4%
1.500% due 05/25/2050 (F) 455 559
1.750% due 05/25/2066 140 195
2.000% due 05/25/2048 80 108
862
1,456
( EUR 1,449)
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3.7%
0.2%
Driver Multi-Compartment S.A.
0.000% due 02/21/2026 EUR 20 EUR 20
Red & Black Auto Germany 4 UG haftungsbeschrankt
0.046% due 09/15/2025 18 18
38
3.5%
Deutsche Bank AG
0.031% due 12/07/2020 100 100
4.250% due 10/14/2021 $ 100 91
Deutsche Hypothekenbank AG
0.792% due 03/22/2021 GBP 100 111
Eurogrid GmbH
1.875% due 06/10/2025 EUR 200 214
TLG Immobilien AG
1.500% due 05/28/2026 200 191
Volkswagen Bank GmbH
0.000% due 06/15/2021 100 99
Volkswagen Leasing GmbH
0.114% due 07/06/2021 100 99
905
943
( EUR 957)
1.8%
0.0%
SCF Rahoituspalvelut Kimi VI DAC
0.000% due 11/25/2026 12 12
1.3%
Bank of Ireland Group PLC
1.000% due 11/25/2025 250 239
PartnerRe Ireland Finance DAC
1.250% due 09/15/2026 100 100
339
0.5%
Bluestep Mortgage Securities No.4 DAC
0.454% due 08/10/2066 28 27
European Loan Conduit No.36 DAC
1.000% due 02/17/2030 100 97
124
475
( EUR 497)
6.5%
0.6%
UniCredit SpA
3.250% due 01/14/2021 150 153
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( ) ( )
5.9%
Italy Buoni Poliennali del Tesoro
1.350% due 04/15/2022 EUR 400 EUR 407
1.750% due 07/01/2024 (f) 700 726
1.850% due 07/01/2025 100 104
2.450% due 09/01/2050 285 289
1,526
1,679
( EUR 1,645)
1.2%
1.2%
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc.
0.872% due 09/07/2024 200 199
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group, Inc.
0.000% due 06/14/2022 100 99
298
( EUR 305)
0.4%
0.4%
Atrium European Real Estate Ltd.
3.000% due 09/11/2025 100 97
97
( EUR 99)
2.8%
0.6%
Bavarian Sky S.A.
0.000% due 10/20/2024 13 13
Compartment VCL 27
0.000% due 08/21/2024 38 38
Silver Arrow S.A. Compartment 11
0.197% due 02/15/2027 100 101
152
2.2%
Aroundtown S.A.
1.500% due 07/15/2024 200 197
Blackstone Property Partners Europe Holdings Sarl
2.200% due 07/24/2025 100 101
CPI Property Group S.A.
1.625% due 04/23/2027 100 91
SELP Finance Sarl
1.500% due 12/20/2026 200 191
580
732
( EUR 753)
0.8%
0.8%
Morocco Government International Bond
4.500% due 10/05/2020 200 203
203
( EUR 200)
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2020 31
( ) ( )
2.8%
2._5%
JAB Holdings BV
1.750% due 06/25/2026 EUR 200 EUR 201
LeasePlan Corp. NV
0.259% due 11/04/2020 100 100
Nederlandse Waterschapsbank NV
0.000% due 04/14/2023 100 101
1.625% due 01/29/2048 100 135
Volkswagen International Finance NV
0.500% due 03/30/2021 100 100
637
0.3%
Dutch Property Finance BV
0.469% due 04/28/2051 86 84
721
( EUR 696)
1.8%
1.2%
PKO Bank Hipoteczny S.A.
0.750% due 01/24/2024 300 307
0.6%
Poland Government International Bond
2.500% due 07/25/2026 PLN 600 148
455
( EUR 446)
0.4%
0.4%
Russia Government International Bond
7.650% due 04/10/2030 RUB 6,800 101
101
( EUR 111)
2.7%
2.7%
Slovenia Government International Bond
0.875% due 07/15/2030 EUR 300 311
1.000% due 03/06/2028 370 392
703
( EUR 707)
15.7%
0.5%
Asset-Backed European Securitisation Transaction Thirteen FT
0.000% due 08/23/2030 37 37
BBVA Consumer Auto FTA
0.270% due 07/20/2031 90 89
126
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2020 31
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1.5%
Merlin Properties Socimi S.A.
1.750% due 05/26/2025 EUR 200 EUR 194
2.375% due 05/23/2022 200 202
396
13.7%
Autonomous Community of Catalonia
4.900% due 09/15/2021 250 264
Spain Government Bond
0.250% due 07/30/2024 (F) 1,500 1,526
0.600% due 10/31/2029 27 27
1.000% due 10/31/2050 200 184
1.400% due 07/30/2028 (f) 1,385 1,505
3.450% due 07/30/2066 15 24
3,530
4,052
( EUR 4,032)
5.1%
4._5%
Molnlycke Holding AB
1.875% due 02/28/2025 200 206
Stadshypotek AB
2.000% due 09/01/2028 SEK 9,000 953
1,159
0.6%
Kommuniinvest 1 Sverige AB
1.000% due 11/12/2026 1,600 158
1,317
( EUR 1,307)
1.6%
1.6%
Credit Suisse AG
1.000% due 06/07/2023 EUR 100 102
UBS AG ()
4.750% due 02/12/2026 100 102
5.125% due 05/15/2024 $ 200 195
399
( EUR 382)
23.8%
3.8%
BAT International Finance PLC
3.625% due 11/09/2021 EUR 100 104
HSBC Holdings PLC
0.466% due 12/04/2021 100 100
Imperial Brands Finance PLC
2.250% due 02/26/2021 200 202
InterContinental Hotels Group PLC
3.875% due 11/28/2022 GBP 100 111
NatWest Markets PLC
0.531% due 09/27/2021 EUR 100 100
0.625% due 03/02/2022 100 99
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« )
2020 31

( ) ( )
Royal Bank of Scotland Group PLC
2.000% due 03/04/2025 EUR 150 EUR 152
Santander UK PLC
0.875% due 11/25/2020 100 100

968
9.6%

Aggregator of Loans Backed by Assets PLC
0.683Y% due 03/17/2039 GBP 60 63
1.977% due 04/24/2049 45 50
Canada Square Funding PLC
1.613% due 10/17/2051 93 102
Dukinfield PLC
1.292% due 08/15/2045 37 41
Eurohome UK Mortgages PLC
0.656% due 06/15/2044 50 53
Eurosail PLC
0.647% due 12/15/2044 10 11
Eurosail-UK PLC
0.656% due 03/13/2045 42 45
Finsbury Square PLC
1.410% due 09/12/2068 90 99
1.457% due 06/16/2069 88 97
Gosforth Funding PLC
0.197% due 02/15/2058 EUR 92 92
Great Hall Mortgages No.l1 PLC
0.000% due 03/18/2039 24 23
Hawksmoor Mortgages
1.287% due 05/25/2053 GBP 224 248
Landmark Mortgage Securities No.3 PLC
0.940% due 04/17/2044 36 37
Ludgate Funding PLC
0.735% due 01/01/2061 56 57
Mortimer BTL PLC
2.000% due 06/20/2051 196 217
Newgate Funding PLC
0.617% due 12/15/2050 12 13
Paragon Mortgages No.13 PLC
0.908% due 01/15/2039 78 81
Precise Mortgage Funding PLC
1.140% due 03/12/2055 124 135
Residential Mortgage Acceptance Corporation Securities No.1
PLC
0.630% due 06/12/2044 153 160
Residential Mortgage Securities 28 PLC
1.637% due 06/15/2046 19 21
Ripon Mortgages PLC
1.056% due 08/20/2056 206 227
Silverstone Master lIssuer PLC
0.077% due 01/21/2070 EUR 48 48
0.207% due 01/21/2070 84 83
1.235% due 01/21/2070 GBP 73 81
Southern Pacific Securities PLC
0.834% due 03/10/2044 40 44
Towd Point Mortgage Funding Granite4 PLC
1.677% due 10/20/2051 159 176
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Twin Bridges PLC
1.240% due 09/12/2044 GBP 65 EUR 71
Warwick Finance Residential Mortgages No Two PLC
2.022% due 09/21/2049 92 102
2,477
10.4%
United Kingdom Gilt
0.625% due 06/07/2025 750 860
1.625% due 10/22/2054 30 45
1.625% due 10/22/2071 50 87
3.250% due 01/22/2044 495 873
3.500% due 07/22/2068 95 244
3.750% due 09/07/2021 500 582
2,691
6,136
( EUR 6,152)
31.4%
0.3%
SLM Student Loan Trust
1.037% due 03/15/2038 78 83
8.5%
Amgen, Inc.
1.250% due 02/25/2022 100 101
ATE&T, Inc.
0.416% due 09/05/2023 100 99
Bank of America Corp.
0.519% due 05/04/2023 150 149
0.808% due 05/09/2026 150 150
BAT Capital Corp.
2.764% due 08/15/2022 $ 100 93
Berkshire Hathaway, Inc.
0.250% due 01/17/2021 EUR 100 100
Citigroup, Inc.
0.551% due 05/24/2021 100 100
Digital Euro Finco LLC
2.625% due 04/15/2024 200 211
General Motors Financial Co., Inc.
0.422% due 05/10/2021 100 97
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
0.161% due 09/09/2022 100 99
1.625% due 07/27/2026 150 155
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc.
2.750% due 05/04/2026 200 213
Masco Corp.
5.950% due 03/15/2022 $ 100 96
Morgan Stanley
0.141% due 05/21/2021 EUR 100 100
Philip Morris International, Inc.
2.750% due 03/19/2025 100 108
Wells Fargo & Co.
1.375% due 10/26/2026 100 103
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Zimmer Biomet Holdings, Inc.
2.425% due 12/13/2026 EUR 200 EUR 207
2,181
3.6%
Banc of America Mortgage Trust
3.673% due 02/25/2035 $ 45 39
BCAP LLC Trust
4.871% due 03/26/2037 34 30
Chase Mortgage Finance Trust
3.891% due 01/25/2036 54 45
CS First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp.
2.172% due 03/25/2032 2 2
Downey Savings & Loan Association Mortgage Loan Trust
1.012% due 09/19/2044 51 41
GSAMP Trust
0.308% due 06/25/2036 49 43
JPMorgan Mortgage Acquisition Trust
0.298% due 08/25/2036 73 64
MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
0.948% due 02/25/2034 43 37
0.993% due 10/25/2034 158 136
Residential Accredit Securities Corporation Trust
0.568% due 12/25/2035 14 13
1.893% due 11/25/2034 117 102
Sequoia Mortgage Trust
0.361% due 06/20/2036 139 115
Soundview Home Loan Trust
0.418% due 10/25/2036 250 198
Structured Asset Securities Corporation Mortgage Loan Trust
0.303% due 07/25/2036 12 11
WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Trust
0.628% due 04/25/2045 35 30
2.134% due 02/27/2034 18 16
922
17.1%
Fannie Mae
2.944% due 07/25/2039 67 61
Fannie Mae, TBA (b)
3.000% due 08/01/2050 1,400 1,319
3.500% due 08/01/2050 2,100 1,989
Freddie Mac
1.335% due 01/15/2038 34 31
2.877% due 01/15/2038 (c) 34 2
3.500% due 09/01/2048 298 283
4.234% due 09/01/2037 68 64
Ginnie Mae
1.531% due 10/20/2062 68 61
1.766% due 01/20/2066 149 135
1.796% due 09/20/2066 165 149
1.816% due 06/20/2066 167 151
1.816% due 07/20/2066 81 73
1.866% due 11/20/2066 90 82
4,400
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( ) ( )
1.9%
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities
0.250% due 07/15/2029 (d) $ 454 EUR 438
U.S. Treasury Bonds
2.250% due 08/15/2049 55 59
497
8,083
( EUR 8,142)
6.3%
1.9%
Bank of Nova Scotia
0.040% due 06/01/2020 CAD 3 2
BNP Paribas Bank
(0.660%) due 06/01/2020 EUR 152 152
(0.270%) due 06/01/2020 \ 4 0
3.050% due 06/01/2020 ZAR 10 1
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
(0.660%) due 06/01/2020 EUR 3 3
(0.300%) due 06/01/2020 SEK 17 2
(0.200%) due 06/02/2020 NOK 25 2
3.050% due 06/01/2020 ZAR 1 0
Citibank N.A.
0.010% due 06/01/2020 $ 1 1
Credit Suisse AG
(1.470%) due 06/02/2020 CHF 1 1
HSBC Bank PLC
(0.660%) due 06/01/2020 EUR 89 89
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
0.010% due 06/01/2020 $ 2 2
MUFG Bank Ltd.
(0.270%) due 06/01/2020 \ 50 1
National Australia Bank Ltd.
0.010% due 06/01/2020 AUD 1 1
Sumitomo Mitsul Banking Corp.
(0.660%) due 06/01/2020 EUR 176 176
(0.270%) due 06/01/2020 \ 9 0
0.010% due 06/01/2020 GBP 1 1
0.010% due 06/01/2020 $ 4 3
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd.
(0.660%) due 06/01/2020 EUR 36 36
(0.270%) due 06/01/2020 \ 1 0
0.010% due 06/01/2020 GBP 15 17
0.010% due 06/01/2020 $ 2 1
491
(€) 0.2%
0.293% due 09/11/2020 EUR 50 EUR 50
(e) 4.2%
(0.146%) due 07/13/2020 \ 80,000 668
(0.128%) due 07/27/2020 50,000 417
1,085
1,626
( EUR 1,646)
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( ) ( )
125.9% EUR 32,390
( EUR 32,444)
@) 0.1% 2
( $(21)
(26.0%) (6,689)
100.0% EUR 25,733
( )
*
@
®
©
@
®©
1
( ) ( ) ®
BPS (0.410%) 05/27/2020 08/20/2020 EUR (487) EWR (487)
BPS (0.380%) 05/27/2020 08/20/2020 (3,156) ( 3,156 )
EUR 3,643
30 31 90 90
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR (3,643) EUR 0 EUR (3,643)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (3,643) ELR 0 EUR (3,643)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (3,643) EUR 0 EUR (3,643)
EUR 3,643
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2020 31
2020 31
M 2020 31 3,648
2
D) @
BPS EUR 0 EUR (3,643) EUR 0 EUWR 0 EUR (3,643) EUR 3,648 EUR 5
EUR 0 EUR (3,643) EUR 0 EUR 0
(1)2020 31 2,802 (0.246%)
@
@
(GD)

Canada Government 10-Year Bond September Futures Short  09/2020 2 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0
Euro-Bobl 5-Year Note June Futures Long 06/2020 8 (@) 1 0
Euro-BTP 10-Year Bond September Futures Long 09/2020 7 5 0 0
Euro-Bund 10-Year Bond June Futures Long 06/2020 11 (11) 4 0
Euro-Buxl 30-Year Bond June Futures Long 06/2020 1 @ 1 0
Euro-OAT 10-Year Bond June Futures Long  06/2020 7 5 5 0
Euro-Schatz 2-Year Note September Futures Short  09/2020 18 0 0 0
U.S. Treasury 2-Year Note September Futures Short  09/2020 4 0 0 0
U.S. Treasury 5-Year Note September Futures Short  09/2020 10 @ 0 @)
U.S. Treasury 10-Year Note September Futures Long  09/2020 1 0 1 0
U.S. Treasury 10-Year Note September Futures Short  09/2020 21 ") 0 8)
U.S. Treasury 20-Year Bond September Futures Long  09/2020 3 1 4 0
U.S. Treasury 30-Year Bond September Futures Long  09/2020 3 (©)] 7 0
United Kingdom Treasury 10-Year Gilt September Futures Long  09/2020 13 (O] 1 0
Put Option Strike @ EUR 160.500 on Euro-Bund 10-Year
Bond June 2020 Futures(l) Long  06/2020 12 0 0 0

EUR (19) EUR 24 EUR (10)
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2020 31
(&)
3 4
CDX.16-33 Index 1.000%  12/20/2024 $ 100 EUR 1 EWR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0
iTraxx Europe Series 32 Index 1.000% 12/20/2024 EUR 400 7 1 0 0
iTraxx Europe Series 33 Index 1.000%  06/20/2025 900 14 1 0 @
EUR 22 EUR 2 EUR 0 EUR [@)

2020 31

(h) 2020 31 347

EUR 0 EWR 24 EWR 0 EUR 24 EWR 0 EWR (10) LR (1) ER  (11)

@
@

®
O
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2020 31
@®
(GD)
( )
BOA 06/2020 CzK 82 $ 3 EUR 0 EUR 0
BOA 06/2020 KRW 176,215 149 9 (O]
BOA 06/2020 $ 13 EUR 12 0 0
BOA 06/2020 21 PLN 82 0 (¢Y)
BOA 07/2020 JPY 50,000 EUR 432 15 0
BPS 06/2020 EUR 144 $ 158 0 @
BPS 06/2020 $ 76 EUR 70 1 0
BPS 07/2020 DKK 95 13 0 0
BPS 07/2020 $ 33 30 0 0
BPS 07/2020 6 RUB 485 1 0
BPS 08/2020 CAD 483 EUR 316 3 0
BPS 0872020 GBP 1,059 1,193 18 0
BRC 08/2020 SEK 5,690 534 0 (©)
CBK 06/2020 $ 146 IDR 2,038,685 7 (13)
CBK 06/2020 38 MXN 732 1 ()
CBK 06/2020 3 RUB 221 0 0
CBK 07/2020 11 HUF 3,490 1 0
GLM 06/2020 EUR 123 $ 133 0 @A)
GLM 06/2020 MXN 732 29 0 ®)
GLM 06/2020 TWD 4,501 151 5 (O]
GLM 06/2020 $ 4 RUB 304 0 0
GLM 06/2020 1 67 0 0
GLM 06/2020 7 552 1 0
GLM 07/2020 DKK 10,795 EUR 1,445 0 @A)
GLM 07/2020 JPY 80,000 675 7 0
GLM 07/2020 100,000 853 19 0
GLM 07/2020 $ 1 RUB 97 0 0
GLM 07/2020 2 136 0 0
HUS 06/2020 CzK 78 $ 3 0 0
HUS 06/2020 IDR 2,014,740 140 3 0
HUS 06/2020 SGD 201 145 6 (O]
HUS 06/2020 $ 152 TWD 4,505 0 @
HUS 08/2020 GBP 102 EUR 115 2 0
JPM 06/2020 CzZK 130 $ 5 0 0
JPM 06/2020 $ 12 RUB 868 1 0
JPM 07/2020 DKK 75 EUR 10 0 0
JPM 08/2020 EUR 466 CHF 490 0 ®)
JPM 08/2020 91 NOK 1,000 2 0
JPM 08/2020 SEK 65 EUR 6 0 0
MY 1 06/2020 $ 3,588 3,281 55 0
MY 1 07/2020 DKK 75 10 0 0
MY 1 07/2020 $ 20 HUF 6,709 1 0
MY 1 08/2020 SEK 2,215 EUR 210 0 (€H)
RYL 06/2020 $ 147 SGD 203 0 ®)
SCX 06/2020 GBP 38 EUR 42 0 0
SCX 06/2020 $ 18 PLN 70 0 (¢Y)
SCX 06/2020 1 RUB 78 0 0
SCX 07/2020 DKK 45 EUR 6 0 0
SCX 07/2020 EUR 42 GBP 38 0 0
SCX 07/2020 $ 3,445 EUR 3,095 0 0
S0G 07/2020 11 HUF 3,669 1 0
SSB 07/2020 EUR 864 JPY 100,000 0 (30)
SSB 07/2020 $ 21 HUF 7,018 2 0
UAG 06/2020 EUR 42 GBP 37 0 (¢Y)
UAG 06/2020 PLN 29 $ 7 0 0
UAG 06/2020 $ 149 KRwW 175,981 0 (6)
UAG 06/2020 $ 4 RUB 344 0 0

164/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

« )
2020 31
)
(¢ )
UAG 06/2020 $ 4 RUB 303 EUR 0 EUR 0
UAG 06/2020 2 160 0 0
UAG 07/2020 DKK 215 EUR 29 0 0
UAG 07/2020 $ 2 RUB 148 0 0
UAG 08/2020 EUR 35 GBP 31 0 0
EUR 161 EUR (104)
Call - OTC 5-Year Interest
GLM Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 1.618% 07/10/2020 3,000 EUR 20 EUR 169
Put - OTC 30-Year Interest
GLM Rate Swap 6-Month GBP-LIBOR 0.860% 02/26/2021 45 3 1
Put - OTC 30-Year Interest
MYC Rate Swap 6-Month GBP-LIBOR 1.100% 01/11/2021 250 17 2
EUR 40 EUR 172
( ) ® ¢
Call - OTC 30-Year Interest
GLM Rate Swap 3-Month USD-LIBOR 2.250% 07/10/2020 600 EUR (20) EUR  (194)
Call - OTC 30-Year Interest
GLM Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR (0.120%) 08/21/2020 200 8) A3)
Put - OTC 10-Year Interest
GLM Rate Swap 6-Month GBP-LIBOR 0.780%  02/26/2021 125 (&) (€D)
Call - OTC 30-Year Interest
MYC Rate Swap 6-Month EURIBOR 0.000% 08/24/2020 200 ) (6)
Put - OTC 10-Year Interest
MYC Rate Swap 6-Month GBP-LIBOR 1.010% 01/11/2021 700 (18) (2)
EUR (54) EUR  (206)
DUB Put - CDX.1G-33 Index Sell 0.850% 06/17/2020 1,000 EUR (1) EWR (€Y)
MYC Put - CDX.1G-33 Index Sell 0.850% 06/17/2020 100 0 0

EUR (D EWR [0)
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JPM Put - Fannie Mae** $ 100.398 07/07/2020 600 EUR (4) EWR @
JPM Put - Fannie Mae** 102.504  07/07/2020 600 ) @)

EUR (6) EWR 3)

EIR _ (61) ELR _ (210)

2020 31 oTC
oTC
C ) @
BOA ELR 24 EUR 0 EUWR O EUR 24 EUIR (5) EUR 0 EUWR 0 EUR (5) EUR 19 EIR 0 EUR 19
BPS 23 0 0 23 O 0 0 @ 21 0 21
BRC 0 0 0 0 ©) 0 0 ©) ©) 0 ©)
CBK 9 0 0 9 19) 0 0 (19) 10) 0 (10)
DUB 0 0 0 0 0 @ 0 @ @ 0 @
GLM 32 170 0 202 @3  (198) 0 (211) ©) 0 ©)
HUS 11 0 0 11 ) 0 0 ) 5 0 5
JPM 3 0 0 3 ®) ®) 0 1) ®) 0 ®)
MYC 0 2 0 2 0 ®) 0 ®) ) 0 (6)
MY 56 0 0 56 @ 0 0 @ 55 0 55
RYL 0 0 0 0 ®) 0 0 ®) ®) 0 ®)
ScX 0 0 0 0 @ 0 0 @ @ 0 @
S0G 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
SSB 2 0 0 2 (30) 0 0 (30) (28) 0 28)
UAG 0 0 0 0 @ 0 0 @) %) 0 0
EWR 161 EUR 172 EUR 0 EUR 333 EUR (104) EUR (210) ELR 0 EUR (314)

*k
(€))
0 oTC
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2020 31
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 24 EUR 24
0 0 0 0 0 0
EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 24 EUR 24
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 161 EUR 0 EWR 161
0 0 0 0 172 172
EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EWR 161 EUR 172 EWR 333
EUR 0 EWR 0 EUR 0 EWR 161 EUR 196 EUR 357
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR (10) EWR (10)
0 [€)) 0 0 0 [€))
EUR 0 EWR (1) EWR 0 EWR 0 EUR (10) EUR )
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EIR  (104) EWR 0 EIR  (104)
0 D 0 0 (209) (210)
EUR 0 EUR (1) EUR 0 EUR  (104) EUR  (209) ER  (314)
EUR 0 EWR (2) EWR 0 EUR  (104) ELR  (219) ELR  (325)
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2020 31
2020 31
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR (1) EUR )
0 0 0 0 267 267
0 3 0 0 12 15
EUR 0 EWR 3 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 278 EWR 281
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR (341) EWR 0 EWR (341)
0 0 0 0 237 237
0 9 0 0 (162) (153)
EUR 0 EUR 9 EUR 0 EUR (341) EWR 75 EUR (257)
EUR 0 EWR 12 EUR 0 EWR (341) EUR 353 EUR 24
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR (20) EWR (20)
0 5 0 0 (16) (11)
EUR 0 EUR 5 EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR (36) EUR (31)
EUR 0 EWR 0 EWR 0 EWR 103 EWR 0 EWR 103
0 0 0 0 1 1
0 0 0 0 (42 42)
EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 0 EUR 103 EUR (41) EWR 62
EUR 0 EWR 5 EUR 0 EWR 103 EUR (77) EWR 31
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2020 31
2020 31
EUR 0 EUR 293 EUR 0 EUR 293
0 134 0 134
0 101 0 101
0 98 0 98
0 28 0 28
0 279 0 279
0 100 0 100
0 94 0 94
0 88 0 88
0 1,699 0 1,699
0 100 0 100
0 494 0 494
0 862 0 862
0 38 0 38
0 905 0 905
0 12 0 12
0 339 0 339
0 124 0 124
0 153 0 153
0 1,526 0 1,526
0 298 0 298
0 97 0 97
0 152 0 152
0 580 0 580
0 203 0 203
0 637 0 637
0 84 0 84
0 307 0 307
0 148 0 148
0 101 0 101
0 703 0 703
0 126 0 126
0 396 0 396
0 3,530 0 3,530
0 1,159 0 1,159
0 158 0 158

169/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31
2020 31
EUR 0 EUWR 399 EUR 0 EUWR 399
0 968 0 968
0 2,477 0 2,477
0 2,601 0 2,601
0 83 0 83
0 2,181 0 2,181
0 922 0 922
0 4,400 0 4,400
0 497 0 497
0 1,626 0 1,626
EUR 0 EWR 32,390 EUR 0 EWR 32,390
24 0 0 24
0 333 0 333
EUR 24 EUR 333 EWR 0 EWR 357
(10) (€)) 0 (11)
0 (314) 0 (314)
EUR (10) EUR (315) EUR 0 EWR (325)
EUR 14 EWR 32,408 EUR 0 EWR 32,422

2020 31

170/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statements of Assets and Liabilities cont Moy 31, 2020
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1 1] 7 i 1]
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] a ]
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153
4.28
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] i
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities cont

PRIL
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities cont
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Statements of Dperations wont Vear Endad M

T
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets o Vet Endad My
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Total liicrease |Docroase] im Nel Assels 115, B} 71 1537 &1 574
Net Azants:
Bagerarg 1l pumr H/n i 8 1
End of yu P EUR 5, 'aa 13,53 5 431,19

Taa i egan g Falr

Mol Rt | My 31, T520

175/388



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Financial Highlights con Year Ended May 31
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1. ORGANIZATION

Each Fusd deboussed in thes neport (each a “Fund” and collectively, the “Funds®), whah sl ncheces each odlass of unio of thar Fund (ach & “Class® and colerysly,
the "Clesses™], is o senes trust of PIMCO Bermuda Trust (the “Trunt™ ), an open-ended unil tust estabished under the Lews of Bermuda as & mults-series trast pursuant
to @ trust deed executed by Winchester Global Tt Company Limited oo August B, 1001 (a5 amended from time to time, the "Truss Deed ™). Efectie a5 of the dese
af businass. (E asseen time) on September 29, 20017, Maples Toustes Serdees Bermuda) Limvted (the *Tnstee®) was aoposnied &5 tnstee ol the T, Pacfic bwesiment
Wanagemert Company LUC {"PIMCO", the 'L’.an:q:r' or the " Inwestmens Adviser™) is the sponser of and was responaible for siructuring the Truss

T Truit is subyect 10 nequla tor and supseretsion &5 prowded for in the bavestment Funds Act 2006 and related sules relating to standard funds

T tevms of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trusies, with the consent of te Manager, the power, in the future, 1o establish hurther funds in addition ta the Funds
cumenily in operation as of the case of this regon

The Funds presented in this 1epor are listed below

i [Hiormd 10
PARICD Bormeda Foraign Low Duration Fund Eitfered onby o fumds wath 8 “Fard of Funds”™ gnecture, a5 defned in e reles: of the |
PMICD Bormada U5, Lovw Duration Fund Ereastmant TRass ARRCiFion, Japan. of i3 fonds with & 3imilar stuciure inamy otk
PARICD Emarging Madkets Bond Fund | JTF) prndsciion
PKICT Ememging Mericrts Bond Fund [Yen-Hixgedh
ARICT Emerging Mivieets Bond Fund I |
“PMICD Ewro Tatol fiotem Fund. | Oforod 1o reaail invesices in Jepan by way of pebic off2ning irosgh o Sistribstor iy |
ARICTY Aeal Retum Fand | Japan, ard mey be alletad 12 other ivesioes & B doeenon of the Manager
PRACT) Sheart-Tesm ooy ™ Pes e v el ivvaices in Japan by vy of pebiic offsing theough & Sstrlsie srlis & |
sales hand g company in Jagan, and may bo olfesed 83 ather investors o Ba d screlicn
of the Manager. |
" MMICD [mergng Makets Bond Tund {M) T ciﬁ- 1 attear Fonds to servs 8 o and evlying inwestment vshicle o much Funds |

P 4 LIPTY g S [ o PR Shory o Sy v e vy 1t Ay e ¢ T ot FCWions, o i o S T o (W T Ty ST, g, 7 A Y 4 SIS ST 8y S e

i 10 e o AT Dl (e sty £ e sy A e S anuft b o 7 i srwbelymay et sk for s e

Units of the PIMC D Eura Todal Retum Fund, PIMCO Real Rt Fond, and AUD, Y, and USD CRasaes of FRMCD Short: Torm: Stratogy hawve boon registered undor the
Financial Insirumeris. and F:ma'\:::: Liw of fapan Linats of each of the remaining Fungs and the © {LISDY, 1 {FY), and | (USD) Classes of PIMCE Shor-Tem 'irrqm_'pf
hiwe not Been and are Aol cunenlly espacted 10 b negistened wnder 1he Fiendal inttuments and Exchange Liw ol lapan. Accondingly, such Units ol these Funds may
niot b, dinecily or indirectly, offeed in lapan or o any resident in lapan, excepd in complianoe with applcable lapaness lras and :(\-g,]l.}'.i-.;.'.s

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The foliowing s a summary of signifcant aocounting pofities consistently followed by the Trust in the praparation of its finandal stasements in conformity with
sctounting principles gererslly sccepted in the United States of America (U5 CAAR®) Each Fund i teated a5 an investment company usdesd the reperting
requinments of U5, GRAP. The peeparation of fnanciad statements in accerdance with U5 GAAP requingd managemend to maks extimales and assumption that
affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabdites and dischosure of contingent asets and lakilities at the date of the Finandial statements and the reported amounts
ol incresses and daceses in nel dssats from oparations durng the repoing perlod. Acusl retu'ts could diflar from those esiimates

{nh Unebartying Fumd The Trestes and the Marager may apply all of 4 portion of the swsets of PRMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fusd [IMF), AMCO Emesging Markets
Bend fund (¥en-Hedged), and FINICO Emenging Markets Bond Fund B (each referred 1o heren as @ "Fund of Funds”™ of the “Acguining Fund”, whech invests in other
Furedy) to the irspective oedil of the PIICO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (neferied to hereim 43 2n " Undestying Fund™ o the " Aoguined Fend{s)"). Any asiets w0
appbed will be held im such Acquired Fund{s) as # receved directly. Where assets are so appled, the Acquired Funols) will record the issue of units 1o the relevant
Aeruining Fund a1 the iviss prace ped unil of such imis snd wll sopuichase ach anitt af the repunchine price ped unit of such usiks at the tlime ol epunchaie

Ratzos shown in the Financiel Hghlights do nol include expenus of the Acquoed Fand]s) Soe Nole 5, Fers and Eapene, lor luither inlormaticn isgatding fend lees,
5 BpDRCAR

by Secerities Transactions and levesiment Incoms “eowmies rarsechons are recorded as of the ade case i Snancal eporting purposes. secehes purchated o
wold on & when-nsued o delayed-delivery bain may be setiled beyond o slandand settiemen] period foi the seowily aller the trade date. Redised gaitn end ko
Treem sequnities sold are recoded on the identified tost bass. Dewidend income & reconded on the ex-didend date, extept et dividencs from forsign sequites
wiabre thie c-divicend dae may B pedoed, which &t fecorded 34 soon o A Fand B nfaimad of the #-dvadend dats Inteeest income, addjusned for Bk acietion of
discounty srd smartization of premiums, & eecorded on the acrual basis rom settement date, vwith the exception of secarities with a lorwand stanting elacthe cate,
wiere interest income is recorded on the accrual bass frem eflective date. For convertible secunties, premiams atributable 1o the comeersion feature are nat
amertzed Estimated tax kabibies on certain faneign securities ane recoeded on an soorusl basis aed are reflected as compenents of interest income or net change =
unieakited appeeciation [depreciation) on ivwestments on the Statements of Operations, & appropeiase. Tax Kabilities reakired a5 a revu® of such security sales are
teflected as & comparent of net reakred gain (Joss) on evesiments on the Statsments of Operatiers. Paydown gaess sed leases on moiigage-relsied and other aused-
bt besd securibies, if any, &re fecorded 83 componenits of inteeesl incorre on the Stilements of Dpezations. Debt chiigations may be placed on nos-acirusl St and
related imenest income may be reduted by ceasing curtent acoiuals and waiting off interess recersable when the collection of all o a podtion of interest his become

e P | My 31, 30 a
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doubtul based en consistently applied procedres. A debi obligation s
semoved om non-acciual statis when the isium reumes inbéret! paymants
ar when mllectabiity of interest is probable

{eh Cash and Foreign Cumency The franoal statements of each Fund ane
presanted using the cumency of the primary ecoromic amviconment in which 4
oparates. (the “functional curreray”™) The funsctional cumendy fer each of the
Furds i ksted i the below Lable

The mardost walues ol Fne\engr secumties, curency holdings and ofher asiels
and kabilities are trarslated irto eadh Fund's funetional currency based on the
curte enchange catis vath busines diy, Purchages and sabs of sodwitors
and income and experse dem dencminated in foreign curencies, H any, ane
tranilated ietn each Fund®s respective functional cunency at the exchange
1abe in efflect on the transaction date. The Funds do not separately report the
ellects of changes in foreign exchange raes from changes in maikel prces on
sequrites held. Such changes are included in net reafized and net changss in
unitakeed g of logs Trom ervestmaents o9 the Sacements of Dpeatises

T Funds may it in loreign curiency denominated secaties and may
engage n foreign currency ansartons efther on a spot (cash) basis an the
raby p'r«lai’\-nr}in the cumengy eacha g market af {hg tme |;|r1hrgugh:
Terward foreign currency contract. Realized forsgn enchange gans o losses
Alising fram saked of spot Saitgn Curehoies, CuimenEy gami of iidtes reakhed
beivaen Bw trade and sekement dates on secunfes Sansackiors and the
diffierence between the recorded ameunis of daadends, inferest, and Foreign
withitinlding Lined and e functonal curiehcy squivalont of the amtanty
achually received or paid ave incluced in net realized gain or loss on foreign
CunEncy HAnSACToes on the Statements of Operatons Nel unrealized fersgn
eachange gains and bovees atising from changes i foreign exckange rates an
loregn denominabed assels and liabdities other than investments in securities
hield &t the end of the tepoiting seriod are inchuded in net change in
uniakized apprediation or deprociation on 1nm'5n currency #5uets and
sabalifies on the Sratements of Operations

The Faen Axset Viahae { BN ) el 10l etuing ol cortan Funds (o1 Cladses
thereck, & applcable) are prevented in the currenay for which the NAY i
repanied (the “KAV currency ™) as detalled in each Fund's Ofieing
Wemarandum (the “Uffenng Memarandum® ). For the purposes of the
piesanlabon of the NAY and the botal isiurn in the NAY Luisengy, the
begneing and ending NAYS aic conerted wsing the perod beginning and
-:h-.'d-vng morhan:p rates, ipadtively, and distributions ane oomarted .nin} tha
eachange rate & the tme of the dstibution. See the faliowing table for the
WAY cumendy of each respeciie Fend:

FIMED Berrmuda Farmign Low Qoo hand | dopenese yon |
| FMCO Bmrnads U5 Low Daranos Fard | depanese yen | UE dodat
(| PAMCH gy barke: Byee Fueml LITTF) Lyt )Y g
AN Dmarprg blarkts Dond Furd (041 _| U5 dolar | UE dodow
= B0 |
FIBICD Emerpng Markesy Bond Fund (Taniecged) | Jepansseyn | US dolm
hHEﬂ!ﬂuH !J:nﬁsn_&mdh:d!l ] Jup|mg1'm | ULE, dollai
« JERl |
® J'gﬂ_l
® J A |
= KN
s JiTRA
- J TR
FILICD fure Towl Rrtum Fund Eurg Eern
| FIMCD Rual Rurn Fond | US doler [ U5 dolm

Faztong?

MY Curreney

Earergy

|_PCD Shen-Teem Sumiegy
« AD Austrofien dolar | LS. deller
« CoEh 115 dellar LIS dellsr
#  JILFN Japese pen LS. dellar
w  Jusin Japanie yen LS. dollar
s I lapmre pen 15 deller
[ i 15 dellar | 145 dollar

{d} Multiclass Dpersthoss Each Claw af 8 Fund offered by the Truss has
rights 1o 1Fe assets of the Fund oqual 1o that of other Clavses of the sama
Fund, aucept for specilic assets and gains and losses designated to a Class
redating o cmency hedging cperations. Income, non-Class spedific experes,
arsd rgn-Clasa specilic waliced and umealioed capital gains and loyes are
Flocated to sath Class of units based on the selative net assets of eadh Class
al the respectinee Fund Clast specific exsendes aumently inclade
management, advisory, administrative, agency #nd dasribyton fees, whene
axplicable

{a) Distribstion Polboy The faliowing table shows the anbicpated Bequenty
of distritations for each Fund. Distrbutions from each Fund may be declared
drwd ceniibuted 1o Unitholders onrly upon the authatization of 1he Manage:,
which authorization may be withkeld at the Manager's discretion

Dociered Duily wrad Paid Mosthiy

FVCD Furo Totad Returs Fund

PRACO Emarging Markets Bond Fard UITH
PANICD memging Markats Bond Furd fen-Hedged)
PACD Femiwging Markazs Bered Furrl 1

FACD Short-Tarm Sustegy
- 4 UP
- J IUEDN

Declpted and Pald Quarsty

PACD Bsitiinda Forigm L Duiat o8 [und
PCD Berrmixia LS. Lo Dutatson Fund

Secivrnd and Paid &nnoliy

PACO Recal Rotuen Fung

PG Shert- Tam Sindegy
" AL
« CIUSD
- Y
U

Ths Mansgar dsas nol & boana with respac 4o this

n iy discragen, Saclans and

Fured [er Clisgaa Paretd, F applzahlsl Bul
gy distributiess 10 S Unabelders 51 aey e

PAICO breging Markas Bond Fornd iy

Distributions, if any, will gmmr-,- be made from the relevant Fund'™s {or
Class's, i apglicable] net investment income, In addition, the “anage' may
axthorige the paymend of rel coakoed copitsl gaind. pvailabile for datsibution
Addtonal datyibutions may be declared a5 the Manager deems appropriate.
Distributions paid with respect to amy Fund far Class trereo!, i appicabic)
will redure tha NAY of such Fund (or Class thereof, # applicable). &1 the
dacetion of the Unitholders, cash dutibetiang freem 2 Fund (o Clas thareef,
o appicable) may eiher be renvesied in addrhonal usits of & Fund (o Cless
theseof, if applicablel or pad to 8 Unithalder in cash. Cash payenents will be
i i Ehe MAY currency of the Fund Each Fund |or Class theepal, if

el Pt | Wy 31, 190 i

178/388



BIEMENTS jcon

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

apphcakle) may dedare further disirbetion if considend necessany in anjer
10 rmaintan & reasonable lreed of dinbetions (or 2 Fund (o Claw themod,
apolcatiel). Inthe evest that there i inadequate net income and net reafized
capital gaing to pay & drtributen of a Fund jor Class pvereod, | applicable)
roquired by the Qffering Memorandum, the Manages may pay a distribution
coiaing of & poiton ol the cagtal of such Fund [ Ol thaeal, if
applcatle] Dhstibutions rot collecied withen sin yeais Hiorm thes due date
wll laczrse el will aocrae 5o the benefit of the rebevant Fund or Class themof,
A appheatdel

10 New Ac:counting Pronosmcemants n March J020, the Financia
Acoounting Standatds Bosrd [“FASE") meved an Accounting Standands
Update { "ASU™Y, ASU DO20HE, which provides optional guidence 10 ease the
potential aco :l".i'l.j b associated u.ilhﬂ.w-r.-risrin] away from the
Lendon Irgerbank Dffered Rate [“LIB0R") and ocher reference rates thar ae
expected b0 be descontinued The ASU is effectieely immedately upon iclease
of the upddate on March 13, 2020 thiough December 31, 2022, At ths time,
managemant & svaliating the impbcaticns of these changes o the finanoal
stakements

2. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

(o} Bnvestment Valuntion Policies The price of a Fund's unifs o based on
the Fund's NAY. The AN of a Fund, or each of its Classes, as applicable, is
detetmined by dividing the total value of portiolio investments. and other
sl attributable to that Fund or Class, less any Eabiltes, by the total
niumbes of wnis outstanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Dy (s descritsed i the cuirent El-'-'e*r\-g Menpiandus ol the Trua),

Fursd writs are ordinacly valued a5 of the diese of reqular trading on the New
Yook Steck Bxchange ("HYSE Close™) Indnimation that becomes. known 1o
the Funds of ther agents aler B trmie i4 ol whath HAY Rad beeh Caltulated
an a parkioules day will nog l;l?'ﬂfﬂ"rb'.l..‘\?d o 'qlrﬁﬁ.'r'ﬂl-r ajur the prace
af o security or the NAY determingd earfer that day. Each Fund reserves the
right o change the time a5 of which 1is NAY i waltulated d the Fund doses
perler

Fee purpeses of cabulating a WAV, pordolio secwities and other assets foe
wiih bkt quones ank ceadily avalahle see walued 8 marke! vl Wacke
value 5 genarally determined on the basis of official ciosing prices or the last
repaned saled prites, of if o el aie repaited, bated on quotes ablsmed
rom establsbed madot matoen oo pices (ncleding svaluated prices) supplied
oy the Funds’ appeowved prcing senices, quotation reporting systerms and
ather Theid-paity souites {logether, ‘Flu..rl,'. Senace” b Thi Fussd will
nomally use pricing data for domestic equity securdies recoied shartly atter
the W¥5E Close and do not saemally take into accoun trading, cearances of
settiements that take place gher the NYSE Clete M markoet value pricing i
used, & foreign [mon-L. S ) equity security traded on & foreign eachange or on
more thie one exchange &5 typically valuid using pricing infermation fam the
enchange conticensd by the Managet o b the primary sachange, & lorngn
{nan=L5 ) equity security will ke vaboed a5 of the dose of trading on the
Tpreign exchange, of t5e NYSE Close, i the NYSE Close aoours before the erd
al ttadire 0n e kaivigh exchange. Domesstic and fovegs nan-d! S | tmed
MIDME Seowities, non N[h-iﬂ:]'! traded derivatives, ard equity options are
natmally valued on the basis of quobes chiained fram broters sed dealen oo
Pricing Senvices wing data refleding the sarier dosing of the principal
markets for those securities. Prices obtaned from Prcng Seneces may be
heved on, among ot thengs, infeemation proded by maiiet makers o
estimates of market values obtained from yeld data rHarn}:n imyesterents or
sequtities with wmilse charactesistics. Cerain faed income securities
puithided on & Séliayed-delrny bl ke mbioed 1o markel daily unts
settiemend at the Torsard westliement date Eaman;r'-t'ﬂﬂed aptions, soorpt

equity opticns, fulures and aptions on fatuses, sre valued &1 the serfiament
prico defermined by the relvant sxchange, Swap agréemants e valued an
the basis of bid guotes oitained from beokers and dealers of market-based
prices suppled by Pricing Senvces of other plicing sources. A Fure's
rwrIments in open-end managament mstment companies, ottt 1han
enchange-biaded funds [“ETF"), are valued at the MAVS of such imvestments
Oper-end Management mvesiment companies may rchude alfifated funds

ol & laregn {Fan-LL 5 ) equity secunty s value has matenally changed alter the
whore ol the secunty’s prmary eachange o principal matket but bedoe the
MYSE Clode, the secuity may be walued a1 fai vabe based on procedures
eitabdinhed and approwed by the Manage:, Fareign {nae-U,5 | equay
segaries that do not frade when the NYSE is open are abso valved at fair
walue With 1espact to [umu;r- [ron-LE 5. ) eduily secunbes, & Fund may
ghebermirw the Fair valuw of ivestmenis based on information prowided by
Priging Services and other thind-party vendees, which may receereend faie
kot o éd|u'.|r|¢n|’l.'.\|lh-'r|r'm:r o athed degumed, mod of Bssels B
amsidering whether fair valuation iv wquired and in detoimining Ris
walues, & Fund may, amoeg other things, consider sgnificant events (which
may be contideved o include changes in the vahoe of U5, securts or
securities indices) that ocour adter the clase of the relevant market and before
thee NYSE Clowe. & Fund may wili e modeling tools provided by thed-pariy
wendon 1o detemine Tair values of doreign (non- LS ) securities. Foe these
PuEpases, any movement in the applicabie reference index or instrument

(" meie Migoer” | between the eaber doe of the applicatls fesmign market
anad the NYSE Clone may be deemed 1o be 2 significant everd, prampting the
appheatn of the pricrg moded (sfectively resulting in daily fair

waluations). Forsign exchanges may parm tradeg i foosign (non-Ll s )
equity seaunities on days when the Trust is rof open for business, which may
g5l in & Fund's portlelio irvesiments Being afecied when Unihalders oe
unabie to buy of 4l unitt

Seniof wecred Naating rate icans tor which an actie fecondary markel et
1o a reliable dégree wall ba valued ot the mean of the last avadable badlast
griced in the matket fo such loand, s proveded by & Pricing Sernce. Sencr
seced Tioatmyg rate koans bor which an active secondary marked does not
i o & relbable degres will be vabeed at faill valye, which is intended o
Sxprommate markel value. (o valeeg & sersor setuind loatsg eate ban at
Hair valur, the factom considernd may include, but ane not limited 1o, the
follewing: (2] the crediewerthiness of the bemower and any imemedize
participants, [b) the 1eims of the koan, (o] iecent prices in the market ot
samilar kgans, if any, and {d) regent prices in the marked for intinements of
simalar qualty, rate, penod wrtil next nbeset rate feset and matusity

intes Lt s veakoed in correncies othes tham the functional omency

ol a Fund are conserind te the funciional cumency using cachange rates
cmAined hise F'.l:':l\.g Sarices. A5 A result, the value of nach vesiments and,
i qurmn, thie WY of the Fund's units may be atfeced by changis i the value
al curencies. in relation 1o the funcBional oamency. The valie of irmeesiments
traded in forelgn surkets or dencminated in cunencies oter than

The functional curmency may be alfected sigrifcantly an o day that the Tnnt is
mat open for busineys. As a tesult, 1o the extent that a Fund holds Toreign
{non-U 5} isvesiments, the value of those mwvestments may change 81 times
when you canhal purchate, redeem o exchisge units and the valie of uach
rvesimants will be refiected in the Fund’s next caloulated NAY

Eeweestments for which market geotes or market based vakeations ate not
iy avai able de valied &1 Far v da determined m good laith by

the Manager or peisons acting at ther direction. The Marager kat adapted
methids o valuing setuntes and athe: assels in arcumsiances whede
mmarket quiotes are not madily availabls, and has celegated 1o PIMCO the
responsibdity tor applying the fair valiasion methods In the event that market
eoies of rarker besed valuations are not readdy availzble, and fe ssouity

el Pt | Wy 31, 190
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or 3552t cannot be vadkped pursuant toa |'|"-\1l'l-]l]l’."' approwed valuabon
methed, the walos of the secunty or et will bo determined in good faith by
the Valization Commitiee. Markel quoies are considered not readly svalable
n Ehoomatances where thers is an absence of current o rellabie rarket-
hosed data (g, trade information, bidiek slomation, rdcatte marke
quotatsiors {"Broker Cuates”), Piiong Services” phcesh, inciuding whene
ey, ociut aler the dides of (he releaant marked, bul gool b the KT
Close, that materially affect the vales of the Fund's securitees oo asets, In
addition, market quotes ate considered not seadly avadable when, dus to
enlracRnaly Ciitimatances, the sachengss of maikers on which the
socutities trade do not open Bor trading for the enting cay and no ather
markcet prices are aviiable. The Manager is responsible for menitoring
ugrhianl svents that may mstctially tlect the vilued ol e Fund s ieturtied
o assety and lor gedeimining whather the value of the applicable seourites or
arssets shoukd be reevaluated in light of such significant events

Witirs & Fund e Aar waluston oo dedssmming thee value ol & portiolio secunty
ar other asset for punposes of calculating it MAY, wch imestmants will nat
e griced on the basis of quotes from the primary market in which they are
trasche, Bwil risthier mary be prded by angther rathed (hal the Manager o
pessons acting at their deection believe reflects fair value. Fair valuation may
tequine subjective determenations aboul the value ol a secuity. Wide

the Truss's poboy is inbended to sl inoa calculation of & Fund™s NAY that
fauly refiocts sapunty values as of B time of picing, the Trust casmal prsune
that fak values derenrined by the Klanager of persons aing at their
direction would accyraiely reflect the price that a Fund could obtsn for a
wecutity il it were i dspode of that seowity as of the tme of pricing [for
sutance, in 8 forced o dtrassed sale] [P prce used By & Fund may differ
{rom the walue that would be realized A the seourities wene sold

{1 Fair Walue Hiewarchy U 5 GAAP dewcribes fair valse as the price that

& - Fund woudd receive: 0o Sell an et of pay po tranlis a liak ity o i afderly
Iramaction behween market parmcipants af the mexunesent dato. It
estoblesbes a fai value leerachy that peicritizes inputs o vahation methods
and requires diaclodure ol the far value feetarchy, separately lor each major
category of assats and Eabilies, 1hat segregates fair value measimments into
bevels (Lowel 1, 2, o 30 The inguts od -I-eL'f.r.‘-'Jr.-gr used for walu i) SE0UDes
ate hot fdeddardy &0 indiabon ol e raks sssotuded with swesting mn hede
woecuritios. Leveds 1, 2, and 3 of the Ear walue hievarchy are defined as foliow:

= Levef 1—0uanied pnces in acive mickets of exchanges for idenical assets
A abslitiey

# Level I—Significant ather obasrvaiile inputs, which may include, but sre
nat fimited to, quated prices for similar asse s or Habilities i maikets B ane
aitive, quoted prices for identical o similar assets or iabalites in markets fed
afo not sctive, inputs other than quoted prices that ace obeenvablo for the
awets or babildies (such as interest rades, peld curves, volatidhies, prepayment
speeds, b severities, creda ks and default ranes) o other market
comobonated inputs

® Lyl 3==Significant tnobienvabie irputs based on B bast imformation
avaikadla in the drcumstances, 10 the exent obsanable inpuss ale nod
svallatle, whith may intlude stsumptons made by the Manages or pesons
#cting at their direction that see used in determining the fair valos of
frresiments

in atcordance with the requaements of U S GRAF, e ampurs of pamibfens
n and out of Level 3, if material, are dediosed in the Kates o Sdhed de of
brvestrents Tor sach respective Fund

For fair vabuatons using signilcant unctsersable nputs, L5, GAAP nequings
10 dscioae transfers into and out of Level 3 of the fair yalue Bierarchy and
purchases and issues of Level 3 assets aad Rabilies during the period
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Adduonally, U5 GANF requnes quantitatre sdormaticn regasding the
snpificant unobsaivable inputs wied i the determination of lair value of
assety or liabiities categorized as Level 3 in the fair value higraschy. in
sccordence with the requeemests of U 5. GAAR, a far vahie hierarchy, and i
mmatefial, detads of figribcant unckhervable inpats, have been incloded in the
Mates to Setedule of rvestments for each respective bund

il Valuation Tochaiquas and the Fair Value Hisrarchy

Laval 1 and Level 7 wadisg sssats and trading liabilitios, st fair vales The
wilustion methods (ar “techniques ™) and significant nputs used in
daterminieg the fair valees of portiolio secutites or gther assets and labilgies
categorizad as Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair vatue hiesandhy are as foll ows

e incorre securities. inchuding conporase, comvertible and maesicipal bands.
&d noted, U5, government agendes, LS. treajury obligetions, soversign
Epues, Bank loans, corverbible prefered sequiities and nen-U%. bonds are
mermally valued on the bass of quotes obtsined from brokes and dealers or
Pricing Seraices that use broker-dealer guotabons, repored trades or
saluation evtimates Traun thei inkema pricing mudels The F|||_|'|;| Capies’
wienal modes ube inputs that ate obrsenable such a4 daeer detinh, setest
rates, wald curses, prepaymant speaids, orodit rikvpenads, default rates and
qued pices for similar assets. Securties thar use similar valuanon
Techmiques &nd ingrits o described above e categonzed as Lene 7 of the
Hair value hiprarchy

Foed income sequnties perchased on a delayed-delwery basis.of a5 a
fepuiifdse commmateen] i & sak-buybeck ansaction aie mearked to maiket
daily yntil setticmend at the forward settloment date and ang categoriped a6
Legnl 2 of the g value heaicky

Mongage-relamed and assef-backed Securites. are iAually miued a5 sepatate
tranches, o dasies, of vecumities withs wach deal. These secoribied aie aha
momally walued by Pricing Senvioes that wie beoker-dealer quotations,
Epormed wades. of walugtton estimates from their mesmal plicing models. The
pricing modeh lor theve seomities incally consider anche-level abtributes,
cutnest market data, estimated cash Fows and market-based yaeld spepads fo
wach tranche, and incoeporste deal collatel perlarmance, a5 dvaslahis
Mortgage-related and asset-backed secarities. that use simiar valuation
echniques and inputs as described above a'e cabegonzed as Leve! 2 of the
Hair value hisrarchy

Common siocks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and Brardial dervatie
irstaments, such as futures contradts, QYIS AN WAITANTS, of optiens on
futiined that aoe traded om & natenal securied exthange, bin Stited i e
East reported wafe ne settlement price on the day of waluation T the extert
These sedutines ale actdedy Traded and valisaron sdustments are nod appled,
they ate categerized i Level | of the Tair valee hisrardy

reeptmants valosd (desce na ted) i furfencsss othet thas the funclional
currency of & Fund are coeverted 1o the furtional curency using exchangs
rates [currendy spot e lorward rates) obtsred bom Pricing Senvces Ad a
rosull, B BN of 3 Fund’s umitt may be atfocted by changes in the valug of
cunences in relabon to ke fundional curency. The value of seotes traded
i ot eign markels of dersorenatied o currences obbes than the lunciona
currescy miny be affecied sigrificantly on a day that the Trust is net open foe
Butinass Valuation adjistments may be apphad 1o certain secunties that are
sobely baded of 4 loregn exchange 1o atcoar fof e market moavement
kbetween the dose of the foreign market and the NTSE Clase. These sequrites
e valued useg Pricing Sercices that censider the corelation of the tading
patter of the faspign seourity 1o the intradiny trading in the U 5. markets for
ryesiments. Secuntses wsng these valuston adiusiments are categornzed as
Lewel 2 al the fim value hiecarchy, Prefered securities and other equiies

el Pt | Wy 31, 190
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traedec on maciee markets or valued by reference 1o simdar instruments ane
st categonped s Lewed 7 of the lar value hierarchy

Equity-imiced securities ane valoed by reletencing tee Last repored sale or
setifeneni price of the linked relesenced equity on the day of valuation
Forosgn exchange adpatments are applied 1o the b2 repoifed peice to
convert the linked equity's trading currency o the confract's setifing curmency
Thesie imestments ale categorieed & Level 2 of the Taw value hieraidy

I tments o feguisied open-end mument companie {eths than ETF5)
well he wvalued hased upan the NAYS ol sueh imestments and are categoized
a5 Level | of the falr valee herarchy. Invessments in unregistersd open-end
rvetiment campaniss wll be caleolated bated upon the NAVs of such
mestmentt and ae considesed Loval | prowvidad that the NAW: we
observable, calodated daily and are the vabue at which both purchases and
saie will b conducled

Equity exchange-traded options and over the coumier financial deratie
nstruments, such as forwarnd fareign cumenty contracts and options contracts,
deshe Uit wakus from undelying adset prices, indices, relerende rales, and
gther inputs or & combination of thew factors. These contracts ane r.:-*'nall_l'
valued on the basis of quotes obtained from a quotatien repomieg system,
esiableahed market meten of Prong Senices inormally delermaned as of the
HWYSE Clonel Drp-rndlrn] gn the producit and the: bermis of the Traaadion,
linancial destrative instruments cas be vakoed by Pricing Senices weing a
vt o techrerpees, including umulabon preing model The prong models
use s Ehat are obaerved from actively quoted markets such a5 guoted
ances, msuer dersls indoes, hudlask spreads, indeses] rates, imgried
wolatibtied, yiold cunved, drndends aad exchange fabidi. Fanandisl derriative
enstruments that use similar valuation techniques and inputs a5 desoribed
abiorre are cabegorzed a Livel 2 of the lain vake hisaichy

Cervrally cheased fwiags and v Bhe counber Swaps dermen Thest value from
underlying asset prices, rediogs, rolmence rates, and ather inputs or &
ombination of these lacoes. They ae vabued using a broter-geae bid
quatation of on market-based prices provided by Prcicg Services {normally
determined asof the NYSE Close). Contraly dleaned vwaps.and cver the
Counber sinaps can be valued by Pricing Senvices useg a series ol technigues,
ndludng simadation pricing models. The pricing model may use inputs that
are obsened from actvely quoted markiets sach as the cvernight index swap
tabe (NS |, LIBDA forwaid rile, mlenkal idhed, wld curees ghd chedd
spreads. These setwities aie catmgoeized o Lewel 2 of the lair value hipandsy

Lewel 3 trading nssets and wrading liahilities, of fair valee Wher o fan
waluation method i spplied by the Mansger that uses signilicani
unobseryabin mputy, Fvestmonts. will S priced by o method tht

the Marsger o perscem adting at their direcion befiees reflects {ak value and
e categociped o Livel 3 of the far value hietaichy. The wiksation
echnigques and signdicant irpuss used in delermineng The Lair vinkoss ol
portfolio ausets and labdities cateqorined 24 Level 3 of the Tali value hismichy
afe o follow:

Prooy pricing peocedunes wt the hase price of a bxed mcome secanty and
subsequently adjust the price praportionally (o markes value changes of a pre-
derevmined secuiity deemed bo be compaiable & duiabon, genetally a Ll 5
Treasery or sovereign note bated on country of msuance The base prce may
e a beoker-dealer quote, Transachon price, oe an intemal value as deived by
anakia ol matket data The base price of the secuilty may be redet on a
peviodic bass based on the availabilty of mariot data and procederss
appioved by the Vatston Commines Significant changes m the
unobsrvabiy inputs of t promy gricing piooess (the base price) would e
n deect and proportional .'hangu..'.ht fairvakie of the secunty, Thee
secufities are canegorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

i third party evaluated vendor pring 15 ned available or not deemed 1o be
mdicatme of Bir walor, the Manager may elect 1o obLain Broker Qucied
drectly from the beoker-dealer or passed thiough from a Sind-party vendor
b he event that far vakue o baded upon & Snigie sourced Broker Quale,
thise securities arg categorioed a5 Level 3 of the fair valus hisanchy, Broker
Duotes are typicatly teceied from estabished market partiopants Althouigh
ndependently received, the Manage: does nod hage the Liansparency 1o veew
the underhying inputs which wepport the market quotation. Sagrficant
changes in the Broter Quote would have direct ard propartional changes in
the fiair vahoe of the security

Shert-tem debt imtrureents {suck &4 commertial paper} kaving & remisining
mmadurity of B0 days or bess ma,ll;\-g vakmd at amorfized oo, o long a5 the
aroatized o4l value of sk shorr-teem deln mstruments (s appr oumately e
sarme g bhe Tkt value of the imtnesent o diteimined withaut the uwe of
amortized oost vluation. These secarities are categodized i Level 2 or Level
3 of the (ni value hetrechy depending on the source of the bage price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

i{n) Delayed-Dedivery Transactsons Certan Funds may purchase or sell
secatities on a deiayed-defvery basis. These transadtion irvole a
commitment by a Fund b purchae o sell tecortied lor & pretetermined grice
o yiedd, with payment and delivery taking place beyond the custamary
seftiemend peiod. When delayed-deirvery iransactiond sre outifandng,

& Fund wil designate or receive a5 ooflateral Bguid assets in an amouet
sulhicient ba mest the pundhade pie of respecine ebligations, When
parthasing a security on a celayed-delvery bashs, a Fund assumes the rights
aredl ik ol ownership of the secunty, intloding 1he ik of pnce 55d peld
fluctwasons, and takes such fluctuations inks account when detemining it
M A Fund may dispose of or renegotiate @ delayed-deliery Dansacion
aftet it s enbered imto, which may resslt in & 1ealzed gain o less. Whan

& Fund has sold & security on & delayed-delveny bass, the Fund does mot
paticipate in hatue gains and losses with respect 1o the seourity,

ib} Inflation-Indexed Bonds. Cerman Funds may imest n eflation:incexed
Bandy. inflation-indexed Basds are ised meome sacunte whose pnee -1
walue s perodically adjuited by the rate of irflation. The mtevest rate an
these bonds is ge~erally Tued at issuance af a rate kover than rypica] bonds
Dt the e of an odlvtion< ndexsd bond, Fowever, mbedes! vaill b paid
based on @ principal value, which is adfusted orinflation. Amy crease ot
darease in the principal @raum of as inflason.indesad bond will ba incduded
& imiet sl income on the Staeménts of Operatons, even though imasions do
mot receive their principal until maturcy. Repayment of the origingl bond
principal upon maturty (as sdjusted fot inflation) = quaianteed in the case of
U5 TIFS, For boodh that do rol provide a simlar guarantes, the ad;usbed
wingipa! walue ol the bond repaid at maturicy may be less than the oigingd
oringipel

io) Loan Participat: s i and Orgi Certain Funds may
rvest in diredt deba instruments which are interests in amaunts owed 1o
enders of lending spndhoates by cotporae, govemmentad, of othed bormvers
A Fund's investment in laans may be in the hatm of participations in leans or
assaprements of all o a portion of koans from thicd paries oe imvestments i o
eeiginations of lvans by the Fand A loan & alien adminsiened by a bank or
ather fimangal institution (the “lender™ | that acts a5 agent far 2l holders. Tha
apent admisiers the terms of the bnan as specified in the loan agreement

& Fund may invest in multiple $eres of manches of 2 loan, which may have
warying terms and camy different associated rivis. Svheen @ Fund purchases
asigaements from lenders it aoquives direct rights against the borowers of the
cany Thess loany may include péirbopated n bridge loan, whch ane ioans
Jaken ol I.r, Borroyems o o shaort |:¢'|u:|:'l'|3.'|:-i|:.|llp levs than cne :,:lal]
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pending avangement of more permanent financng throegh, for examgle, the
rsuance ol bonds, frequently high yeeld bonds issuad for the purporse of
anquisitions

T types of loans and related irvestments in which the Funds may imest
nichud s, dmoeg slhers, sesior e, suboidnated loans [moudng second
e Inans, B:Motes and mezeaning boara), whole Inans, commennial real
estate ani cther commercal loans and siructeed e, A Fed may
angeale laans of soquee deed inereits in loans thiough prmany loan
distributiorys andlos in puivate tramsactons. 15 the case of suboedinated loans,
thers may be significant indebiadness rankirg ateac of the bomowe:'s
ablsgstion to the holder of wuch & loan, nduding in the event of the
pomoser's insolvency, Mezzaning loans are typitally secured by @ pledie of
&N ety midredl n the momgage boimiwer that owns the feal es1ate 1ather
than an intevesd in a mofgage

irreestrents i doans may nduce efunded loan commitments, which are
centrariaal ebligations fa funding. Urdunded loan commiiments may indede
iwctving ciedit faclites, whath may chligate & Fund 10 swpply sdditianel cib
1o the bomower on demand. Uinfunded losn commitmants regresent 8 futum
obibgation i full, even though & percentage of the comminted amount may
nal e ufiied by the bormower When inveiting o a ioan partiopation,

a Fund hun the right to receive payments of primopal, inserest and any fees to
wieth i eatithed only fram the lender seling the hoan agresment ane only
upnn receipt of payments by the lender from the bpmower. & Fund may
teceie 3 commiment fee based oa the undiawn portian of the arderhng
bre of credit portion of & laen I ceetain orcumstanded, & Fund may recense &
penaity few upon the prepayment ol akoan by a bormower. Fest samed or
piead are reconded 35 & componest of interest INCOMe or iInterest Sipense,
rspeg tvely, on Lhe Statementy ol Opevations. Usfunded loan cammidmenis
are reflected a6 a Rabiity on the Statemenis of Assets and Liabifities

|} Marigegn-Ralstad and Othor Asset-Backed Seceriting Certen Funds
My imvest in morgage-redaied and other asset-backed securines that direcly
o indirectly represent a participation in, of are sacurec by and payatde fom,
boans on real property. Morigage-related securities ane created from pools of
esideial of commercisl morigage loand, including martgase loany made by
wanvings and loan institations, morigage bonkers, commarcal banks and
oithatrs Thase secuntes peonide & monthly payemert whach conalsts of both
snterest and pnncipal Intefest mary be debermined by fed or adprtable rates
The rate of prepayments on underling morigages wil affect the peice and
welatility of & moigege-telaied sacusity, and may have the e of
shortering of extending the efloctve duzation of the securnty relstre to what
was #iipated at the fime of purchase. The timely payment of prindpal and
mntmiest of ceitan morigage-telsted secuiilien & guaranteed with the full fagh
and cedit of the U 5, Governmest Pogls omated and quaranteed By mcn
gversenenial ssuers, including govemment-sponsaned coiparations, may be
supponed by vacious Toren of insuranoe oo guarantess, bun thene can be no
gsurance Ehal privatn msurers of quaraston can meet thes obligations under
the nsursnce pelicies or gaaranies anangements. Wany of the rigks of
eraesling in morigage-relabed securilies securad by commencial mortgags
s reflect the eflects of local and other ecomomic conditions on rea estate
markets, the abality of tenants 1o make bease payments, and the abality of a
property B0 afteact and setain tenanty Thede secuntiey may be less liquad and
may exhibét greater price volatiicy than ether types of mongage-related o
athér ridel-Backed secunites. Other addet-backed secunted are dreated nom
mary types of assets, induding, bt nat imited o, auto loans, acoounts
recenabde. such as cedi cand recermbles and hospRal aocount reoenabiles,
hame squly loans, student lasnt, boat [oans, mokile hame laand,
recreatioral vehicle loars, manufactured housing loans, aiceaft leases,
computer leases and syrdicated hank inans. The Fund may imvest in any level

al the capitsld struciure of & Baodr of morigage-backed o suset-backed
secarilies, including the equity of “firet lodd” tranche

{o) Collsteralized Morsgage Obligations ["CRADR) are deb obl gationd of &
legal entity that are collateralzed by whole morigage kases of privede
rroitgage bonds and deeded inta classes. CMO4 ane stractured nbo multiphe
classes, often referred 1045 "trandws”, with each dass bearing a different
stated maes ity and enttled 1o a different schaile foi payments ol phrcns
& mietesl, mcluding prepayments. CAWIOS may be less hqued and may exnhibit
greater price wolalil gy than ather fypes of morigage-celated or asset-hacked
Seuined

i} Siripped Mortgege-Backed Securities (“SME5") are dernative mult-
clrit morhgace securities. SWBS ae wually structured wath bwo cdlasses that
recerse different proportions of the inlesest and principad distributions ona
sl ol morgage saets. An SMES will fuver ohe dass That will moeeee ol of
tho imderest (the interess-ondy oo IO class], whele the other dass will reocive
the estite pincipal [the a'iminal-r.r'},- o PO daws) Pa',men:i. eecpree Tor
B0 aip anclugded i mees indome on he Satements of Opetalions Bedlrse
i principal will be recetved o the maturity of an 10, sdfuatments ane made
10 e coil of thie secunly on & monttey bass until matunty. Thewe
afpraments ane included in inleest income oo the Matements of Dperations
Paryenerts recefved fou PO5 are teated as reductions bo the cost and par valce
ol thee securities

igh Colk lired Dbt Oblsg |"C00%" )} include Collateralited Rond
Cirbgatiom " CB0s"], Collateralined Loan Obigations { "CLOs™) and othe:
sirvilarly senactured secunties. CE08 and CLOS a8 Types of ased-hacked
secutied. A CBO 14 & bust which i bacited by & dversibed poal of high imk,
balow irvestrent g’i{h’ fioed income securities. A CLD = 3 trest Fpecally
oollaterabzed by & pool al leams, whith may include, amang ather, dometic
ad {oreign consoe socured igans, senior wastuind ko, and subordinate
coiparaie bnans, ind |'I|'p:1-1:|r-. that may e rated halow invesiment qrack or
equivalent urraled lpans. The risks of an investménd in & COO depend langely
o the type of the milateral securties and the class of the (DO in which

& Fund inveszs. In-addition b the normal riges assocated with fined income
securilies discussed chewheng in the neport and the Fundy” Offening
Memorandum (e.q., prepayment nak, credi riak, liquickty rise, market risk,
sinuctural risk, lagal 1k and interest rate rik (which may b exscerbated
the imtetest rate payahle on a stnuctured tmanding changes hased an
matiples of changes in intecest rates or inversely to changes in interest
salesd), CBO0s, CLOs, and ather CO0x carty additonal g mdloding bt ot
Emitad to, (i) the sowsdhdity that datibutiens Yom coflateral secuties will nat
b2 adequate to make interest or other payrents, (il the quality of the
oolater sl may decline in value or defalt, {in) the sk that a Fund may imest
m R0y, Cl0s, or other LDy that e subondinabe bo other classes, axd {nl
the compies struchwe of the ssouity may not be § iy urdersinod at the fime
of imvisrment aod my prociuoe degutes vith The Msuer or unixpeciid
reesiment redts

i) Parymasd In-Kind Securitien Certain Fuscs may imest in payment in-kind
Lecutines  TFIKS b PRCS may give e isasr the opton i @ach nem@st
paymierd date of making interest payments in either cass andlor additonal
debt secwities. These additional debt serurities uwually Bave the same teims,
wchadniag matuity &8t and meiedl iabed, and sidbtuted kS o the
ariginal borghs, The daily market guotations of the eriginal bonds may include
the aocrued interest (relemed toas @ "dity pce ™) and 18quire @ pro rata
afanment lrom the unnedlied sppletiabon of dipieaation on ivestent
10 interesd recetvable on the Statements of Assets and Lakilties

(i) Rostricted Securities Ceran Funds may Bold invesiments Bhat are
Subpet 10 hegal of coniradiual iesirichions on tetake Thete sedutitmes miy be
004 peivately, kel may ke required %o be mgistered or exenated from such

e agr | Moy 31, 0 L
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regisiration before being sold to the public. Prevate placement securities ane
gererally contidered 10 be rettricted. Diaposal of restrected imees imen s may
mha tima-consuming negotiations and expenses, and prompt sale at an
secepiable price may be diffcuy to scheeve. Restricted mvesiments keld by
the Funds ot May 31, 2020, at appficable, ane disclosed in the Nobes to
Suhvedule of Investments

() Stuctured Noted Certiain Funds may invest i stiociured notes and ather
related Fsiraments, which arne prw MEH' 'lEg‘DIIdI.Ed debi bﬂqtlll}"n n whith
the princigal and or interedt i determined by referénce 1o the parfarmance ol
a benchmark asset, market of intarest rate (an "embeddad indea™), such a5
selected sevaiities, an inden of securiiies o specBed inieieat 1ales, of the
difterential perfosmance af tave asiets or markots, such as indemes refiecting
honds. Struchured ivinements may be ssued by conpaations, n:i-..rlnr;
hanks, 2 well as by governmenial agensdes. The terea of such stnecthued
nsmuments nommally provide that their pringipal andfor mterest payments ang
10 b adjusted upwarcs of dowTrwasds (Bt ondnardy nog belcrm pera) o
illect changes o the embeddad ndex while the Strotluned ndtiuments e
;Julv.a':dr-g Aa anesult, the mdeiest andlor princpal payments that mey be
mate on & siructured product may vaey wadely, depending on a vasiety of
lactors, including the valatiiey of the smbedded index and the affect of
changes in the embedded index an prindpal andior imerest payments

{lh U5, G nt Agencies or G wl-Ep | Enterprises
Ceriain Funds may imeest in securities of U5, Gevernment agencies or
govemement-iponsoted emepiees. U5 Gowemment Secutilies ans
oblgaticrrs of and, in certain cases, guaranteed by, the U5 Gowernmend, ity
BoenCe of instrumernabties Some LS. Gevernment securites, such as
Trearsury alls, nabes and biandh, and securties guaravieed by the Gosrnment
Hational Mortgage Associaton ("GNMA™ or "Ginnie Mae™ ], are supporied
try thee fusll Fich and credit of the LS. Gevermment; ethers, such o thede of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, ae supporied by the right of the issue to
ooz from the U 5. Department of the Tieasury {the U5, Treasury™}; and
athers, such a3 those of the Federsl Natonal Merigege Associstion [*FRMAL"
ar “Fannie Mag ™}, are tupported by the discretionary authonty af e U 5
Govarnmend to purchase the aJenty’s abbgatons. U % Govermement secuities
my include feid coupan secuiited, which do ol dislebele miEel o6 &
gumrent basis and tend 1o be subject to a greater visk than interest-paying
secutities. of similas matwities

Governmen-rifated gaaranions |Le . not batked by the tull faih and c2edn of
the U5, Goyveenment) include PNME and the Tedesal Home Loan r.'crh_;.:n;.:-
Coaporation {*FHLMC " or “Freddie Mac™). FNAMA = 2 government-sponaceed
conponation. FNRMA porchases comveybonal §i.¢, nol inguntd of Guaranieed by
any governmend agency) rescential movigages lnom a ksl of approsed
sefler/vervicers which include state and {ederally chartered seangs and loan
agociations, mctual siwings banks, commercial banks and credit wnicns and
martgagpe baniers. Pavs:thigugh secusties issued by A are guararteed as
1 Ly plyrsnt af priopal and interedt by FNMA, bt are il backed by
thw fudl Faith sl eredit of the LS, Government. FINLMC lswes Participatian
Certificates (" PCs" ), which are pass-through secuntes, each representing an
undhbded imeest in a pool of resideniial morigeges FHLMC puaranees the
1imely payment of mierest and uitmate collectns of princpal, but PCs e not
Biacked by tha foll faith and credit of the LS. Government

b b 2019, under the Single Security Initizthve, FRMA and FRLMC stared
msuing Uindorm Martgage Bacoed Securities ("LUIMBS" | in place of their
current ofedings of TRA-slgible securities. The Single Sequrty intiative seeks
1o suppet the overall boudty of the 184 markes and alagrs the
characteristics of A& and FILMC certidicates, The eflects that the Smghe
Security Initiatve may have an tee market for TRA and athor mortgage
Badhed Lefuri ied Ale uNDETAR

Roll-Brring strategies can be used wheve a Fund seeks o extend the
expitalion of matunty of a potihon, such 25 a TRA wecwity on a0 wndering
e, lry closing out the position before expiration and opening a new
persitian with respect 1o substantially the same underlpng asset with a latet
wrpration cate THA securitiel purchaied o sold ame eflected oo the
Seataments of Assets and Liabilities as an assat o liallity, respectnehy

{1 When-lseed Trardactions Ceilas Tunds dy piichdse of Sel seiuitie
o a when-ssued basis These transactons ane made conditionally because a
security, although authorized, has not yeq been avoed in the merker
Trardactions 30 puicksss of sell seoxties an & when-roued Badii imgohe
acommitment by a Fund to purchase or sl these securities for a
predetermined price o yield, with payment and delvery taking place beyond
The cushomary witkement perod A Fond may el when-fsued wountes
befiore they are delivered, which may resuit in a realized gain or losy

im| Bank Obligations Bank obiigations in which a Fund may invest inchude
cedtilfates of depasit, bankei” scceplancey, and [ timee cheping
Certificates of deposit are negatiable certificates issued against funds
depadited i & commencial bask Bor & definile periad of time and eairing &
specied retum Bankers accepances ane negotisbie dratts oo bills of
enghange, nommally drawn by an importer oo exporter te pay feo specific
srerchandise, whith ae “aucepted” by a bank, meaning, in eflfecy, that the
bark unconditionally agrees 1o pary the tace walue of tw insttument on
maturity. Fived time deposits are bank oblgatons payable at 2 stated
maturity date and bearing interest 21 & linsd rale, Fsd time depodied may be
withckmwn on demand by the invesior, but may be subject fo rarly
withckawal penalties which vary depanding upon market conditions and the
Termamang maatutity of Ui ohligation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRAMNSACTIONS

The fellowing decioseres contain information om the Funds” ability 1o lend or
Brainoes Cash of SeCurilies 10 the ecien] peimined under the Dfeing
Memarandum, which may be viwed g1 bomowing or financing bansactions
By thee Funds. The lecation of these instiuments is desoribed befow. Fora
chetaslid diriciption al credit and counterpaty ks (Fal can be rssociabd
with Bornowings and other financing transactions, phease sop Nole 7,

e incipal Risks

in) Repurchase Agroaments Certas Funds mey ergage 0 reporchase
appements. Undes the tevms of & typical repurchase agresmant,

& Fund parchases an undeslying debrt ctfigation (coRaedal] subject v an
abimated ol the deder 10 fipatthass, and & Fubd 1o redel, the sthiation it
& acyeed-upan praoe and fime bn an open matunty TepuThase agreemernt,
Thede 15 no pre-denesmined 1epunchese cas and the agresment (an be
ferminated by the Fund o counfesparty at amy bme. The market value of the
colateval ment be equal to or sxcesd the total amoend of the iepuichass
oigatons, ndudng irterest. Repurchase agieements, intluding aoorsed
irtermt, are included on the Statoments of Maaety and Liabilsies. interest
earmed is recorded as a component of interest income on the Statersents of
Opecations | paieck ol increased demand for colaserel, & Fund may pay a
tee bor receipt of collateal, winich may resdt i imees! popense 1o the Fasd

{b} Reverse Repurchase Agresmnonty Cerinm Funds may enter into revesse
fepuithada aqreements. b b seveisa repuichate ajtesment, a Fured difivers 3
secutily i exchange faf cadh 1o & nancial inshitution, 15 csurerpaity, with
& BTetar agreemant 10 repurchase the same or webwiantially the same
securtily o an agresd upan proe dnd dabe 15 sh open MAtunty everte
reputchase agreement, thete & no pre-determingd repurchane date and the
ayreement can be terminated by the Fund oo cosnserparty at any time

o Fund i entithed ta recen incpal and inlsnest paymenty, i any, made on
tha security dednsirgd bo the coorrteiparty dering the térm of Ehe sgreemant
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Cash tecened in ewchange for securities deliered plus aconeed interes
payments bo be made by a Fund (o coenterpartes are reflaciod ot a labslity
an tre Statemants of Assets and Liabilities. Inberest payments mads by a Fund
1o cournilEiparties &fe reoonded & & Componert of irteeesl sxpange on the
HMatomerts of Opecitions. i pedcds of ncreased demand Tor the secunty,

a tund may 1ecere a fee for e of the secunty by the countarparty, which
sy resull i nderesl income 19 & Fund. A Fund will seqiecane assels
drirrmined to be Bguid by PINCO o will gthermse cove its cbiigations
undes revesse repurchace HFeaments

{e) Sele-Bwybacks Cortain Fonds may enter into financing ransactions
refered 1o a3 "sale-buybady’, A sale-buyback finandng bransacton consists
ot a sale of a secunity by @ Fund to a finencial institution, the counberparty,
with 8 smulaneods agteeErent 1o repuichase the wame or sulstantally the
same wowrity 81 an apeed-upon pre and date, A Fard rnol entsled to
receie prndpal and inenest payments, if any, made on the secaunty sold te
the cousetpaity durmg thi e of the agnsement. Thie sdhoed-upon
prodeeds for sacurities to be mepurdhised by a Fund ane reflected as a Lability
on the Statements of Assets and Liabsdities. & Fund will recogrize net inozeme
sepresenied by the prce differentisl Between the price receved far the
tramsfesred security and the agreed-upan rpurchase pace. This is commanly
seleined o as the ‘piice |]I-q.' A price dios vomssis ol (i) the ||.ueq-.u-e Hilsiesl
and inflationany income adjustments, il any, a Fund would hawe otheraise
recpreedd had the saoumity nof beem wold and (] the negotiated fmancing terms
between a Fund and oourte:parny. Faregone interest and infatonasy Income
aduntments, i sy, ane recorded & components of intenest ncome on the
Statements. of Operations. Inferest payments based wpon negatiated financing
1B made by & Fund oo Counierparised ans rectrded s a comparant af
wrimest experne on the Statemebs of Opmations I peeod of nceased
desnaned for the secutity, & Furd may receie a fee for wse of the secunty by
the coumsteepaity, which may resdt m mdemest income 8o a Fund. & Fund will
segregate assets determined fo bie Bquid by FMCD or waill othenwise cover it
obligations under sale-buybach ransaction

{dh Shoet Sales Coitan Funds may entes inlo o wies bamacton., Shert
sadey ane transactions in which the Fund selli a secumty St il may nol own

A Funed muay make shor sales ol securiies 1o (1) offset podential dedines in
kang pasibons in Umils secutites, (=) %0 ntrease the fembilty of the Fund,
{ii) Tor Ewsstmeat retum, (ref as part of & risk arhitrage wrategy, and {v] as
ozt al s eveall portlobo ranagement sirategies irvahing the we of

detmra tve indtiuments When a fund engages in & shart sale, it my botrow
the security soid short and delwer it B0 the counterparty, The Fand will
ordinarily hawe 10 pay 8 fee or premium 1o boerow A seounity and be obigaced
16 regiay the lender ol the security sy drmdend ai infeesd thad accues on the
secunity duting the percd of the loan Securities scld in sherl sale raradiions
afed the dridend af irceest payable on sickh wcanties, i any, are tellecied o
péyabile for whan daled on the Ststements of Assets and Lishdses. Shor sales
expose the Fund te the risk that it wall be required to cover its short pesition
al i tres wihesh 1he secunty of other assel hed appeediatisd @ willue, thus
sesudting in losses bo the Fund A short sale is "against the bax”

the Fueid hodds in s porifolo or has the TG D s ihe setiiily solid
shoit, or securites idestcal to the secutity sold hatt, o1 no addronal cost

& Fund will he subject to additional mks to the eent that it engages in shatt
ialed that are nat ~agaimt the ba ™ A Fune's loss on a shon sale could
theoretically be unlimited in cases where the Furd i unabie, for whatever
reason, to chyse out its shom pasition

6. FINAMNCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The holigwing disclosures convtain mformaton on how and why the Fards use
financial destrative instruments and fesw Bnancial denvatese minements
affact the Funds” finandial position, results of operations asd cash flows. The

lecation and fair value amounts of these instruments om the Statements of
Avieti and Liabilises ard the net realized gam (iod] and nel dhusge in
unipalized appredabion (depeediation) on the Siatements of Operations, each
eategorized by type of francial derdvatiee coniract ard related risk exposure,
oo rckaded in o table in the Notes 1o Schedule ol Imvestments. The financial
dernaative instruments cutstanding as of period end and the amounts of nat
tealred gan [los) snd ned change nuniealised sppdeCstion |deplecanon)
o financial dervative instruments durrg the peviod, a3 dsclosed in the
Mates o Scedide of irvestments, serve a5 indicatons of the volere of
Trnanoiad derivaine activity hod the Funds

i{n} Forward Foreign Conency Contracts Cortam Tunds may engage in
forward loreign curendy contracts in connection with seftiing planned
pahases of safes of secLribes, Do Pigfige the CLITEnCy BEposLse adsoliaed
with some of all ol a Funed's sequittes or o pait of an invesimend stralegy, &
forward forsge cumenty covract i an agaement between two parmes to bay
ad el @ eurtency 818 581 price on & fulure date The market value ol 2
Sorware fansgn curency contract fluctuates with changes in Toreign cuttenty
echange rates. Forward foreign currency comtracts are marked to matket
cadly, and the change & walué & reconded by & Fund a5 an weelized gain of
foss. Reabzed gains o losses ave equal 1o the differenice batwesn the value of
ithe coniract #1 the tse L was opeted and e value al the tine il wes dised
awd are ieconded cpon defiveny ar receipt al the cumendy, Thewe contracts
mary irvenbye manked ik in excess of the unealized gaim or loss reflected on
th Statements of Azsets and Liakilities. In addition, a Fund could be exposed
1o risk if the counterparties ae unable 1o meet the fems of the contracts orif
the value of the camency changes unfavorably to the funciional cutrency, Ta
i ane such ek, cadk an wecunties may be exchanged &6 colladeal pursiant
1o e tevms of the undeelying contracts

Corain Funds, havisg a hedged Class, may akio enter into forward foreign
cuimeay confiacts dedsred i offuet the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
i to leave The hediped Clns with an exposuse 1o cornenciet ather than the
functiceal curmency, Trene can be no goarantes thas these Class specic
forwatd lareign currency costracts will be suctesatul

b} Futures Comtracts Cortam Funds may enber o Bolunes condracts. A
futures contract is an agreament %0 buy or sell o seourity or other avset fora
et price on & future dase asd i wraded on an enchange A Fund may e
hrtures goniracts to manage its expotee 10 the woarities matkets o in
maemerds in interest rabes and oeency values. The ceimary rsks associated
with the use of ftues pomracts are B impaddect cofalation betwesn the
change in market walue of e securttios hald by & Fund and the prices of
Hutures contrects and the possibfity of an ilbguid market. Futures contracts
are walped haed wpon then quoted dasly settlement prices, Lipon entering
ko a futuics contrach, a Fund & rogqursd 1o deposit with @5 fefures broloer an
amenr of cavh, 1§ Governamend and AfEnly I"|I:I||:|..'||u'.n':I oo selert snvereign
debt, in accordance with the initial mangin sequiremests of the bicker o
xchange. Futumes comracty. ame marked to marke! dady and baed oo such
FrowETiEnLs 10 The prade of e DMMracts, an approphate payable of eciwabie
far the change i value may be posted or collected by the Fund ™ Fulunes
Waniation Margin“). Futw es Vasiation Margirs, # any, are dscdesed within
cerirally deared fnancial deshratove instruments on the Statemants of Assets
drd Liahiitios. Gaing of kot e iecognined hit not comadensd rralied unhil
1he contracs exphe of tose. FULPEs CONTACLS ivDhe, b0 vaning ljB;i-E‘S.
tisk ol lzss in encesd of the Futured Vanation Matgin included within
wxchange traded or contrally deaned Snancial denvative ivitruments on the
Yatements of Assets and Liabilties.

Ac) Dptions Costracts Ceitain Funds may vnbe of punchase ogtans to
enhance retuma of o hedos an axisting poridtion ar future irvestmen!. Cortain
Funds may write call and pat nphions on sequities and financial derivatve
rgtnaments they own or = which they may invest Wnling put oplions erds
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o inceease 3 Fund's exposee to the undedpng instrament. Wiitng
apliors tency o decresde a Fund's cxposare 1o the eoderlying irtnument
When a Fund iwrites a call or put, am amoundt equal to the premaum recesved is
recorded and sulsequertly matked to market 1o reflect the urent vakee of
the option written. These amounts ank included on the Sestements of fidets
and Liabibties. Premiums received from witing aptions which expire are

treaned as realiped gains. Fremioms recetved hom witng options which an

racitised of closed are added to the proceecs or offeet against amounits paid
on £ underying fuunes, swap, seowrily of CUrrency transacicn o detesming
the realized gum or loss. Ceitain optons may be writen with premasms 1o be
determined on a future date The premiums for these opticns ane based upon
mpled velatibty parametes at specified berme. A Fund a5 8 wiiter of an
aphiok ki o conttal ver whelher the underhpng iritrumes? may be soid
\"call™ ) o purchased (" put”) and as a reselt bears the market rivk of an
unfivarabie change in the price of the snamant undeslying the wiitten
aptior. Thong & the rak 4 Fund may ot be 2his to o3tor into a doting
transaction because of an |liguid market

Certain Funds may abo purchase put and call eqtions. Perchasing call options
tenids ta mcrease & Fund's expasun ta the undeilying mstrumisnt. Purchasing
put options tends b0 decrease a Fund’s expasure to the undetlying instrument
A Fursd pays & plemum whech = mckeded as s 2t on the Stateseiis ol
Moets and Liabilises 2rd tubsequently marked to macoet 1o reflect the
current value of the option. Premiars paid for purchasing options which
Eapbe are reed & reakired beises Comam ophons may be purchased with
premiums to be determined on 2 future date. The premigmrs dor these options
are based upon impbed volasilty parameters a1 specified tems. The sk
assocued with purchisesg g and call opbord & limied o the prRmium
ped Premiunm peid for pachasing optiorn which are evecined or doned are
added 1o the amcunts paid or offset against the proceeds on the underging
ramiimant randaction to determise the raaked gain or kot when the
underlying transaction is execoted

Condit Dofanlt Swaptons Certain Funds may write or purchase oedit defauli
vwaotiond bo kedge copodans 1o the credi rik of &n vestment withow
making @ oommitment to the undsiying mstrument. A cedi default swapbon
o5 an option bo sell of buy credit protedtion bo & specii eference by antering
nioa pre-defined swap agreement by some specred date in the Tutuee

Inflation-Capped Dptices: C#etam Funch may write or peckase inllation
capped options to enhance etums or for hedging opportunites. The purpcse
af purchasing infletion-capped ertions is bs aratset o Fusd frem nflation
winsion above a certain rabe on a gean national exposure. A Bsor can be
wsed 1o give downside progection to investmerts in inFation Jinked products

Interest Rnie-Capped Options Ceitan Funds may widte o puchase sterest
rate-capped options to enhance miwens o dor hedging cpportunities. The
puiporie of puichasing interest rabe-capped opfoms & 10 profect a Fund fom
Noating rate 15k abowe & certam tale on a given notional exposare. A lloor
can be wied to give downgide prodection Bo imasstmants in imtenest rate linked
s

Intereat Ruts Swaptions Cenaky Funds may wete of porchase Interest rate
ywantans which aie opbons fo enlet nta & pre-defned swap agreemenl or
1o shorten, eicend, cancel or cthensse mod fy an asting swap agreemint,
try some spacitied date in e Rture The weited of 1he Swannon bitomes the
counterpety 1o the vwap if the buyet exsrcin. The infere rate yaaption
AQTTLTEN q'.ll:p(-l;f' whather the buyer of the swaption will be o fiwed rote
re{prel of A Tad-rate PRl LDON e Crse

Dptions om Exchange-Traded Futsres Contracts Ceitan funds may wite o
purchaze eptions on eachange-traded Ftures comtracts (*Tutures Optiea™) to
hedge am exsting position or funse imvestment, for speodatee putposes o 1o
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Mgt expaiur 10 market movEments. A Futures Qiptson 15 an cpon
contract in which the underiying mnesenl & & rgle futunes contrac

Options on Securithes Cedtain Funds may write o punchase options on
secgities 1o enhance retuins o bo hedge an mdisting pasition or future
iresiment. An cptioh on a secunity uses a specthed secarty & the undedlying
rstnamant for the cplion tootrac

{d} Swap Agreaments Certain Funds may imest n ywap agreements Swap
iy meimils 2 blaberally piqotisted agleements between 4 Fund and a
doimisparty 10 exchange or vivag imetment cash flows, sveets, foomgn
cumences o marke-Enked returns at speciSed, fuure intenals. Swap
syeemenls may be pivately segotisted i the OTC matket of may be deaned
threargt: a third party, known ai a central counterparty or derivatives clearng
organization ("centrally deared swaps™h A Fund may enber into asset, oredit
deflslt, ool ouriency, emenesl rate, bolal return, varisnoe and other fom of
Faap agreemenis io MaNME 55 ipoiune o crecE, CLNTENCY, NN 1350,
mm:m:ln'rl equity and arflaion sk, In commection aeth these afIeemEnts,
Secustilied of Cath may be sdengified & callusersl of mangin in acoatdance wath
thia terma of the respecive swap agresments 1o provide assets of valae and
tecoutye in the send al delaut of bankipeoyfinsohency

Centraly cleared swaps ane marced ta matkel daily based uson valualions &5
determirwd from the underlying contract o in accordance with the
sisquilemiers of the central countpany o detnabives deanng siganization
Change m maik vahue, if any, &0 rellected a4 & composent ol net change
r pneealized apprediation (depeedation| on the Satements of Ciperations
Daily changes in valuaton of cenraly ceared swaps (“Swap Yaniation
Margen”™), f any, are deicioded within contrally deared fnintul demitne
instuments on the Statements of Assets and Lizbdies, O1C SAEE [YTTEN
recered af paid al the begrining of the meatatemen penod are ncluded on
tho Statoments of Avoets and Lishilfties and roprosont peomivms paid o0
FRCevee upon Enlening into the swagp aqrepmant 10 compensats i
dferences berwesn the sated weems of the smap agreement and presakng
ket conditions. (credit spreads, curesty exchangs rates, intenest rabes, and
ather relevand Tactors). Uplost premiums received (paid) are natally recosded
i Babiities Cadveta) and wubiequeently marked 1o markef 1o reflect the curest
vtk of the swap. These upfont premiums are recorded a0 realred gains or
Iosseq on the Satements of Operatians upen Teimina tion of maturity of the
swap A bnuidation payment seoeveed o made at the tefmination of the fwap
i regonded as realized gain o1 loss on the $alements of Operations. ket
prerandt payrmenis racened of paid by & Fund aoe included & part ol rnkred
gans o |osses on the Statoments of Operations

For puipoies of applying certain cf a Fund's invesiment policies and
FESiECUans, Swap agieemerts, e other dedhalneg rolnas=ents, may be

writhped By 2 Furd ol matk ol value, motioral valos or full enposune vaiue. In tha
carse of a credit defaait swag, i apphying certain of the Fund's mvestment
palaies and resichaons, 1he Fusd will walug the credn defaul swag Al il
notianal wmlue or ity full exposee valye {ie ., B sem of the nofional amoont
for the confract plus the market valuel, but may value the ceda defauh swap
& markel value for puipodes of applying ceitain of the Fund S ot
irvestment peficies and restrictions. For examgle, the Fund may valee oegit
default swaps 21 Full enposure walue for perposes of the Fund's oedi qualbity
ducelifsil (il any) becauis wsth walue o ginarsl el reliacts the Fund'a
aitual economic paposere dering the term of she credit default swap
apeement As & result, Fund may, a1 fimes, hive notonal eapodurs 1o an
arised cliss {belore matling) that is greater or hesser Bhan the stated kil od
restrition noted in the Fund’s Cdfering Memorandum, In Bhis content, both
the natonal smount ard the miste) value may be positve of negatne
depanding on whether the Fund & selirg of buyirg peatectisn through the
ondit defaclt swap. The manner in which certan securities ar other
rstnaments ae valved by the Fund for purposes: of apphying investment
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pobes and restrictions may dffer from the manser in which those
sraitmants a0 walved by other tyoes of Byvestors. Enteing into vaap
apreemanis invches, to vanging degiees, elements of iverest, oedit, market
and documentation risk mn escess of the smeunts recogrized on the
Statameris of Adsets and Liabsdities, Soch sk imeolve the possibality that
tharz will b no liquid market foe thess agreements, that the counlerparty 5
the agreemisils. may delfaull on ns oblgation 1o perlorm o Gisagres as 1o the
meanang of contragtagl seems n the agreements and that there may be
unfaverable changes in inseredt rafes o the values of the assal upon whah
1he pwap & hased

A, Tored's memimum risk of loss from coumterparty creddl ik & the discounted
net vadua of the cash flows fo be receved from the counterparty over te
coniiad’s Iecm-'mgi-fe_ 0 the exteni 1hal amount & posiove . [he rek may
b rretgated by hiaving & masted nethng emangement botwesn & Fund and
the teanteeparty and by the posting of eollrieal 10 a Fund to oover a Fund's
e 10 B coufliparty

Tio the extant a Fund has a poficy 10 fimit te ret amount owed 1o o 1o be
tetEned Inom & Wngle (uNETy ufder Sxiling Sivep Speeseils, sudh
lmitation anly appbes 1o countecparbes to OTC swaps and doss not apply ta
cenirally deared swaps whese the ounterparty is @ ceniral counterparty o
devivalnad cieanng aiganization

Crodit Dofaslt Swap Agrooments Certain Funcs may enter into

credit defaudt twaps on corpoeate, Inan, sovereign, LS. mwnicipal or LS
Treasury ksess 10 provice a measure of protection agasral defaults of the
ey (1o, bo reduce 1k wheee 2 Fund owns o has exposcoe 1o the
telenenced abbgation) of to take an i long or thait position wath respect
ta the bceihood of & paitcular ivsuer's delault. Credit defaul swap
apeemensy invchve one party making a siream of payments [relprmed ta o
the biryer of preniaction) to: another party {dhe selles of peatectien] in exthange
lor tha right 1o receive & specified retuin in the event that the efeenced
entity, obbgation o index, as specified In e swap agieemsa, undeigoes 3
et criedi! mvent A seller of otection on credt delm swan
agreements, 8 Fund will genezaly recoew hrom the buyer of protection a food
rabe of income throughot the term of the swep proviced Shat there 5 o
credit svend. Al the eller, 8 Fond would effectively sdd leseiage 10 i
porkiofio because, in addition 1o its tntal net: assets, the Fund would De
subject b Ewestmant exposure on the notional ameunt of the vwap

it & Fund is & seller of prasion and @ oed event coouts, as Sefined undey
the tevers of that particulsr g agieTEnt, A Fund will eithes {i} pay o the
buyer of protection an amaount equal 1o the nobenal amaunt of the swap and
lake dedvery ol the ieleienced oblgation, ofter delmedsble obigation of
uridehying securites comgaining the referengrd nces oo () pay @ nel
setthement amount in the foem of cash e securites equal to the sotional
amount of the swap leid the fecovery value of the relesonced obligation ai
undertying securities comprising the referenced index. H a Fund s 2 buyer of
protection and & qedh event ocours, a5 defimed under the terma of that
patcular swias sirodmant, & Fund wnll either (i) iecine from tha selled &l
profection an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap and delver
the jeferenced otdigavon, olhe delive:able olfigatiors of urdeilying
secunities comorsang the mferenced indies ar (&) receive a net settlement
ampunt in the loum of cash ar securities equal to the rosonal amount of the
W fess the recovery value of the referenced obligatian or undering
sequrities comarting the referenced index. Recovery valuey e estimated by
mmarcet makess considering either induatry siandand secowerny rates or extity
speciic fackoid nd coriadarations untl & credd evenl ooduts B & credit et
hin pcoaned, the recowvery value i determined by a Tacilitated auction
wheneby a musimurn pramber of allewable broke: bids, together with a
specied valuation method, ane wmad 10 calculate the satshomant value, The
abwity tm deliver oiher obligetions may resslt in 2 cheapest-io-deliver option

{the buyer of pratecton's right to choase the delivemble obbgation with the
fowost valos folownng a credit event]

Credit delauh swap agieemants on credit indioes involve one party making a
siream of paymerts to anather parfy in echange for the right 8o receive a
spedifed return in the evend of a vrite-down, pancipal shartfall, inorest
shorttall o defult of a8 or gart of the raferenced entities compnsing the
aadil inden A credd indei i & basket of oedl Fstraments of expasunes
designed to be reaipsprtative of same pan of the ciedl maiket as a whale
These indcet ap made un of reference cradits Bt ae |||r|r3m: by a poll af
dzalevs 0o be the most Sguid entises in fe oedd defaull Deap market Baded
an the secter of the index, Components of the indioes may insdude, but are
mat limied o, inestment qrade securities, high yield securities, asset-backed
SECuies, Bmenging markets, andhor vanou credit tatings within each seCtor
Credf incioes are traded wung credd delaull swaps vadh standardeed terms
irchading a Fooed spread and standard maturity dabes. An index credn default
swap rederensey o3 the name in the index, and f there s defaub, the credit
evend it sittlied based on that nama’s sweight in the index, The compaosition of
the indices changes peradicaly, wsualy every s manths, and foe most
s, each name had an equal weight i the esdex. A Fund may use oedit
defauit swaps on credit indices to hedge a partfalo of credit default swaps o
o, which o bess engesnive than il would be i buy marny oedt deladh
swaps 40 achiewe a similar efledt. Credit defaclt swaps on endices are
rainaments for prntecting investons awming Escends e oelault, and
Traded ube them 1o iperulate o0 dhafged & ot quality

inghied credil spreads, epresented n abislote teims, ubied in determuning
the marked value of cedit defaclt swap AQreeTIENES 0N COTPOnaTe, ban
sowmign. U5, municipal or U5 Treasury ssues &5 af penod end, if any, are
diadionad in Uhie Moles to Schedele of Fmvetmenls. They seree moan indicaton
of the awrent status of paymentiperiormance rivk and represert the likdihoad
o sk of defaal for the referenced entity, The empled oedic spread of a
particular refetenced entity sellects the oost of buyingfellisg otection and
may inghudde wprdond papments required 0 be made io enber into e
sypeement Wider codil ipresdy iepresent & detercestion of the rofensnced
entity's o] soundress and a greater Balihood ar risk of default or other
wradit event occumming as defined under the tesms of the agreement. For cnecit
dhefanit Swap sqreemenls on aiuet-Backed secundies and cedi ndices, the
quied market prices and ersulting values serve as the indicator of the cument
stans of the Dﬂj‘-"‘l’ﬂﬁ'[ﬁ"fﬂl manie risk. Increaseng market vakses, in abaoiume
1esma whisn compared 80 the notworal amount of the swap, represent a
deterpration of the refergnced entity's credit sgyrdnass and a greater
Bkelihood or risk of defaut or other cedit event ocoueing as defined under
the e o the digreeimenl

The masimum potestial smoond of future payments (undiscoundes] that

@ Fund as a saller of protecton onuld be rmaquied 1o make under a edin
et it weap ageeement equals the notional amndant of the ageement
Mational amounts. of each indaidusd credit defaull weap agresment
outstanding a5 of petiod end loc which & Fund is the seller of peotection e
deciciaed i the hales to Schedae of imreiiments Thess polentad amounts
wwould be partislly ciiset by aey tecovery values of the respective rederenced
bl el [H, ..Iilllf.l'il paymanly FelivvEd apon BnTeing inhd the BYTeOTERL o
rirl amounis eedeid fom the wettlement of boy prosection credit delsalt
Swap agreements entzrad nto by @ Fund for the same neferenced entizy oo
enlbilid

Int Rate Swap Agr Certann Fundi &ie Subijeet bo iflonest iate
rivk exposure in the normal gourse of purisng Ewir mestmen! chiectves
The value of the fued rase Bosds that a Fund holes may decrease i menest
rales e, To help hedge againat this rk and to mamdan iy ability to
generate inoome a1 prevailing marked rates, a Fund may enter into interest
FALR SWAD AQIEETEnS Inlengst ale swap agieements invede the exchange
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by 0 Fard with anather party for thesr respective commitment to pay or
tecoh imlniest on the notiossl amount af princisal. Certain forms of interesl
rabe swap agreements may include: [{) interest rate caps, under which, in
return for & premium, one patty agrees to make payments to the othes to the
extend that nderest rates exieed & specibed rate, of ‘eap”, (i) inderest rate
Toars. under which, in et for & premium, one-party agrees to maice
pEymints bo ke othed 10 the exlent that mberesl rates (el melowie & spocifisd
rabe, or “Boor”, (W) interest sate collars, wnder which & party 5ol 2 cop and
purchases a Flode of wige veria ir an atiempt bo protect itself against interest
fale roveTenDs exceeding chven risimum of masmum lessls (i) callable
mienest rate swagh, under which the buyjer pays an upfront fee in
consideration for the fight & aa'lp terminate the saap ransaction in whole,
&l Feio coal and &1 & piedetermmied dite and hime phdd b The maluly dite,
W) spreadiocks, which aliow the interest rate swap wens (o lodk in the
Torward differential {or spread] between the interest sate swap rate and a
I.pt\:l‘liid banchmark, or (i) basis veape, undot which b partiot can
exchange variable interest rates based on. differert segments of maoney
markets

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

in the normal course of bumicess, the Funds jor Acguired Fundis), if
apphbeable) vade financial rstruments and emer inte Fnancial ransactond
where itk ol potential loss exsts due Yo soch things as changes in the mariet
\markit risk] or failure or inalelity of the other pariy to a fransaction to

pesfoem {redt &nd counterparty 1isk). See below for a detafied desorigtion af
select principal risks

Fund of Funds To the sutent that rectam Funds mvest substantialy all of thes
respective assets in Acquised Fumdis), the sisks associated with IFRStng in
these Funds will be closely relased 10 the rilks associsted with the secuntes
and other ivestmants kald by the Acquised Furdi{sh. The abiity of the Funds
(o acheave EhET RSpeCive investmest objacines may depend upon the abeity
al the Acgured Fundis) to acheeve ther nespective investment objectves
There can be no asurance that the investmgnt |:l;||n-qlne of @ny Acquired
Frsds) will be achicwed The NAY of 0 Acquiring Fand sell lluctusie B
sesporse 10 changes i the espectee AV of the Acquimed Fand|sh in which it
frees

in the narmad courss of buisess, Acquired Fundis] tade finencisl instruments
and esder into finarial transactioon whaere rvk of potentsal loss eosts doe 10
changes in the market (market nsk), o¢ failuse or inabikty of the other party 1o
& 1 anaTon ko perlam chedit ard counlenpaty nuk)

Market Risks A Fund 4 ewedimenis n bassosl denvetne imdinaments and
ather finaniad instiumenty exgose the Fand 1o varous risks such as, bul net
imited 10, inperest sane, Soim gh {nam LS} curiency, sguily and commedity
ik

imterest rate ik i5 the risk that fmed ihcome secufities and ctiher imiroments
hihd by & Funed Py decling in value because ol an increase in inierest sates. I
naminal inkerest rates rise, e vador of certain fooed income securitien “pldl by
& Fand would liely decrease, A nominal intenest rale can be described as the
summ of @ peal inberesd 1ade and & expecied iflation rate Iaieiest cale
changes can be sndden and unpredictabie, and a Fund may o money if
thasa changes are not antitipated by Fund management A Fund may not be
abde to hedge sgainst changes in merest rales or may choose not 1o do so for
03 o other masons. In additon, sy hedges may nat work as intendied

Duraton & 3 measure used o detemine the sensitivity of a securiry’s price 1o
changes in imerest ates thal NOHpSrAtEs 3 Seourty's 5'!!|{|. ceupon, fiaal
maturdy amnd call features, among othet characterntics. Conven®y & an
additipnal measre vsed 1o underitand a secunty's or Fund’s imforest rate
serristmity That measunes the rate of change of duratan m esponse o

chonges in insesest raters. Feved incomne senurities with longer durations tend
10 ba mone sensitive ta changes in imtarest tates, iaally making them mons
wolatile than securites with shorter derstions. A wide vaniety of facion can
e intevest rales of pelds of U5 Treasury securities for yelds of cther
types of bondi} to s {e.q., cantial bank moretany policied, inflation ranet,
gereral atonomic conditions, atc 1. This & execally tue under curant
conhdilions. because nleiest rales and bond pelds ane near hstancally low
levels. Thus, the Funds curmently face a hegatened lovel of risk associsted
with rising ilerest tates andios bond yislds. This could be driven by a vatiety
ol facoors, induding but nat mited ta ceniral bank monetary polices,
changrg inflation or real growth rates, gerenal econcmic condifions,
increasing bond suances or reduced maet demand Tor ow yialding
wiepiiments. Fiithir, whie U S boad macdoety i dheaddy Grown o the
P treee cecadies, dealer “market making™ ability has remained relatively
sagnant Given the importance of intemediary “market making™ n ceating
& robast and sdtive market, fived incoma secuntind are cumantly
facing inoeased volatility and Bquidity risks. A8 of these factors, collectively
o individisally, could caune & Fund bo keve value If the Fund lest enough
wialue, the Fund could face increased Uinitholder redemplicert, which could
further impar its perfomance. Also, e Fund may be adversely atiected
when a lasge Unitholder puschases or redesms lange amounts af wnds, which
an o0tue ol any time and may impact twe Fund in B sme manner a5 a i1i|]h
wolume of redemption reguests. Large Unitholder ransactons may impaat
The Fred's bouedity shel net asdet valoe Such anssctan may alsd incease
the Fend's trerrsaction cots or othenwise couse the Fend 1o periem
dHerently than imended Moreewss, the Fund i wubeet 10 te rick tha
ather Unatholders may make myeitment decioans based on the choxei ol &
Earge Unitholder

& Furd may e 19'1‘:.1-'1'. exposung 1 (550ers in fhe Unteg .r:-ru]d:;.m The
Uriteed Kinpdom's decision 1o heave thee Euncpian Liseon may impact Fund
retums. This decnion may case substantial volablity in foreign exchangs
rraiets, bead tn weakness in the entchanges rate of the British peand, 1eswdt in
& sutained period of market uncertainty, snd destabikze some of all of the
ather Eurapedn Urion mambar couninies and'or the Eurazone

Foreign (mon-US.) seowities in this repert ane dassified by the country of
wosdparatioh al 8 haiding. Incefain Filances, a securty 3 Gounlry al
rcoeporation may be ditterent from ity country of economis eepasune

i a Furd invvests directly in Torsign (oo LS. ) currencees o i seqwines that
Arade in, and réeve isistd in, l'u'ﬂg'l (non-L1S feuriancisy, o s fmarcal
dernative instruments that provide saposuie o lomesgn o U5 ) curmences,
i wall be subject bo the risk that thase camencies will dedline in value relatve
10 the taine cormency of the Fund, or, in the case ol hedging positiors, that
tho Fereds base curnesey will declne in valos refative S the oarmoncy beng
heriped Cimeney rates "uinlgur_;u cownries may fituate significanty cres
short petiods of tme fod & number of reasans, incuding changes i mignest
rales, intereention (o the failure b indervena) by 15 ar foreign govermmanss,
wertral banks o supranational entities such a4 the Intemational Monsary
Fund, or bry the impositos of curmendy cantroh or other polftical developmants
r the Unied States or sbroad As o reselt, a Fund’s isvestirents i foreign
cutrency-denaminated secures muay seduce the Fund's refurms.

Thié markst valed of anetied, duth a8 (ommen D100ks and prebermed sbcifities
@ equity related invesiments sich &5 fubwres and pptagrs, hae Bitonically
risen ard fatlen in perodic oycles and may decline due to genersl market
condmion whth aia not ipeahsly relited 1o 8 paititulli company, such as
real o perceived adverse economic conditions, changes in the gereral

eutlook for ot perate eamings, changes in mleres of cufrency fabes, public
health smpigencies, swch 1 the soad of miectious ilingts o daeate, o
adverse imvestor seetiment generalty, They mey aba dedine due to tactors
which afleq a particular industry of industress, ssch as |abor shormages or
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nerersed prodisction (osts and compebive conditions within an industry,
Diflerent types of aquity securitios. may react dilferentdy 1o thess
dewelopments. Equity securities and eguity related invessments generally have
greater marked price volatdity than feed incooms securnies

The Funds may invest in ceasn indtruments that rely = some lashios upon
LIEOR, LIBOR & an average misest rate, determined by the ICE Benchmark
Adereristration, that barks dsange one afothied o the e ol shonaem
money, The Unied Kingdem s Finanasl Conduet Authoetty, which regulabes
LIBDR, has anncuncec plans 1o phase out the use of LIBOR by the #nd of
2021 The pantitan may setull in 2 seduction @ he value of eran
sstromends held by the Funds or & reduction in the efectiveness of related
Fursd tramsactions such as hedges. Thete remaing uncenainty regarding futee
utilization of UHOR and the natee af any realacement fate (e, the Secmed
Overmigh Financing Rate, whath n mtended to replade UL S, dolle LBOR and
measires the cost of evernight besrewings t'rough repurchase agressrent
Irarreisctsons coltoradined wath U5, Trestury seculities), and any patintial
flects o the transition awary nom LIBGR on the Funds or on cortain
mstruments in which the Fusds imeest ane not known erd could result in
horsset 10 thie Funds

Hegmning i January 2020, global francal markets have sgeeranced and!
may conticese b esperience signdficant volatBity iesutting from the spresd of a
nivel corenaius knawn a4 COVD-19. The outkrest of COVID-19 has
rosidted in traved nd bonder resinctions, quarantines, sapply chain
disrupdices, kower consumer demand and general matket unCertaimTy, The
glohad eonoey, the etonomies of cerlain nations and indmdual isueds have
been and may continue to be advevsely aftfected by COVID- 19, particulary in
hil of the niermonnectivily bBefween economies and financial markets, all of
whith may negatively impacl the Funds” performasnce. In sddSion, COVID-19
and govemeental responses 1o COVID- 10 may regatively impadt the
capatiities. of the Furds’ senvice prowvidens and derapt the Funds” aperations

Credit and Counterparty Risks & Fund will be exposes 10 coes 15k 1
perties with whom it trades and wall also bear the risk of setthemant default
A, Funed menimizes concentrations of credit risk by undertating transacton
with & large numbed of cudlomers &ad counteiparlies an lecognihed and
reputabie exchanges, when applcable. OTC dervative tracsactions ane
subject bo the risk that a courseparty to the transaction wil ot fulfill 1s
contrachal elligations &a the other party, a% many of the pratechons alonied
1 cendrally cleared devivative ransactians might nod be avaiiable for OTC
dedrva e Transacterd. Fod dematine (raded on o enthange of thiough &
contral counterparty, oredi ik retades with the cheditworthises of

the Fund's tearing broker, of the Clearinghoune itself, rather than to a
counterparty in &n OTC derreative ransaction, Changes in tegulation nefating
toa Fund's wa of dervatoess and redated natiuments could :nl‘e;nb:ll, T
o impact the Fund's ahility to irwest in derivatives, limit the Fund's ahiity 1o
gy CETTAIN Seranegics thad s derivatives andior adversdy atiect the value
ar periormancs of dervstives and the Fund. A Fund. ool fose moniy if the
wsues or guasanton of 8 Reed incose secusity, o the countemarty %o a
linancial destrative instuments conlrsdl, reparchase agreemient o a loan of
portfolio sequities, is wable o wewiling jo makbe timely priscipsd andion
sitsiast paymees, of 1o otherweis honoe iis obhgations. Securtses and
linancial dernaative instriments ane wbpct 1o wicying degrees. of credir rk,
wiich may be reflected in oedit ratings.

Jamila b0 crechl risk, & Fund may b sapirsed 10 (DQRTEPaTy rok, of the rmk
that &5 slilidtson ai other antity vnth which & Fund hai untsttled of open
{rarmactions vl default. PIMCO, as the Manager, minimizes counterparty
risks 1o the Furwds thrcusgh & number of wieys Priof ko entening ints
trarsctions wath a new countermarty, the PIMCO Counterparty Rigk
Comeritier conducts an extensive oredit review ol B QOUntenparty and must
appiove the use of such counterparty. Furthermere, pursuant 1o the tems of

thie underlying tondract, to the eatent that wrpad amounts owed 104 Fund
encred @ pestetermined Threshold, sush counserparty shall advance ool lsteral
o a Fund iin the form of cash or securities equal in value o the unpaid
arcund oweeed 0 8 Fusd. A Fund may irvest such collmenl in securities os
ather ingtruments and will ypically pay intenest 1o the counterparty an the
ooBateral recenasd f the unpaid amount owed %0 a Fund sulseguently
detrisss & Fund would be ieguiied bo deluim 13 the ooun eipary &l of &
pation of the collateral previcnly edmnced, MMIO S attempts to minimize
counterparty tisk may, howaver, ba unsucnessful

Al transactions. in listed seounities ae settledipaid for upon delivery using
aoproved courterparties. The rak of delauh i considered minmal, a3 delivery
of securites soid 5 only made onoe 3 Fund has received paymant Payment is
M on @ purchase once e secur died hiwe been deinered by the
counteiparty, The bade will lail d ether paity fails to meet i obligation

Marked Disrwplion Risk The Funds are subject fo imvestrment and operational
risks associated with financial, sconamic and ater ﬂ“:li mrarkel
devefopmenty &nd deruptiond, indoding those sfising (ram war, Drofm
market mangubition, govememant mterventoes. delsults and shutdoers,
pofitecal chamges of diplomatic developmints, public kealth emergencied
xuch as the speead of infectous dieeses, pandemics. and epidemics) and
maturaliemdrgnmental caasters, which tan all negatively inpact the secutities
ket and cause the Funds 1o bede vilue. These eveyls (an also impair e
fechnolpgy and other pperational systems upon which the Fands' senece
roviders, inciuding FIMCD a the Funds' investmant advise:, ey, and could
alherwrie darupl the Tundh” sennce piowiders’ abdty ba fulldl ther obhgatbans
1o B Funds. For eaegle, the spread of an infectionns respiratory iliness
cased by @ novel strain of cononaings fknown as COVID-19] has caused
solatiity, sevene muar ot diniocations and ligaidity consfiaints in many
mmarkats, inchuding matkets for the serurities with the Funds hold, and may
adversely affect the Fandt’ swestments and aperations

8 MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Furds may ba 5|J:|i|:ft R0 various neTting amangemseats ("M astor
-"H;'NI'"I.‘"[S-‘I wilh select couniprpanes. Master Agréements govem the

v e of oedtain bansachons, sad am int ended 1o redote the: counter paity ik
ansoniated with elevant Sransactions by specifying oedit protecticn
rrechariam and Sfoviding stend edization thit [ intended 1o mprove legal
onitainty. Each type of Master Agreement govers certam Sypes of
transactions. Diffirent types of transactions may be traded out of diflerent
legal entities. of a¥Tkates of & partiodar ciganization, sewufting in the need for
muBiphe agreemeats with @ single countenparty A the Masie Agreements
ane specific 1o unigie operatons of differens essel types, they allow a Fund o
clorve oot and net its lofal exposure 1o & counlerparty in the event of & defacly
with respedt o all the transactions governed under a single Magtar
Agpeement with & counterpary. For financial peport ] PUEposEs the
Seatements of Adsets 55 Lisbibtees genenally pretent dermative: adie s and
Habikties om 3 gross basis. which reflects the ful isks and exposues prier o
nenting

Master Ageesments Can st help imil counterpaity ik by speclyng
collateral posting amangements at pre-amranged epotu ek, Under most
Master Agreemants, collateral is mutinely transiemed if the total net spowsre
o certain Tandactions (net of exising coliyteral already in place) govesnod
ungiee tha refevant Wasser Agreernint with a counterpaty in & gaven account
wurpeds 3 specfed thechold, which typscally ranges from zero o §.250,000
depending on e counlgrparty &nd the type o Master Agreement. Uniled
Seartey Treasury Bills and U 5. dollar canh a9v generally the prefired foms of
oollatessl, athaugh othér secuitnes may be idid dependig on the tesmi
autlined in the applcable Master Agreement, Securitses and cash pledged as
collaceral are reflected a5 assets on the Statements of Assets and Liabeities as

el Pt | Wy 31, 190

188/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

: to Financial Stz

gther i cormpanent of Imeestment s

il i e
counterparty, Cash colladecal rocerend & ng
count and a5 5
=4 44 Depi
mconed as cola
averall Exposun
petiod, as s afenied by sat
Agrepment

ies] of Deposts o
ally held n & wegrecated
tements of Assets and
kel value of any seoutites
ars a component of NAY The Fund's

can chenge sutstantially within a shon
Ao subec] 1o The ielevan!

L

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Bepurchase Agreements
ally and coleaively “Macied Fapd AGPesments” ] qovern [epunthae
ra tions between the Tunds and

VeI PEpe
et IO

patas Mag X
mants, events of dedaull

ligso] ||'||'|_|:|l,I inbato

Riepo Agreament, o | pledged e
£ &5 ol penod end are dechoied i

§ poven certam lonward wefilng irarme:
yord bentaack transaction
5 and select counterparties. T

AR b L g :-4'.' ST erthes
payment and transher, geents of defaul
ce of collateral, The market walue of forward settling tansactions,

pedged of tecenved, and the et expasure by counle i ard o]
period end e disclosed = the Motes 1o Scheduls of Imvestmants
Cusiomer Acourm -'-IJ'EE'TID'II:- and reabh m Cearpd
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aney wherhs £ WSorenals S F
5 COMMESSaN Mmedch “FCM™) regitered with the Commodiny
Fufunes ll]:.r-u] Commigsizn {"CFICT) I the United Stabes, countens
may be reduced a4 ceediton of an FOM cannot have a claim bo Fund
ke segregaled acioun], Portabiity of expotune in the evert ol an FCM
detault scenano further reduces mk to the Fands. Yarigton mamin, o
changes in madkal vadiin, an fang schanged daily, but may mol be
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund by subject to the foliowing fees payable at the foliowing annual rates (stated as 3 percertage of the average dally net assess of each Fund, or Class, if
spphcatle, taken sepmately)
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The management, advisery and administrative fees, | applicable, are paed manathly in arears to PMCO for providing o amanging for the provision of adetsory,
admanmttatee and thind-party servioes inclading audid, custodsal, trustes, portfodio acccusting, mouting logal, transher agont aad printing senices. The agency and
distrbagtion fees. if applicabla, ane paid monthly m amears 10 reimburse finandial intermediaies that prewvide services and distrbution relating to the units of the
appbeable Fund {or Class shereol, as auphw'.h'-r;l I the case of the PIMCO Bermuda Foresgn Low Duration Fund and PIMCD Bermuda U5, Low Duratan Fund, PIVCO,
aut of its managemerd hee, will bear the Couts associated with adviony and adwunistatve serdces, 0 1% of whath o desgrated 1o coved admmmtrathe expicies. in
exchange for this fee, PIMCO will bear thie costs of cartain third: party services requied by the Funds, incluging audt, custodial, trustes, portfioli accounting, legal,
tramsle agenl and printing sensces. PIMCD, and ned Unstholders, would beneld [rom ety prce decresde in tee vosl of such thind-parly seraces, mduding deceases
esulting fom an incgasg in nel assets. bn addition, with respect to Funds that ang subject bo an adminisgratiee foe, PIMCD generaly malcs a profit on sech a foe

A5 nated n the table abowe, cestam Funds and Classes of Funds aoe not wb@ct 1o management, advscry, adminisirative, agency of distnbaton lees. PMCD lapan
Led, PINGCO's affikabe i Japan, i pand a fes fiom e Japaness bvesiment Tiusns o olhes imvesimeni velicles. that Ewest in such Furds o Classes and a postion of
such fee 15 then allocated to PIMCD to compensate it o its sennces

Thw Funds [or Classes theepol, an applicable) may bear other sxperses relaied to ther opea bon that are nod covered by the management, advisory, admmiviratem,
agendy of datnibution fees, inchading but not Bmited bo; i) taees and govermmensal Tees; (7) iokerage lees and commissions and otker portolio transecion expenses;
Wi odts of barrowang mancy, including imodest experse; (W) extraoidnary capesses, nchuding oosts af g ation and indemnification expenied: and v ANy Expended
alincaied or alncahls foa spacific Clasy of inits, a5 applrable. PIMECD kas paid, oo wall pay, the amanizational expenses associated with PIMED Short-Term Strategy’s
naial set-up

PIMCO anddor its affliates will inibially advance o PIMCO Shart-Teim Seateqy all costs and expesses, indading legal expenses, inturred i connection with the iritial
pubbc offering of the IFY and USD Chasses of Units of the Fund i lapan [ (rffering Expenses”). At or near the commancemant of 1he Fand's operations, the Fusd will
reimbeirse PINAC ancion its affilases for the Offering Expenses advanced and wil amonize such Offering Expanses aver the first fiscal vear of i operations. Howener,
MM has. agreed o waive rembursesnent af the Offenng Expenses to the extent that such expenses enceed 0,05% per annum of the sum of the IFF and USD
Classas' Mot Avsel Yalus (the "Oifering Expema Limitation™). &y Offering Experses waived due to the Offenng Expense Limilation may Se regouped By PIMCOD anddar
its affiliates for a pesiod not esceeding frve years from the commencement of the Fand's operations; provided, the amown recooped by PIMCO andior s affiliates shall
nat exoeed 005% per annum of the som of the IPY and USD Clavies” AN, f either of the IPY and USD Claases of Units of the Fund i terminated pror o the hull
meimbursement of al Offening Expenses, PIMCD ardipr its affiliates shall not seek reimbursement of any remaining unreimbursed amounts from that Class
Ferthermore, if both of the 1PY and USD Classes of Unets of the Fusd e terminated prioe ta the full reimbursemant of all Offenng Expensas, FIMCO andior its affiliates
shall rot sl rembursernert of any remaning unnéambursed smounts from the Fund. PIMCO has paad, or vell pay. ofl conts and expenies, including legal evpenies,
ncumed i connedtion with the initial publbic offering of the AUD Clavs of Units of e Fund in lapan As ol May 31, 2040, there weee na recoverable Offenng Expenses
1o PIMCD andfor g5 alfilistes

PIMCO has appombed SMBC Nikko Securities ing to ot e Agent Company and Drstiboion o the detibuticn and serncng of oty of the PIMCD Euro Total Retuin
Fursd, PIMCO Regal Rabam Fund, and the IPY, USD, and AUD Clases of PIMCD Short-Term Strategy 10 retail immsiors in lapan. Mo agent comparies hawe bomn
appointed for ary of the ather Funds

PIMCO has paid the ooganizatonal expenies socisied with te creation of the Trast. I fuither Furds are Lssnched, such wosts cinectly it butable to the ielesan
Fursd may be bama by the rebaeant Fund

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Impestment Adviser 5 & selsted party 1o the Tunds and is & majority-owned subsidiary of Alianz Asset Managesem AG. Fees paid to the elated party, if any, se
discloped im Bote 9, and accruad related party fee amounty, 4 any, ane dsdioied on the Satements of Assets and Liabilies

Certain Fundh ae premifted 8o purchase o sell seourities from or bo covtain reladed affiated Bunds under specified conditom outlined n pocedures adopted by the
Irvesbment Adviser. The procedures have been designed 1o enure that any puichade or sale of securities by a fand Trom or to snather fusd that i or could be
condiceind an alfifiste by virtus of having & common adwiser (o atifsated inveitment adwiens), i etlected at the curent market price. During the percd ended May
31, 2020, she Fundis] below engaged in purchases and sa'es of securities among #ffiliated funds (amognts in eusandsk

Fend Purehase S
FINCD Berrvadas Foregr Law Denaoan Furd ] 1% 5
FIMCD Bermada 15 Low Duratian Fud ] LR
FINCD Emerpnp Mirkits Bard Fund 1 15,53 SRR
FNCO B Tatsl Retwrn fusd 1103 0
FIMCD Bl Pt Fand 41 i
FIMC Shor. Tarm Srwiagy =1 i
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Notes to Financial Statements i

11, GUARANTEES AND INDEMPMIFICATIONS
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Notes to Financial Statements o

Bacegpts for enty ssld

L1 3 Pnm

T i 178
f ] T
L 1,50 RS

g [Tni] ML
Cusi [l e
iy | EE B3

|LISD i || AT

Py |4y [Lpfe.

UE3 IT1E ML
M e g on

fuared 11 o i L

13, REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS
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10.40 1,305
@) 0.11 14
¢ ) — 0.3 — 4
¢ ) —0.44 - 55
(0.13) (16)
10.71 1,344
( ) () ____ 4.23
( ) 25,112 3,151
0.96
0.95
1.01
@
() ( )
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1 Finanei atements

1. ORGANIZATION

Each Fund descussed in this teport feach @ “Fand™ and collectavely, the “Funcs ™), which abso includes eact dass of units of that Fund [zach a "Class™ and collectively,
The “Chises ™), B a senies tnnd of FINCO Bermuda Truse {ihe “Trust™), a0 open-ecded unit rust establehed undier the L of Bermode & g mult-senie Trust purseant
10 & frust ceed exsoted by Winchester Global Trust Compasy Liméted on August B, 2001 (3s 2mended Irom time o tima, the *Trust Deed”). Effectve as of the close
af business ([Eastern tme) on Nowercber 28, 2006, Winchester Globa! Trust Company Limited eetired and was discharged as tiustes of the Trust and Bzovwn Brothers
Harriman Trest Company (Cayman) Limited was appointed as new trustoe of the Trest for the owners of units of the Funds (e "Unithalders”). Effective as of the close
aif busingss (Easiem Tme) on heptembes 19, 2017, Brewe Broches Hasimas 1oust Compasy (Cayman) Limned retited and was dschanged & mustes of te Tret and
htaghes Trustee Sevices (Sermuda) Limited was appointed as new mustee of the Tiust As usec in this repart, all refevences 1o the “Trustee” shall mean the person
1hen wrving as nntee o the Trust Pacifc krvestment M.'u'.Jgﬁr.rrn Company LLC [TPIMCO,” the 'J-.".1r:.1r_,|cr' of B " Inyesiment Advesen ™) i Be sponsar of and wad
resporrible for sircturing the Trist

The Trust is subjedt ba regulation and supervision as prowvided For i the Irvestmen Funds At 2006 and related rules refating to standard funds

The 1enme of the Trust Deed confer upen the Trustee, with the cosdent of the Manbger, the poswer, in the futwre, 10 establah furthey funds in addition 1o the Fonds
currently in operaticn & of the date of this repont

Thee Funds prevenied in this report ane Ested below

Funt e te
PR Bormuda Farowgn Low Dumation Fund 0 taresd conhy 1o Aandla widh & “Fund of Funds™ siructene, os dalmad mn B rulos of tho |
PG Bormuxda LS. Low Dusatien Fand Imvostmart Tousts Associmtion, Japan, or tn fencl with 3 samdae siructuse in any other
PIRC Emesrging Markety Boo Fond |TT) Juriadiction

PIRACE) Frrwsarping Markcats Bisst Forel [Yor-Hacdpadi
PIMCT Emerging Markety Boad Ford [l

"m'ihnfiiﬁﬂﬁuﬁﬁ'ﬂ o Oftered bo rotel invesion in Japan by way of public offaring theough a desributor in
MG fpal Return Fundi Japan, s may be olleind 1o athes srestons al the decreton of e Masage . |
| TRAC] ST Seratogy” | Dfiarad to retad srvestors i Japan by way of pubic alfarng through @ decribaior and'or @ |
saiey herdbing comgay i Jafan. and may be alfeied [ ather rvesioes af the distetan
of tha Manager
| PANACE] Emerring Markets Baeet Furd iH) | Dfared ey v sthe: Furck: 1 serve a3 uncerlyng avestnunt vahices for such Fuck
" [ JLFTE e ST (e o' v (MCTT ey T Sratagy o alfray iy o ol il ¢ Tomd! of ol ™ iPuiiiom. i e 8 e i W P dmemmieew [ g dinmontis Sguisl o ¥ irull mif] 3 wsule g haid i iy e jhnclly e

Units ol the PIMCD Eurg Tozal Retatn Fund, PIMCO Read Beturn Fund, aod AUD, JPT, and USD Clisses of PINKCO Shon-Term Strabegy have been requsened under the
Financial Instiuments and Exchasie Laww of lapan. Uaits of sach af the iemaning Furck and the | IFY) and §(LISD) Classes ol PIMCO Shart-Tearn SMrategy have ot
beens and are not curently expected to be registered under the Financial instruments and Excharge Law of lapan. Accordingly, such Urets of these Funds may not be,
directly or indirectly, offared in lapan or to any risident i lapan, extept in compliance with applicable Japanese laws and ||:Iqu'.1'.i.1n'.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

The fallowing ts a summary of significant acoounting pofices consistently foliowed by the Trust in the peeparation of its finandal tatemends in confomity with
accoarling principhes genesally acoepted in the United States of America | *US. GAAP], Tach Fund is treated a3 an investment company under the reporting
requintmigats of LS GAAP, The preparation of financial staements it acoordanoe wih S GAAP requires management 1o make estimates and assomptions thal
atfect the ieported amounts of assats and labilties and dedosure of contingent assets and Labiites at the date of the finandal statements and the eported amounts
af increases and decreases in net aivets from operations dutirg the repanting period. Actual results could differ hom those estimates

{n) Undestying Fund The Trustes and the Manager may aoply all ar & portion ol the assets af FIMCO Tmenging Markets Bond Func (FTT), PINCO Emerging Markets
Bend Fund (¥en-Hedoed), ard PIMCO Emenging Matkets Berd Fund || (each referred 1o betein 25 3 "Fund of Fands® or the “Aoquining Fund®, which invests in ather
Furds) to the respective credt of the PIMOO Emenging Markets Bord Fund (k) dreflerred 1o hereim as an “Underying Fund® or the *Acquired Fund™). Any assefs so
applied will be heid in such Acquired Fund as if received directly. Whese assets are so applied, the Acgured Fund will record the Issue of unins to the 1elevant Atguiring
Fund at the issse price per unit of $uch onits and Will repurchase such umits at the repunchade price per unit of such omits af the time of tepurchase.

{b) Securities Transactisns and Investmant Inoame Secunties bansictions sie recorced a4 of the trade date for financlal reparting purposes. Secunties purchased e
sald on & when-lswed or delaged-defiery hasis may be settied heyord A standand settlement period for the seourity after the trade date Realized gains and Insses
from securities sokd ane recorded on the identied cost basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-tdividend date, except certain divdends from loreign securities
whete the ex-didend date may have passed, which are recorded as sean as & Tund & mieemed of the ex-dividend date Interest income, sdjusted lor the sceretion of
discounts and amortization of premikams, is recorded on the acoual basis from settfement date, wich the exception of secusities with a forward starting effective date,
wheee interesl income i reconded an the accnsal bases am effective date For comaetible securities, peemiums attributable 1o the comeeraan featune a0 not
Smnoniied. Eslimaned 13x lighisied on Cerain 1u|eq.‘| Lerunitien are rpeordied om an scetual bass and ane el eoed B COMmpoaTL ol innespgr income of net chargs in
unisalived appiecialon {Seplediatsn) o ewestments an the Statesenis ol Operalons, a4 spphoptiate Tax labitties realimd & 8 el of suh setunity sakes aig
reflected as a comporent of net ceatized gain (koss) on invesimenss on the Statements of Qperations. Paydown gairs and lonses on martgage-elated and other asset-
Backed wecuritiod, d any, e reconded as components of intere! incame on the Sestemaents al Dperatiang
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et obligations may be placed on ron-aanual status and related intenest
ircome may be educed by l:rnsing curent accruaky and writirg aff imfenest
recefvaile: when the calizction ol all or a porton ol intarest has become
doubtiul based on consissently appled procedures. A debt obligation s
temoied from ron-aocnasl s1atus when the it retume intered pEymenty
of when colledabling of ivtene i probable

{e] Cash and Foraign Currency The financia’ staterents of each Furd are
presented using the cumency of the primany econamic erwdronment in which it
operates (the “luncticnal cumency™)

The matket values of leveign secarites, currency holdings and ather sssets
and liabiltes are marstated inso each Fund's functone cumency based on (ke
curient eschange rates pach business day Furchases and safes of seaunibes.
and income and experse items denomindbed in foreign camencies, il amy, are
translated ingo each Fund's respective funcbional currency &t the l‘II.'hﬂnI:F‘
rate i eflect on the amacton date. The Funds do mot separately teport the
effects od chamged in feregn exchange rates Som changes & marcet pricss on
securities held Such thanges are included In net realized and net changes in
unrealized gain or by from nvestrents on the Satements of Operations
Thie Funch may immest in foepign currescy denominabed securities and may
engage in barpigh camency irasaactonm eithid on & spat {caih) b at the
rate prevaling s the currency enchange market at the time or through a
foravaed dpreign cumency contract. Realized foreign exchange gains o losses
atising from sabes of spot foreign currercies, curnency gaind of legses reafined
between the frade and settiement dates on secunibes tznsactons and the
difference between the reconfed amounts of dividends, interest, and forelgn
withho!ding taxes and the functiona! cuntency equivalent of the amounts
Sctually ieceived of paid are included in net realized gain of less on fareign
curency transactions on the Matements of Operatices Net unreafized foregn
exchange qains and ksses arieng from changes in forelgn exchange fates an
foresgn denomirated assees and Rabilities other than isestments in secuiies
hield at the end of the reporting period ase induded in net change in
unrealized apprecation or deprecialion on foepgn turmency dssets and
[abslities on the Staterents of Dperations

The Mot Asset Value ["NAN) ard iotal returrs of certan Funds (or Classes
thereal, as applicablel are presented in the cunency for which the HAY &
reported (the “MAY curmency™) as detaded in each Fund's Cffering
Memaeandum (the “(iffering Memarandum®). For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAY and the satal return in the HAY Cummenty, the
beginning and ending MAVE e corvened uuing the petiod Beginning and
ending exchange rates, ispectively, and distibitions ase comerted using the
exchange fatwe al the e ol the distributian. See the foliowng Lable for the
HAY curtency and functional curency ol each respective Fund:

| PCE Barda Fomgn Law Cuntonfnd | lopaneseyon | US collr |
| FINCD Bermuda U5, Low Duratios Fend . Jipansun yun | 15, ol 1
| _PCO Fmegng Markets Bord Fand AIITH | Jopanoseyen | UG cobiar |
| PNICD Emisrping Murkets ond Fard (M1 | U5 deller | U5 ol

*_ U

| PABACT) Errwepe ackets: Bord Fard [¥enHedped) | Jipasase g | UG dolle

| ANICD Emping Markets Bone o lipanaseyen | U5 ol |

« JBER

" J BRI

L] JaNRI

o Jmn

- JIUTEY)

v J@M ! |
| M) Eirs Tatal Reterm Fud Eure | fumn |
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OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
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_PALL Pt Fetuss Fond | US.dolr

PAWCO Shart-Terrs Stranegy |
* AlUD Mugtralisn dedise LS. dallar
o I Aspanssa yen U diollar
L] J U0 JANFNAIE e U collar
. U Japanssa pen U5 dollar
= U= L5, dallar LS collar

(d} Multiclass Opengions Each Clew of a Fund oflered by the Tust has
tights to the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, except for specfic assets and gairs anc kosses designated to a Class
refating 1o cureéndy hedgeng aperations. Income, non-Chads specife expenses,
and ran-Class speofic realized and unresfized capital gas and losses aie
albocated to oach Class of units based o the relative meq assets of cach Class
o the ters poctive Fund. Class specific expanies curently include
managerent, advisory, admmitrative and distibution fees, where applicabie

|e) Distribution Polley The following table shows the anticipated frequency
of distributiors for cach Fund. Distribugions from cach Fund may be declared
and ctr bubed 10 Unfthalders only upon the authorization ol the Mansger,
which auhorizaton mﬂy“'ﬂ'ﬁmm a1 e ’\.HI'\K,'E'IE IS0 oy

Dociwres Oasty and Paid Monihiy
PRACTH Eore Toind Fofors Fied

Declured and Paid Manikdy
PAACD Emanging Markets Band Fund (HTF
PRCD Emergang Marhets Bard Fund [Ven-Hedged)
PRACT Emarging Martees Bend Furd §
PG Shoat-Term Strategy

L] J1)

s JILED
Declerad and Paid Lusrasly.
PRACD Berruata Formign Low Duration Fued
PRACD Bermixta U5, Low Duration Fund
Deciaresd and Pald Laspaly
PRACT Al Fehom fond
PRACD Short-Tarm Strabagy

= Al

to dheelarn deatributinns with respaet 19 this
gpteabilal, bt My, ih k8 dissaalion, dek
pay distrhetions to the Unithaldora ot any tma

PRACD Emanging Markots Band Furd (M)

Drestributions, i any, will generally be made from the relevant Fund's [or
Class's, i appicabie) net irveiiment incame. 0 addnkn, the Manager may
authorize the payment af net realized capital gales available for distribution
Addational distributions may be dedared as the Manager deems appopriate
Drstributions paid with reipect 1o any Fund (af Class thereal, if applicable}
will reduce the MAV of such Fund for Class thereod, If apobeable]. Af the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash destributions feom a Fund for Class thereof,
il applicable] may eher be reimveited in additional unia o Fund (of Class
theeol, if applicable) or pad 10 a Unithalder in cash, Cash payments will be
paid in the MAY currency af the Fund Fach Fund for Class thereaf, if
apglicabie) may declade harther distribumons if cotiidesed necestady in oider
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o maintain 3 reasonable level of distrbutions for a Fund {or Class thereal, if
applicable}. In the event that there i nadequate not incame and net realined
capitaf gaims to pay a dstriputios of a Fund {or Class theseof, if applicable)
requined by the Offering Memcrandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
comiting of a portion ol the capital of such Fund jor Class thereaf, il
applicable). Diributions pot collected within six years from ther due dae
will lapse and wall acomee 1o the benefit of the relevant Fund (or Class thereed,
il applicable)

i N Rzcounting Pronouncemaents &5 Mach 2016, ehe Fasncial
Accounting $4andards Board {*FASE")] tssued an Arcountieg Standards
Update {"ASU"), ASU J016-05, which provides quidance related to the
irmpait of dirivatind CONTRACT novatiend an cérTain relationabigs undes
Hezeourting Sandards Codfeation Tape ["ASC") B15. The ASU i efferie
for anmual periods beginning akter December 15, 2017, and interim periods
within frcal yeart bisginning atter December 15, 2008 The Funds ki
adapied the ASU. The implementation of the 45U did not have an mpact on
any Fund's financial statements

in Augeil 3016, the FASE naved an ARUL AU J016-15, which amendi ASC
240 te elaify quidance an the classification of certain cach receipts and eash
payments on the Statement of Cash Fows. The ASU is effective for annual
periods I:fgnr-il'rj after December 15, JO1E, and inferim periods beg ming
afver Decombar 15, 20719, The Fund haee sdapred the 45U The
irplernenitation of the ASL did not have an mpact on @y Fund's financial
statements

bn Mowember 2006, the FASE iisued &y ASL, ASU 2016-18, which amends
ASC 230 1o provice quidance on the dassification and presentation of
changes in nestricied cash and restricied cash eguivalents on the Statesw of
Cash Flowd. The ASU is elletive Tor annual periods beganting altéy December
15, 2018, and imtaim periods beginning afier Decernber 15, 2019, The Funds
have adopted the ASL. The imolementation of the ASU did not have an
impact on any Fund's financial slanements

B Augest 2078, the FASH ssued an A5, ASU 20 18- 13, which amends ASC
220 1o modify the ds<losure requirements on fair valse messaioments. The
M50 i elfective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and
e penods within thise annual peiods. The mpiementaton of the AL
removes or modifies ertain disciosare requiremenss. AR this time,
management his elected 10 parly adopt the ASL and the changes are
imcorporated in the financial statzments

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE
MEASLREMENTS

(] Imvestment Y¥aluation Policies The price of a Fund's unifs s based on
the Funds Mo, The My of a Fund, ar each of is Classes, a5 applicable, &
deteimeined by dividing the total valos of portolia investments and ather
assets atributable 1o that Fund or Class, kess oy labilities, by the 1oz
number af whith outianding al thal Furd of Chis. On each Fund's Dealing
Dy (3 described in the current Dffering Memorandurm of the Trust),

Fund units are crcinarily valued as of the diose of regular trading on the New
York Siock h-:hrﬂ:l {*MYSE Close ™), Information that becomes knows 10
the Funds or their agents atter the time as of which HAY has beéen caboulated
on a partioular day will not gamerally be used 1o cetroactively adjust the price
al @ secwity of the HAV determined eardier that day. Each Fund reserves the
right 1o charge the time as of which i NAY & caloulated if the Fund closss
eailies

Foo purposes of caloulatiog a WAY, portolio securilies and olber asiets o
which market quotes are feadily availabie are valsed ot mariet value Mesket
walue ts gererally determined on the basks of offical desing prices or the last

reparted sales prices, o if po sales are reported, based on guates obtained
from established market makers or prices (including evaluated prices | sppbed
by thee Furds’ approved priciag senvices, gootation reporting systems and
other thind-party sources (ogether, " Pricing Sendces™) The Funds will
nosmaliy ue pricing data for domestic equity securities received shottly after
the MYSE Clase and do not namealy take into scoaunt trading, dearznoes o
setilements that take place atter the NYSE Close. H market value pricing is
s, & Toceign (mon-U0 5§ eguiry secunity madied on @ I'-:n'i:]n enthange o o
e than ane exchange is typecally valued wiing pricing infarmation fom the
exchange cansidered by the Manager to be the primary exchange. A foreign
[ricri =Ll § ) oquity ity viill b walued a5 of the dose of ".|.1r.irr|| an the
fereign exchanigs, or the NYSE Clase, if the Ny SE Chose oooars before the end
of trading on the loreign exthange. Domastc and foregn {non-L.5 ) fied
income securities, mn-eachange traded detivatives, and equity options ane
nadmally ulliisd on the Bads ol gastes sbamed fom bickerd and dealeé of
Pricing Services using data reflecting the eaflier ciosing of the principal
markets for those securities. Prices obtained from Pricing Services may be
basd Gn, armong cEher things, slermation pioaded by maike? makeds or
pstimates of market vakies ohtaned tom yiekd data elafing tn nvestments o
securities with similar charactedatics. Certain fied income seouities
purtkaded an a delayed-deivery badid &'e marked to maiket daidy untd
settlemnent at the ferward settfement date Exchange-traded options, except
equity options, fituwies and opSons on fubunes, am valoed at the sefilement
price determined by the rikvant Sxchange. Swi sgndementd 3o vilued oh
the basis of bid guotes oblained from brocers and dealers or marker-based
prices suppiiad by Pricing Senvices of other pricing sources. A Fund's
imeestments in open-end management iveestment oompanies, olker Bhan
exchange-traded fumds [“ETFs"), are valued 21 the NAYS of such investments
Open-end management imvesiment compuanies may indude affiliated funds

If a foreign (noen:L S ) equity secarity's value has mateially changed afer the
closz of the security's pimary eechange of prnopal market but before the
NY5E Chirse, the security may be valued at fair value based on progedures
etabilhed and approved by the Manager, Foreign (non-L1LS, ) equity
serurithes that do not trade when the NYSE b open ae also valued at fair
value Wih respect to Torelgn (ron-U5 | equity secaibes, a Fund may
duterming the fair value of ryestments based on edormation prowided by
Pricing Seivites and other thisd-party vendors, which may recomemend fair
value o adpustments with reference to other securities, indices or assats. In
cormidering wiwether fair valuation & required and in determinng fair

values, & Fund may, amang other things, conskder dignifacant svers fwhich
may be corsdered to inchade changes ia the value of U5 securities o
scurilind inchioet) that ocos after the dote of the melevast markel and before
the MYSE Clode A Fund may utilipe mode’rq 1ol provided By thed-pany
vendors 1o detemrene fair values of foregen fnon-UL5 ) seowrities. Foe these
puspesEs, any mevemant in the applicable nedesence index or instiument
["zera trigger”) batween the eadier close of the applhcable foreiga market
anc the MY5E Close may be deemed 1o be a significant event, prompting the
apglication of the piidng model (effeciedy resulting in daily fair

valuations), Faneign exchamges may permit trading in fareign (non-U 5.3
equity securities on days when the Trust is not open for business, which may
resull in a Fund's porttolio mvesiments being atiected when Unitholders ame
unebie to buyor sell units

Senior secured finating rate Joans for which an active secondany market exists
to a refiable degres will be valeed at the mean of the last availsble bidfask
prices in the markes (oe such loans, &% provided by a Pricing Service. Senior
secured foating rate koas Tor which an actae secondary market does rot
exisl b a refiable degree will be vakeed at fair value, which is intended to
approxmate marked valae In valung a wnior secired foating rate loan M
fair value, the Factoes considered may inchode, but are nat limited to, the
folipwing: {a) the creditworthéness of the boercreer and any intermediate
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participants, [b) the terms of the loan, {c}recent prces in the market {or
i loand, i army, and (d) resoent prices in the market Yar Sstraments of
simiar quakity, rate, peeiod uritil nest inteeest rate reset and MmalLniEy

Imvestments waluwed in curencies other than the functional osrency

af & Fund are comverted 1o the functonal currency using exchange tated
abtaeed from Priciog Senvioes. A & result, the value of such imvestments and,
i tuem, the NAV of the Fund's urits may be affected by changes in the valee
al cutrencies in relation to the lunctional currency. The value of invesiments
traded in foreign markets of denominaled in currencies other than

the functional currendy may be alected significantly on a day that the Trust is
nnt apen for business, As aresult, to the sxtent that a Furd holds foreign
{noe-Ll 5.) imesiments, the value of those imessments may change af times
whien you cannct perchase, tedeem or exchange iméts and the value of sach
immnesiments wall be redlected in 1he Fund's neadt caliulated MAY

Frvesements for which mukel guales of mivker bated valualiant ane nof
reaillly avalable are vafued at far value & determined in good faith by

1he F.I.mm]gr of perion actng at their direction, The Manager has adopted
nethods fioe vilaieg securities and other assets in croumstances whee
market quobes are rot readdy available, and has delegated 1o PIMCOD the
respornibility far apalying the Lair valuation methods. In the st that market
quabed o market based valastions ae not reacily available, and the secutity
of #54el canhol be valued pursaant 10 a Manacer aposoved valuatian
miethad, the wialue of the secunty or asset will be determined in good faith by
he Valuaton Committes Makel guiles se oomideed nol readdy available
im ciroumstan ces where thene i an absende of curment or reliable manket-
based data (2.9, trade information, bidlask information, indicathe market
gquatations {"Eroker Quoles ™). Pricing SEVIES priCesh, rstluding where
evenis ocoul afien (he dose of the reevant matket, But piice to the NYSE
Close, that maserially aftect the vabues of the Fund's securities cor assets, In
addiion, market quobes ane consicensd not neadily avarlable when, dug &2
extraord inary cirumstances, the enchanges or markets on which the
securities trade do rot apen for trading for the estire day and no other
market pices ae avalabie. The '.1.1n.}gfr n repamnsibe for manilonng
significant events that may matenally aflect the values af the Fund’s securities
or zssets and for determining whether the value of the applicable seounites or
anawi 1% should B reewaluabed in light of sach sigrificant events

When o Fund wses fair valuagion 1o determine the value of a portialo LUy
or other asset for purposes of caloclating its NAY, such investiments will not
e priced on the basis of quotes from the pematy mariet n which they ae
traded, bun rather may b peiced by another methed that the IMarager o
persons acting at their divection believe reflects fab value. Fail valuabon may
requing subjpctiee determinations about the value of a securty While

the Trusts podicy i intended 1o tesult in a caloulation of a Fund's NAY tha
faitly reflacts senmity values as of the time of pricing, the Tast cannot ensure
thas fair values detormingd By the h-"aﬂ.'-gr'l o persons acting at their
diection would accurately sellect the price that a Fund could abtain s a
security # it were to dispose of that security as of the tme of pricing (for
stance, in a foned or distrevsed sale). The prices wwed by & Fund may differ
fram the walue chat wodd be realized if the secuirites were sold

{b] Fasie Visline Hiernnchy U 5 GAAF desaribes Bzl value as the price that

a Fund would recehe b0 <ell an 3482 or pay 1o trarsler 2 Fakeity in an Giderly
framsaction between marke] particpants a1 the meaieenent date, I
establishes a falr value hieranchy that priaritizes inputs to valuation methods
and reguires didosune of the lar value Meraickhy, w:uralnllu for each major
categan of asets snd kabiives, that weqregales Lek vl measurgments iikd
lerls {Lewvel 1, 2, o 3). The inputs or methodoloqy used for valuing seowites
aie not recessanly an indication af the sk associated with isvesting in those
secunities, Levels ¥, 2, and 3 o the fair value hietarchy are defired a follows:

= Level 1=—_{Juoted prices in active markets of exchanges for identical aswets
and Babilitics

» Level 2—Signiicant other nbservabie irputs, which may incude, but are
nod limited 10, quoted prices for simila assefs or liabilsies in markets that ase
acthie, guoated prices lor identical or similar et ar Babilies in markety that
are nat active, inputs othir than guoted prices that ate obsenable for the
assats o lizbii ties {such as interest rates, yield cunves, volatilities, prepayment
speids, babs severfies, credit ks o delaal rates) o other markit
toerabaraled inputs

= Level 3—Signdicant unobservaile inputs based on the best infomatian
avalible in the droumstances, 1o ihe exient obwervable inpats are nok
avalable, which may include assemptions made by the Manager or persans
acting at their duectian that are ied in determining the fair value of
Imeesiments

In zocordance with the requinements of U 5 GAAP, the ameunts ol trandders
Inared out af Leel 3, i maderial, are desclosed in the Notes to Schedute of
Investmaerss kar sach respective Fund

Far fair valuateeers using signilicant urobsenable inputs, LS. GAAR requites
to dischose translers imto and out of Level 3 of the far value higranchy and
purchaes and msoe of Level 3 avsels and liabiigies during the peviod
Addiganally, U5 GAAP requites quantitative lormates regarding the
significant unobservable inputs wsed In the determination of fae value of
dssets o liab ties categorited a5 Level 3 in the fair value eranchy. In
acgmidance with The reguiiements of 1.5, GAAR, a Lir value beetaichy, and il
materal, detals of signficant unobservabde inguts, have been induded in the
HNates to Schedule of Investments for each nespactive Fund

|eh Walustion Technigues and the Fair Yalue Hisrarchy
Level 1 amd Livel 2 irnding assets and teading Babilities, ot lair value The

valusiior methods for “techniques”] and significasd inputs wed in
determining the far valees of portinlio securibes of pther assets and liehbies
categorized as Level 1 and Leved 2 of the v value hiecarchy are s fofiows

Foued ingame securitied including cocporate, comeertible And municipal Bands
anc rotes, U8, goverment ageacies, LS. treasury obligations, sovereign
issues, bank Inans, convertinle preferred seowites and nos-LU' S bonds ae
nosmally valued on the bags ol quotes obdained ‘i ke and dealen or
Pricing Services that uie hnobed-desler quotations, repoited irades o
valuatior estimates from thewr internal pricieg models. The Pricing Senvces’
internal model wie inputs that see obsersable such a4 Bsus details, interpst
TaEs, 'rdl.i Culves, prepayieenl speeds, el raksiyp sady, cefauli rates amd
queted prices for semiar assets. Securities that wse similar valuation
techniques and inputs as decribed above are categotited & Level 2 of the
tair value Pigraichy

Fined income secuities parchaved on a delayed-celivery bassor s a
repurchase commitment in i sale hu,r!tqi fransaction are marked 1o market
diily watil seftbement 5 the lovaid Letthement date and dré categod thed ad
Lewel 2 of the fairvalue hierarchy

Maortgage-related and asset-backed secur fties are wsually issued a5 separate
ranched, or clatees of wecuiigien within cach deal. These securities ane ako
nosmally valued by Pricing Services that use beoker-dealer quotations,
reparted trades of vakaation estimates from thelr internal pricing models. The
pricing models Tor these secutities usally consider Tranche-level antikutes,
oarent market data, estmated cash fiows and market-based yeld ypreads Tor
each tranche, and incorporate deal colateral perlormance, as available
ongage-related and assel-Backed Securiies Thar use similar valuation
technigues and inputs as describad above are cabegorized 2 Level 2 of the
fair valye higranhy
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Commaon stcchs, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and financial dervative
imtruments, sach as fulutes. contracts, rghts and wamants, of options on
futures that are traded on a national secwrities suchange, are stated at the
Lt reported sale or settlement price on the day of valustion: To the extent

These securithes g actively traded and valustion adpsiments are nol appled,

thay e categonzed o Level 1 of the falr walue herarchy

Imvestments valued {denomirated) in currencies other than the functianal
curiency of & Fund are convemed 1o the lunttiong curency using exchange
rates {cutrency spot and fonwaid rates) obizined from Pricing 3ervices. A a
result, the NAY of 3 Fund's units may be aflected by changes in the vale of
cumpncies in relation to the fanctional curency  The vallue of sedurities fraded
4] [-:fe:gn martets or denominated in ourencies other than the funiticesd
curiency may be affecied sigrificantly on & day that the Trust s not open fo
Bugness. Valuation adjustments may be applied 1o certain securities that am
salely traded o a foreign exthange to acoount Tor the market movement
between the clase of the forelgn markat and the NSE Clese. These securities
e valged using !F'ri.':nrl Lervioes that corides the cormelation of the tad Ty
pattedrs of the Teeeign secusity 1o the intraday trading in the LS markets foe
imvestments Sequnties using these valuation adsiments are rabegorized as
Level 2ol the far value hierachy, Prelered seoutities and other equities
traded an indclive markets of valued by ieference o similar instruments are
ako categonized as Level 2 of the fab value hierarchy

Equity-linked secmites ase valued by relerencng the ks reported sale or
skltermn] price of the linked redprenced eguily on 1F & iy cf wiluatin
Foseign exchange adpsiments are aoplisd 1o the last eparted price 1o
convert the inked equity's trading curmency to the contract's settling currency
These ivvestments &g canegonped as Level 2 of the Tair walue hierarchy

Ervessments o fegisteed ooen-end Emestiment Comparmes (other than ETF}
wall be valued based wpan the NANS of such immestments and ase categarized
s Lewnd 1 of the fair varue Bierarchy . Irvestments in unregistered open-end
irvestment companies will be caculated based upon the NaNs of such
levvestments and are considered Lewed 1 provided that the NAVs ane
abservable, calculated daily and are the valoe 51 which both purchases and
sales will be conducted

Equity exchange-traded opticens and awer the coumtet finsnnal derivative

wotruments, sach a3 loraand I'arr'iql' cuinercy conkacts and oplions contrach,

desive thelr value fram wedetying et prices, indices, reference sates, and
otter inpists o & combination af these factors. These conbacts are ru;||ma|l_l|l
valued o the bass of quates ablained tram a quatation neparting system,
establishad market makess or Priciog Sendces [rormally determined as of the
HYSE Close) Depending on the product and the tarms. of the trarsactson,
financial derivative instiuments can be valsed by Pricing Serdiced using a
seties of techmiques, iIndudng simulaon pricing model Tre piricing models
e inputs that are observed from actively quotad markets sech as quoted
prices, suer dedads, indices, budfask spreads, interest rates, impled
wolatfite, yield curdes, dradends and eschange rates Financal denathe
mstruments that use similar valuation :Khl'lll:f..ﬁ&'\ﬂ Inpuits as descrbad
above are cabegonized & Level 2 of the fairvalue hierarchy

Centially clearsd waps and oved the counler fwaps derve they value from
uniderhing asset ices, indices, reference rates, and other inputs of 3
combingtion of these lactors. They are valued wing a broke:-dealer bid
quatation of on market-based pricss prosided by Pricing Services {normally
determrened &5 of the NYSE dose). Centrally deared swaps and over the
counter swape can be valued by Pricing Setvices using a senes of technigues
e luding semulation pricing models. The pricing modeb may vse inputs that
aie phaerved Trom actvely quoted maskets juch a5 the overaght index swap
rabe{” (015", London interbank Cffered Rate ("LIBOR") forward rate, interest

rates, yeld curves and credit spreads. These securitees are categorioed as
Leswed 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Loval 3 trailing meaets and trading Habilsbes, s fair value When a fal
valuatior method is applied by the Manager that uses significant
unchisenable inputs, insestments willl be prced by & method that

the Managed of persons acting a1 thes dinection bl sefeces fai value and
are categorized a5 Level 3 of the fair vahue Feerardry. The valuation
technigues and significan inguts wded in determining the e vl of
portiolio assets and liabilties cotegorived as Level 3 of the fair value hieraschy
are as Tollovs:

Pramy pincing procecures et 1he bade piice of & foed incame seurity and
subrequently adjust the price proportionally To market value changes of a pre-
determined secutity deemed bo be comparable n duration, gensrally a U %
Treasury of toweneign note haied on courdry of smuance. The base price may
be o Benker-deales quate, transacton prce, of an intsenal vk a5 denved by
analysis ol market data The base price of the security may be reseton a
perodic bass ased on the avaBability of market data and procedures
approved by the Valuation Committes. Sigrificant changes i the
uncirenable inputs of the peoxy pricing process (the base price] would result
i direct aad proportional changes inthe Lar salee of the security. These
secutilied gre categoiized as Level 3 of the far value hieanchy

IF third- paety ewaluased vendor pricing ks not avatlable or not geemed to be
indicatree of fair walue, the Manager may elact 1o cbitan Broker Queres
direcily hiom the Evoker-dealer of pinsied theoogh Inom & thind-party vesdor
In the evert that fal value s based wpon a single sourced Broker Quate,
these securities are categorizad as Level 3 of the Fair value hierardhy. Broker
Quotes are typically recenied fram established maske partcipants, Although
Indepencently recerved, the Manages does nct have the tanspatency Lo view
the underlying inputs which support the market quatation. Significant
changes in the Braker Quole wowld have ditect and proporticnal changes iny
the fair value of the secunity

Shert-berm debt instrumenis {such & commescal pager) having a remaining
matuiity of B0 days of bris may be valued ot snortited coil, o long o the
amastized cost vale of such shert-term deiat instiuenents 5 appranmatesy e
same s the fair value of the instrument as determined without the use of
amortired et valution. These secunifies aré categortied a3 Lewel 2 o Level
1 af the fair value heraechy depending an the source of the hase price

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

|} Dedoyod-Delivery Transactions Ceiain Funcs may putihie o sl
seurilies on & delayed-delivery basis. These vansactons imvoke 3
coemmitmrent by a Fund bo punchase or sell secwities for a predetermined price
of yigld, with paymans and defavery taking place Beyond the cusiomany
wttiement penod. SWhen delsyed-defivery Tansactiong ane ouistandng

a Fund will designate or recerve a5 coflateral bguid assets in an amount
sufficiont to mpet the purchase prico or respective thl}:ﬂinr':. ‘When
purchathe] 3 secwity on a delayed-celivery bats, 3 Fund sssumes the rights.
and risks of ownership of the seourity, Incliuding the risk of price and yald
Muctuations, and takes such fluctuationd into account when determining it
MY A Fusd may deapose of of ienegotiate 3 deloved-delivery ansaction
after it is enbesed inta. which may result in & sealized gain oo loss. When

it Fund has soid a security on a celayed-delivery basis, ke Fund does nat
participate in future gaing and hosses. with respect to the secuity,

b} Imflstien-Indoxed Bonds Certan Funds may irvest in inflabon-indexad
bords, Inflstion-indmod bonds afe Bxed Hoome wduiities whote principal
value i periodicaly adjusted by the rae of wflation. The inersi rane on
these bones & generally fined an lssuance at 2 iane bowes than typical bosd
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Owver the e of an inflation-indexed bond, however, nterest will be paid
barsed on 2 principdl value, which is adjusted ler inflation, Ay increase o
decrease in the principal amount of an inflation-indesed bond will be inciuded
at inferest income on the Statements of Operations, even though immestorns do
il receive their principal unlil matwity. Repayment of the criginal bend
principall upon maturity (as adjusted for inflanon) i quarsnteed n the case of
U5, TIPS, For bonds that de not provide a similar guaranies, the adjusted
ptincipal walue of the band repaid an manurity may b beds 1ban the original
pitncpal

{e] Lean Participations. Asaignments and Osiginatiens Cerain Funds may
sl in dinect dieb instruments whach s inderest, in amounis osed o
lenclers or iBnding syndicates by corporate, govemmental, o other Domgwers.
A Tuewd's Investments ir foans may be in the form of partidpations in loans or
askgnments of all o a partion of laans from third parties or imasiments in or
afiginationg of lnant by the Fusd A loan & aften administired by o hank o
other finandial imstitution (the *lender”) that ads &s agent for all holders. The
agent agiministers the term of the loan, a5 specified in the lgan agreemend

A Fusd masy ievcest in mutziple seres or ranches of a bean, which may have
warying terms and cary different associated risks When a Fund purthases
arknments loom lenders. it acquings dinect rights agairn| the bormowers of the
loans. Thess loara may include participatian in bridge loand, which are loans
taken out by barmewers {or a shart period {iyplcally less than cre year)
;1m-21|n|; amangemend of more permanent fingncing through, dor esample, the
auance of bords, frequenty high yield bonds saued fou ghe purpose of
SIS DTS,

The types of loans and related investments. iniwhich the Funds may imvest
imclude, among cehers, senif ans, subondnaled loans (including second
Ty hoare, B-Motes and mezzanine loans), whoke loans, commercial seal
estate and other commercial loans and structured loans. A Fund my
aliginate koans or acguie dinsg imjengsts in loar theough primary kean
distributions anddar in privaie ransactions. in the case of subardinated koans,
there may be significant indebtedness ranking ahead of (he borowe™
ablgaten o the holder of sch a loan, inclyd g in the event af the
barower's insolency. Mezranne laans ane typecally seosed by a pledge of
an equity interest in the mortgage bormower that owns the reel estate rather
tham an inleresl in g mongage

Ervessments i loans may indude unlunded loan cammimments, whach ane
contractual obiigations for funding. Unfanded loan commitments may inchade
mevalving credit facilities, which may oblbgate a Fund 1o supply additiorad cash
1o the besrorver on demand. Ustunded hosn commitments regresent & future
abligation in Tull, even though a percentage of the committed amoant may
rat b witilied By the bocower When investing in 3 laan particpatan,

& Fund has 1he right 1o recehve payments of grincipal, inmenest and sy fess 1o
which it is entitled only from the lender seling 1he loas agreement and caly
upon receipt of payments I:r' the lender from the borower. A Fund may
recehee a commisment fee hased on the wsdiawn pammion of the underying

lime of credit portion of a loan. I certain drrumstances, a Fund may receive a
penalty e upon the prepayment of a loan by 2 borrower, Fees eamed o
paid are recordied a5 8 component of iNDeEs] MCOME oF inleni=t expenie,
respectivaly, an the Statements of Operatioss. Unfundad lozn comesements
aie reflected a5 a Kabdty oo the Statements of Assets and Lablites

{d] Mortgage-Related and Other Asset-Backed Secerities Certain Tunds
may invest in mongage-relatec and other asset-backed securities that direally
or indeectly repeesent a participation in, or are secured by and payabie from,
ligatrs on real propedty, Morigage-refated sequrities ane creatid from pook of
residential o commencial mongage ieans, including mangage baars made by
savings and loan institutions, mortgage bankers, commencial hanks and
athers. These seoufities provide a monthly payment which conaists of bath
Imenest and principal. Interest may be determined by lxed o adjustalie rales
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The rate of prepaymments on |.rdr\.'lp'||; mgages will atfect the price and
volatility ol & excrtgage celated secutity, and may hawe the effect of
shawtering or extending the effactive dusation of the sacarnity relative to what
vas antkipated at the time ol porchase The timely payment of princpal and
interest of certain morgage-elated secunties i quacanteed with (he lull faith
and eredet of the U5 Govemmaent Pook created and quaramped by nan
gowinmmental issuers, Induding goevemment-sponsored cofposations, may be
suppored by varioin farms of irurande of guaramees, bug thece can be no
asdurance that private Rauiens of Guaianoes can mest thei cblgation uhded
the insurance policies oo guaraniee arangements. Masy of the risks of
|m~n.!iru_'| in margagesntlated secuities secured by commtial martgage
Ieans reflect the effects of lacal and other economic conditions on real estate
markets, the ability of tenants to make lease payments, and the absdity of 2
property bo dttract and retain benants, Thede securitics may be bess liguid and
iy Enhilet greater poce valstlity than ather typid of mongage-relansd of
other asset-backed secarities Cther asset-backed secsites ase oeated from
many types of avsets, including, but not lim%ed to, auta loans, accounts
edemable, fuch at aedit card iecevablis and hanpital scoount nedemabled,
hoeme equity loas, student lnans, baat lasrs, moble kome lnans
recteatanal vehice loans, manutactured hoasing loans, ainoal leases,
conputed labded and yndicated bank loasd The Fund msy invesl in drwy el
of the capital strecre of an ksuer of mangage-backed or asset-backed
securities, ncluding the equity or ™ frst loss ™ tranche

|} Colkateralized Mortgage Dbligations. (" CMDs™ | are detit ablications. af a
legal entisy that are coflaseralized by whole morigage lnans or private
maetgage bonds and divided into classes. CMOs ane stnachured inbo multiple
clusses, often referied 1o a8 “manchis”, with each cliss beansg & diffesent
staied maturity and entitled o a different schedule fee payments of prindpal
ang interest, incuding prepayments, CMOs may be less liguid and may exhibit
greater price valatility than ather types of mortgage-retased o mietbached
segibes

i} Stripped Memgage-Backed Socurithes ["50B57) ave desvative muhi-
chags mangage wowites. SMES aie wually sruciured with two cladses that
recewve diffesent proportions of the imerest and princpal detrbubons on a
pocl of martgage assets. An SMBS will have one class that wil recerve all of
the imberest (the intevest-ordy o "107 class), while the other class will receiere
the estire principad {the principai-anly ar “PO° class) Payments recehed for
10 are inciuded in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Because
e uincipel well be received at the maturity of an 10, adusiments are made
1o thee cost of the secwrity on a montly bass unt] maturity. These
adjustments are inchuded in interest income on the S:atements of Operations
Payments meceived for PO s reated a6 reductions 10 the cost and par valus
6 The LaciEties

[g) Coltnteralized Dol Obdigations ("CD0s") indude Colfatealized Bond
Obligations {"CHOs" ), Collateralized Loar Obligations {CLO5"] and other
umilarly stractured sezuriies. CBOs and CLOS are rypes of assel-backed
septities A CBO s a trust which & backed by a diversified pocd of high sk,
below investment grade fived income securites. A CLO is a trust pypleally
collazerakized by a pool of loans, which may include, amang others, domestic
and foresges seniar ssoured boans, sesnet pnasoured boans, and subordinate
corporate koar, including loans. that may be rated below investment grade o
equivalent unrated koans. The riscs af an ivestment ina CD0 depend qulf
on the type of the collateral secunties and the dass of the CDO in whidh

a Fund irsests In ackdition tn the normal iisks sssociated wish Bxpdd income
senaities ciacussed eluewhens im this seport and the Funds’ Offering
Menarandum (e q., prepayment sk, crecit tisk, ligudty risk, markeq ik,
stuctural risk, legal risk and interest rate risk (which may be enacerhated
I imenest rale payable on a stnactured financing changes baded on
midriles ol changes in imenest iaes or imeersely 1o changes in innerest
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rates]h, CBOs, Ci0s, and other (D05 cary additional risks imchuding, but nat
lamited o, (i) the pessibility that distributions from collateral seourities will not
ke adequabe 10 make irterest or other paymenis, i the quality of tha
collateral may deciine in walue or defaul, (i) the risk that a Fund may invest
m CBO4, CLOW, o othes COOs that are subordinate 1o other clasies, and iv)
thi complex structune of the security may not ba fully understend a7 the time
af investmant and may peoduce dispuses with the tssuer or unespected

I omEnt el

{h] Payment la-Kind Securities Cerain Funds may invest in payment in-kind
securities [*PIKs"). Pis may give the issuer the option at each interest
pargmend date al makng sl paymmenis in fther cash andios additionasl
et secuithes, Those addional dabt secwities usually have the wame tems,
imcluding maturity dates and interest rates, and associated risks as the
ariginal bonds, The dady market quotations of the priginal boncs may indede
The aconosd atenst (iefered b A% a “dimy pace” ) and raquins @ oo s
adjustment from the ureealized appeeciation or degredation on vestments
10 inferest recesvable on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

(i) Restricted Secwrities Cemain Funds may hold mestments that ae
subject to legal or contractual iestnctions on resaie. These seounities may be
wold privatedy, but may be required 1o be iegistered o peempied om wuch
regestration beloee being sobd 1o 1he public. Private placement sequrities are
genenally corsidared 1o be restrcied. Dispesal of restricted mestments may
rveive Tme-consaming negotiations and expenses, and promgit sale 31 an
atcephabie price miy be dflicult 1o schieve, Resoicid immestments held by
tha Funds at May 31, 2079, as applicable, are disciosed in the Notes ko
Schedule of brestments

1] Structwred Notes. Cenam Fonds may imes] in strotieed males and atfves
elaled mstruments, whech aee prvatety negatiated debt oblgations in which
the principal and! or interest is detemmined by reference 1o the performance of
& benchmack asset, markel or intérest rabe (an "embsidded ndex |, wath a5
sefecied securites. an index of securites or specified intesest rates, or the
ditferential pedomiance of two assets of markets, such as indenes reflecting
bands. Stnectured instruments may be issped by corpomations, |'rI||r|in5
barks, as well as by goverrrrental agenches. The tems of such structured
imstruments normally prowide that their principz] and/ior intesest payments arz
10 be adjusted upwaids of downwaids {but ondinarily mot Belcw 2ein) b
reflece chamges in the embedded index whils the stacheeed instumenits ae
outstandng. As a result, the interest andior principal payments that may be
made on a structustd prodect may vary widely, depending on a variety of
fectors, includirg the volutility of the embaddad index and 1he effact of
changes in the ambedded index on principal and'or interest payments.

(k] L5 Gewemment Agencies ar Government-Speasorad

Enterprizes Certain Funds may invest in securities of LS, Govemment
agencies or gowernment-spansored enterpeises. U5, Government securitied
ity cobgatang of and, in cerain Cid, guarantésd by, the U5, Gavernment,
its agencies or imstrumentaites. Some U 5. Government securities, such as
Teeasury bills, notes and bonds, and secunities quarateed by the Gavemment
Hatonsl Medtgige Adsoastion [TGHMA® af "Ginne Mae®), aie dsphored
bry the full Faith ard credit of the U5, Govemmant; others, sudh as those of
the Fegeral Home Loan Banks, ate supported by the right of the isswer o
Boiros o the U5 Department ol the Teeasury (he "0 S Tieruy™); and
athars, such as these af the Federal Natonal Momgage Association (“FNMA™
or "Fanmie Mae”), are supported by the discretionary authosity of the U5
Gover Ament 1o pirchase the Sgency s ol gibiond. U5 Goveinimel ieiuliteg
enay inchecke 2eio coupon secutives which do not dstibute intsest on a
cursent basis and tend 1o be subject to a greater risk than interest-paying

secuittied of simidar matunted

Governement-related quaramioes (e, not backed by the full facth and credit o
the LS, Gowvermment) inglude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan ’-m:tlr,\:-gr
Comporation [“FHLMC " or "Freddie Mac” ). FNMA is a gevemment-sponsoned
corporation. FHMA purchases comventional [ e, nof insured or guatamieed by
any government agency) residential moncages lram alist of spproved
solleeiservicers which Include sute and federally chanened savings and loas
associations, mutual savings barks, commercial banks and credit urscns anc
mrnghge bankers Pais=iheough secusites miwed by FNMA ané quardnioed as
te Hirmely payinént of pindapsl and interest by FNMS, But aie hat Becked by
the full faith and oedt of the LS. Government: FHLMC ksues Participation
Cortificates {"PCs "), which are pas-theough securities, aach |r'prf-:ar.1'mr; an
uncidded inteest b a pool of residernial morgages. FALMC quaramess the
tiemsedly pagmeent of interest and utimate collecton of prindpal, but PCs are rt
backed by the full faith and ceds of the U % Governmen!

Linder the dirscion of the Federad Hoiging Finande Agsncy, 1he Fedenal
National Martgage Association {"FNBA™) and the Federal Home Loan
r."n".llrp;r Corporation {™FHLMC ™) have entered info a joint initiatie o
develing & comenan secatitization pletfeem far the iss=ance of a infom
mistgage-hacked security (the " Single Seanity Initative”) that algns the
characieiistics of FbA and FHLME certificates, The Single Security b e
was implemented on June 3, 20719, snd the effmcry it Py b o The marie
fer morigage-backed securifies are uncertain

Pl teming strategies can be wed whene a Fund seeks 1o extend the
eagirabon o maturily of & position, such as a TE& securily on an undelying
assel, by closing out the position before pxplation and opening a rew
posstion with respact to substantially the same underdying asset with a Eater
eapErabon date, THA secutines parchased or sokd ane eflecied on the
Stasements of Assets anel Liabdites as an asser o babslity, respectively

{1} When-laawed Tranasctions Ceiain Fundd may puichass ar sl seaiilted
on 3 when-issued basis. Theds transactions are made conditionally because a
secarily. although sahodiped, bk not yet been isued in the

marksl Tramsactions bo puschase oo sell seouiites on a when-ssued bass
Imvatve a commitment by a Fund to purchase or sell these securities for a
predeteimind price of yiekd, with payment aod celreery 1aking place beyond
e ¢ustomary sentlement perod. A Fund may sell when-esesd Seuf tes
beloae they are defivered, which may result in a iealized gain or low

|m] Bomlk Obligakioes Eank obligations in which a Fand may imest induds
certificates of depesit, bankers' soceptances, and fied time deposits
Certilicates of depasit are negotisble certificates issued against funds
deposited in a commercial bank for a definile period ol time and ¢aming a
specified tetuin. Bankers’ acceptances ane mogotioble drafts or bils of
enchange, rarmally drawn by an imporier or exporter to pay Tor specific
menchandise, wiich are “accepted” by a bane, meaning, in effect, that the
bark wtonditionally agreest o pay the face value of the instrument on
maturity. Fiwed time deposits are bank okligations payable at a stated

maturisy date and begring interest at a faed rate. Fioed lime deposits may be
withcawn on demand by the immstor, but may be subjec 1o sarly
wilhrawal penaliies which vary dependirg upon market conditions and the
rermanng matutity of the cblgation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRHANSACTIONS

The feliowing discloures cantain indomeation on the Furds' abdity 1o lend o
bosrow cash o7 securities to the edent permitied wde: the Ofiering
Memorandum, which may be viewsd as bormoaing or linandng transactions
b the Furds, The location o these indiruments i described below, For a
detaded deseniption of cedi and counterparty fisks that an be assocated
with bomowings and ather rancing transactions, plase see Mot 7,
Prancipal Raks
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{n) Repurchase Agresments Certain Funds may engage in repuichase
agreements, Under the terms of a typical repanchaie agietment,

a Fund puschases an urderlying debr sbligation (collateral) subjedt to an
obligation af the seller to repuichase, and a Fund to resell the obligation at
an pgreed-upon price &ad time. in an open maturity repuichise agréement,
thare & no pre-cereimined repurchase date and the agreemant can be
termimated by the Fund or coumtemparty at any time. The market valoe of the
collateral must be egqual 10 o exceed the total ameunt of the fepofchake
ablgatess, intuding menest. Repunchaie sgreements, ncluding accrued
imterest, are included on the Statements of Assets and Lisbilties. Interest
eamied is recoeded a5 & companent of interest moome on the Statements of
Operatians. in pariods of increased demand far collsteral, a Fund may pay a
fee for receipt of collateral which may resubt in interest expense io the Fund

{b] Rewerse Rapurchase Agresments Cortain Funds may enter into reverss
TRt e AgteRments In & reverse epuichade xreement, a Fund delivees a
secunity in exchange Tor sh to a finandal instihution, the counberparty, with
a simultareous agreemend b repunchase the same or substantially the same
security 31 an doreed upon price and date. In an apen madunity revere
repurchase agieement, these i no pre-detemuned repurchase dade and the
agmeement can be ferminated by 1be Fund of counderpasty at any ime

i Fusd o entithed 1o receye principal Bnd interest payments, if any, madhe an
the secutity delkered 1o the counterparty during the term of the agreament
Cash recesved in exchange for secunties delvered plas accoued inferest
paymenty b0 be made by o Fund 10 counbesparties are rellechid s a Bability
an the Stabemerts of Assats and Liabiliies. Interest paymens made by a Fund
1o counterparties are recorded &5 a component of nkerest expens2 an the
Harements of Operations. In perods of increased demand for The Sty

a Fund may 1eceive a Tee for use of the security by the coumieiparty, which
mmary resull in intenest income to a Fund. A Fund will segeegate assets
detormmaned 10 be ligud by PIMCD o will othemwite cower 18 chigations
under 1everse repurchase agreements

{c] Sala-Buybacks Certain Funds may enter into finandng tansaction
releried 1o 34 ‘sale buybacks'. & sale buyback financing transaction consists
of 3 sale of 3 security by 3 Fund to a fimanclal institutien, the countemarny,
with a simuhtaneous agreement 10 repurchase the same o substandially the
e secuEily al an .rilq:'.'d upon pice avd date. & Fund i rol entitled to
recehie principad and mleredt payments, if any, made on the security soid 1o
tha counterparty during the term of the agreement. Tha agreed:-upon
proceedts e securives to be repurchased by a Fund aee refecied a5 a laddlity
an the Sanements of Assets and Liabilnes. & Fund wll recognize net income
represenied by the price dfferential between the price recetved for the
trarmfemed seowity and the agreed-upon repurchase price. Thit is cammonty
releEmad 0 a5 the ‘price drop’. & price diog consins of 0 the hl!l}u.‘l.- a gL
and inflationary income adjustments, if any, a furd would have othenwise
received had the security nat been sald and (i) the negotiated Fnancing semes
etweren a Fund and counternamy. Foregone interest and nflabianary income
adjustments, i any, are recorded as componenss of interest income on the
Hatements of Operations. Intecest payments based upon negatiated financing
e mads by @ Fund %0 countecpanties ane recoeded a4 3 companent of
Ieterean expense an the Stasements of Operaton: (m pedods of inceased
demand fof the seceity, a Fund may recehee a fee Sor wme of the seaurity by
1ha counterpany, which may result in interest isscomae 304 Furd A Fund will
seqiegate assets determined 1o be liquid by PIMCO or will othenadse cover its
I:lhln:||1|.n'.1. under sale-buyhack tramsactioms

{d] Shom Sales Cedram Funds may enter ino shor ks vansactions. Shor
saled aie andacioed in which the Fund sefis a secunty that it may ned awn
A Fand may make short sales of securities to (i) offet potential declines in
Iy poddtions ir samika secwritieg, (i) [ incneae The: fecibilty of the Fusd,
(1K) foe investmant retam, (] as part of a rkk arbitrage strateqy, and i) s
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part of its overall porticlio man agement sirategies |n-m|.|rq1||t e af
dorvative ertruments. When a Fund engages i a shoet sale, it may borow
the security sold sheet and deliver i o the courterparty. The Fund will
ortinarily have to pay a fee or premium 1o borow a security and be chligated
1o repay the lender of the ssourity any dividend of imerest that aconees on the
sorutity during the pesiod of the laan. Secuities sobd in shae sale transactions
an the dividend or interest payeble on such secorities, i any, are refiected 23
prybibe for shor wies on the Stanements ol Assets and Liabilities. Shoe sales
expase the Fund o the risk thet it wall be requited 16 covér iy shon pesition
at a time when the security or other asset has spoedated in value, thus
|Q1.|,|Ilin|] im fossers b0 they Fund, A short sabe is “agairst the box™ if

the Fured hiolds in its portfadio of has the night 1 aoquire the sacarity sold
shart, or secunties identhal i the seomity sobd short, at no additional cost

A Fund will be sobiect 1o additional risic 1o the extent thad it engages in short
wileg that Mé ot "agierdt the baa. ™ A Fund's o4 of & dhait ke coxild
theoreticalyy ba unlimited in cases whese the Fund is unsble, for whatever
reaon, b ciose out its short pesition

6, FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thie fabowing disclosures conain infameation on how ard why the Fands use
Tinarcial dervative irstraments and heow finandial derhvativee instruments
affect the Funds’ financial position, iesults of operations and cash flows. The
location ard fair value amousns of these inslruments on the Statementd of
Assats and Liabities and the ret realized gain {loss) and ner chasge in
unrealized appreciation {depredation) on the Statements of Operations, each
:a'.rgm:.'rd by tvpe ol francial deivative cantract and related rsk expoung,
are included in 2 table in the Noses o Schedule of Investments. The financia
deryative instruments outstanding as of period end and the amaunts of net
reatized gain {hoadl and net change in unreakoed appeeciation (depregation)
on financial derivative instruments. during the period, as dedosed in the
Nates to Schedule of Ineestments, serve 35 ndicator of the vwelume ol
[inaricial dermvative activity for the Funds

{a} Forward Ferpign Cemency Cemtracts Cenain Funds miy engage
forwand loreign currency contracts in connection weth setling planned
purthades or sale ol secundies, to hedge the curtency papdiunhe Msociated
with some o all of & Fumd's securites or as pan of an investiment srategy. &
Torward lore g currendy contract & an agreement Between two paities i buy
and il 3 curtency at a sel price om & futune cate, The market value ol 3
ferwimnd Ionegn currency contract Hlutuases with changes in fonsign currency
exnchange rates. Forward lorelgn cunency oontracts are marked to matket
daily, and the change in walue & recorded by a Fund as an unrealized gain o
loss. Realized gairs or keases ane egasl 1o the diffeence between the value of
the contract a1 the time it was apenad and the value at tha time it was chored
ang are peconded upon delivery o eceipl ol the cunency, These contracts
iy irrwolve markeet fisk in gncess of the unrealized gai or loss reflected on
the Statements of Assets and Liablities. In additien, a Fund oould be axposed
to nsk if the counterparties are unable to meet the terms of the contracts or if
U walue of (b cunency changes unlavorably o the funclional cumency. To
mitigate such risk, cash o secutithes may be exchasged as colazesal pursuart
to the fenrs of the underiying contracts

Cerain Funds having 4 hidged Class may ab entes into hanward fonegn
cumfency contracts desigred 1o offzer the effect of bedging at the Furd lewel in
order 10 leave the hedged Class with an exposure bo curnendics ather than the
fumctional curnency. There can be mo quarantes that these Clags soeciic
forwand foreign currendy contracts will be successful

(b} Firtwrees Comtracts Cerain Funds may entes into futures contracts. &
futures coniract i an agreement to buy or sell o security of other avset for a
sot piice on a fulure date aod are taded on exchanges. & Fand may use
Tutunes contracts fo manage (s exposaie B0 the securities markets o to
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ety in inteest ales and currency values. The primary risks associated
with the use of futures conracts are the imperfed) comeltion betaeen the
change in matket value of the sacutites held by a Fund and the prices of
futures contracts and the porssibility al an Wliquid market Futures contracts
atie valogd based upon their quoted daily settement paces. Upon entéring
it a futures contracy, o Furd i reguired to depasit with it futures broker an
amount of cash, U5, Government and Agency Obligatons, o select sovereign
detal, im accordance with the initlal mangin redguigements o The broke o
exchange. Fulured contracty aié mked b maiket daily and based on such
maerrents in the price of the contracts, an appropriate payable or recervable
for the rha.m]n_ m walue may be posted or collected by the Fund [ Fatures
Varlation Margin®}. Futures Yaziation Masgins, if any, are disciosed within
centrally ceared financial deshvative Instruments on the $atements of Assets
and Lisbilites. Game o lodaes ane necognized but not comicened npalined ontil
The confeacts Expee of civds. Fuluiéd SoNKacts ifwohe, 1 vanang deqiees,
risk of boss in excess of the Futures Varlation Margin induded within
exchange traded or centrally cleared fnancial derivative irstruments an the
Saatemints of Assets and Liahiatie

{e] Dptions Contracts Cerfan Funds may write oe purchase aptions to
evhance refyrms of 1o hedge an exisling positon of Tutue irwesiment, Cedain
Furds may write call and put options on securities and financial derivative
brstruments. they own of inowhich they may Irvest. WWeiting put optians tends
1o mprease a Fund's exposure 1o the underling mstrument Witing call
apticrs temds 10 decneaie & Fund's exposuee 10 the underlying irtrument
‘When a Fund weites 2 call o put, an amoust equal to the premium recetved is
recoeded and subsequently marked to market to reflect the current value of
1he colion winben These amoonls 26 indludéd on the Statéansnts of Asgaty
and Liablites. Premiures received from wiiting ogtions which espire are
treated as realized gains. Premiums received fram wiiting options which ane
exmciued or closed are added to the proceeds or aflget Qa1 amouniy paid
on the underdyng futures, swap, seculity or cumendy transaction to datermine
fihe reafed gain or hoys. Cerlain options may be wiitten with peembums o be
determined on & fubaie dase. The premicerrs foe these aptions ane based upon
iemplied wolanlicy parameters at speciied terms. A Fund as a writer of an
opbon has no control over whether the underyng Fstrument may be sold

(" cal™) or puichased ("pn™) and a3 & resolt bears the marke! risk of an
urifavoratle change in the price of the instrument andeilying 1the written
aption. Thene Is the risk a Furd may not be able o enter inte & closing
Tramaction because of an iliquid market

Ceriain Funds may aln purchase pot and call eptions. Purchasing call optioes
tends 1o increase a Fund's exposure 1o the underiying instrument. Purchasing
put apticns tends to decreate a Fund's exposse 10 the erderying imlrumans
A Fund pays b preericen which & included a5 an asset on the Statements of
Axsets and Liabilities and subsequently marked to market ta reflect the
cunient walun of the option. Premisens paid for p|.|d1m.in|; options which
eaplie are eated x realired losses Certabn aptions may be purchased with
premiums tobe determined om a future date. The premiums for these options
ale based upon implied volatility parameters at specified terms. The risk
ssnciated with purchuring pun and call options i limited 10 the presium
paid. Presmiums paid far purchasing aptines which are esercised o dosed e
added to the amounts pald o olfset against the proceecs on the underdying
irestment iramack an 1o determine 1k ralived gain oo L when the
underlying transactian i esecuted

Cradit Mﬂtswium Certain Funds max wite or purrhese cedt detaull
Lanliond 10 hidge eapoture 10 the credil ik ol an imvesomint wighout
making & commilment i the underlysg nstrument, A cragdit defaut swaption
b5 an option bo sell or buy credit protection ta a speafic relmence by entering
o a pre-detined swap ageement by same specifed date in the huture
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Farsign Currency Opflems Certain Funds may wiite or purchise foveign
CastnEnicy Oplions 1o e used 0% a short o boag hedge against podaible
variations. in fareign exchange rates or 1o gain expose to foreign curmencies

Inflaticn-Capped Options Certan Funcs may weite or puschase mflation-
agped options to-enhance retams of for hedging opporiuniies. The purpose
ol [II:II.'ih]'IIrH_] rilation-cappoed opSans is %o probect 2 Fund from inflation
sicuion abeve a certain rale on a given notional exposure, A loar can be
ugeed 1o getve dowmsede proEeion 10 wvesiments o inflaton-linked produCs

Imimeast Ran-Capped Options Certan Funds may waite o1 purchase interest
rale-capped options 10 echance returms od for kedgirg opportunities. The
purpose of puschasing intenest rate-cappéd optiom |5 b protect a Fund fiem
Hﬁé[l'lg rate risk ahive 3 CEMAm rate o & gven notanal expdsure. A flet
can be wsied to give downside probection 1o irvestments in merest rate linked
products

Imtarest Rats Swaptions Cortain Funds may wite o purchase inSerest rate
wraptiont which ae ogtions 10 enter in%o a pre-didingd Swap ageement o
1o shorten, exdend, candel or othersise modify an exsting swap agieement,
by some sgecified date in the futwe. The writer of the swagtion becomes the
counierpaity to the fwap if the buyper execcises. The inlerest rate swaption
agreerent will specily whether the biuyer af the swaplon will b a foed-rate
recerver of i fied-rate payer upon exerdse,

Optiens en Exchange-Traded Faturea ConBracta Certa n Fusch may weile oo
purchase oplions on exchange-paded futures cantracts (" Futures Optien™) ta
hedge an exdsting position or future imvestment, for specsiative purposes of to
IMaEGE ExpoLsE Lo market movemenis A Fuluees Ogtion f an option
ecaitract n which the underying irstrument is 2 single futures contract

Optlens &n Secodties Cerman Funds may waitz or puichase oplion
weowites 10 enhance tebutrs or 1o hedge an exsting paition or fuluee
imeestment. An oplion on o security ises & specibed security as the uncerling
Instruementt for the option contract

[d} Swemp Agrasments Certan Funds may invest in swag agreements. Swap
agreements ae bilaterally negotianed agreernents between & Fund and a
counterpany to exchange or swap irvestment cash flows, assets; foeeign
cumrgnciek or market-linked refums at specified, hutwe intervals. Swap
agrisments my be privately neqotisted in the OTC market o may be claared
thwoagh a thind pary, known &s a cendral counserparty or derivathves clearing
organization ["centrally deared swaps™). A Fund may enter into asset, oedit
defaelt, cross-cutrency, imenest rate, total retuen, varance and other foems cf
SWAM AGIEEMENtS 10 Manane it exposure ba credit, currency, infenest rate,
commodity, equty and inllation risk. 1A conmeclion with thise agieements,
seurities o cash may be identified as collateral ar mamg n in accordance with
thee e of the respectiae Swap agreements 1o provide sssets of value and
mernirss m e event of default or bankruptoyfirsnbmney

Centeally cleared vwvaps are maried to marke? dadly based upen valuation as
distesmined from the underlying contract or in accordance with the
reguirements of the central counterparty or derivatives cleasing cvgarization
Changes if maiket value, if any, &e reflecied a4 2 companent o net changs
in ureealzed appreciation {depreciation) on the Starements ol Opesations
Daily changes in valuation of certrally deared swaps (" Swap Variation
Margin®™}, it any, ame discloved within centrally cleared Bnancial dervatave
Instrumenits on the Mataments of Assets 2nd Lisbilziss, OTC SWap psyments
tecewved or paid at the beginning of the measuiement penicd are indleded on
the Staterments of Assets and Liabilties and represent premiums paid o
eceivid upon enlerng inlo e Swap agreement 1o (oTpEale fai
diffzrences between the stated terms of the swap agreemens and prevading
markel conditions {credit spreads, cunency exchange rates, mlenest rates, and
other redesant factors], Uplont premiums received {paid) are initially recorded
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s labilities {nsseis} and subsequently marked to market to reflect the cunent
walye of the vwag These up"l:,n'l premiums ano ecorded 25 realined g.1irr. ar
fosses om the Statements of Operations upon tevmination or maburity of the
swap, A liquidation payment received or made 31 the termination aof the swap
mreconded & realized gain o |ods on the Stazements of Operatians. Net
petiodic paymints recewied of pald by a Fund are included 2 part of realized
gains of lpsses on the Staterrents of Operations

Fot purposes of applyng certain al a Fund's imestment policices and
tesmictiony, wwiap sgieements, like gtk derivative insiruments, may be
valued by a Fund at marked value, notional value or hull exposure value. In the
cage of a crodlif defauill swap, in apphyng certain of the Fund's investment
policies &nd restrictices, the Fund will value the credi default swap a1 is
notional value or fs full exposure value [l.e., the sum of the notional amount
{or the contract plus the market value], bt may value the coedit defadll swap
Al market value Tor purpeses of appiieg cemain of e Fund's other
Imvestment policies and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value oedit
dedault sevaps at Tull exposure value for parposes of she Fund's credis quality
quidelieses {if 2vy) because such value i general berter reflects the Fund's
artual evonorrec exposure dueing the teem of the oedit default swap
ageement, As a resull, a Fund may, at times, kave rotlonal esposure toan
assel class (before recting] that & greater of lesser than the stated limit o
reswictian neted in the Fund's Offering Memarandum. bn this coniest. both
the rational amount and the market 'walme may be posstve or negatve
depending on whethers (he Fund & seling or buying protectian thioogh the
credit defaudt swap. The manner in which cerfain sequiites or ather
irstruments are valued by the Fund for purpases of appling imestment
palicies and resiricton. may diffier fram the mannar in which thoe
evesinenis aie valosd b ather tydes of investots. Enleneg Into swap
agreements imchves, bo vanying degrees, elements of infenest, credit, market
and documentation risk in excess of the amounts necagnized on the
Staterents of Assets and Liadivbes. Such risks involve the possibiity that

there will be ro bguid marke e these agreements, that the vounterparty to
the agresments may default on its coligation to perform o disagree as 1o the
meaning of conracisal tems in the agreements and that there may be
unfavoraole changes in inderes: rates or the values of the asset upon which
the wwap is bined

A Fund's maimum risk of lovs from counterpasty eredit rak i the decountied
et value of the cash flows 1o be received fiom the counterparty aver the
consiact’s remaining e, 1o the ecent that amount is pesitive. The risk may
e mitigated by haning a master nering arrangement between a Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collateral to a Fund 1o cover a Fund's
exposre b the counleipasty

To the xtent a Fund Bas a policy 1 Emis the nel assount owed 10 of 1o Be
ieceived lnoem a single countérparly under exivting vwap agresirenty, such
Femitation only applies to counterparties o OTC swaps and does rat apply to
centrally deared swvams where the countesparty is & central counterparty or
At vatnes Ciiad i) e gurLEalion

Credit Default Swap Agresments Certain Funds muy enter inta

credit defauk swaps on cosporate, lean, soveieign, WS munidpal or U5
Tenasury issLaes 1o provide a meakure ﬂl'plu‘t-rllnr.aqnimtdclaulln al the
Haues Le, bo reduce rak where o Fund ownd of hag exposure 1o the
referenced obligation) or to take an active long or shart position with respect
1o the likefibood of a parficular issuns defawt. Credit defaclt swap
agiesments invohe ane party making a sream af payments {relered o &
the buyesr of protection) o another party (the selier of proection} in exchange
for the right 1o 1eceive a specified return in the event that the ieherenced
enity, obigatian of index, = specified i the swap agieement, undergoes a
ceraimn credit event. As a seller of protection on credit delault swap
agreements, a Fund will generally ieceive from the buyer of protection a fied

rate of income throughout the term of the swap provided that there s no
ceedil evenl. As the seiber, o Fund would r1|'|'|::r-'|:lg,l add leverage o i
postiolio becasse, in addition to its 10%al ret assets, the Fund would be
subgect to Investment exposute on the notional @mount of the swap

Il & Fured 13 & seller af protection and a cedit event oo, ga defined under
the e of than partiosar swap agresment, a Fund will either (] pay 1o the
buryes of prolection an amount equal ta the notiona! amount of the swap and
takg defivery of the refenenind cbiigation, ather defreerable obligations o
unciechying secarities comaiising the refecenced index oe i) pey & et
setilement amount in the form of cash or securties equal 1o the notional
amownt of the swap lets the recovery value ol the wiesenced obligation o
unideshying secdrities comarising the refesenced ind2x if 8 Fund is a buyer of
protection amd a medit svent ocrues, &5 defined under the terms of that
particuiar pwap agreenent, a Fund will gisher () receive Trom the seller of
pralecTion an Amount aqual o the notens] anoont of the owap and delier
the referenced cbiigation, other defrserable obfigations or underhying
secuites compresing the referenced index or il receswe a net setflement
amaut im the form of cash or securities equal 4o the notonal amount of the
swap less the recovery value af the relerenced ebligation ar underying
seorities gomprsing the relenenced index, Recovery valpes ant estimaled by
markel makers consiceésing eiker indusiry standard monny rates of entity
speciiic facioes and conshderations untl a credt event ocours If @ credit event
has poourned, the recoveny walue i5 debermired by a taciliated auchon
whereby b minimum number of aliowable beoker bids, wopether with a
specified waluation method, are used o caloulate the setdement value. The
ability 1o defiver ceher obligatiors may rewult in a cheapest-to-deliver aption
[the busee o protecsan’s right 10 choose The deliverable obligaticn with the
lowest value foliowing a cred event)

Crediz defaw't swap agreements on credit indices imvalve one party making a
siream of payewnls 1o anather party in eschange for the nght 1o receive a
speified 1etum m the event of a wiite-cown, priscpal shoedzll interest
shartfall ar delault of all or pan of the referenced entites comgrising the
coedil index. A credil mdex is 2 basket of credit instrumentd or exposures
desigred 10 be represestative of some part of the credt markes as a whahe
These indites am made up of relerence credits that are judged by a poll of
dealers 1o be the moat lguid entities in the credit delault v market based
on the seciod af the index Companents of the indices may Include, but &e
ot limited to, investment grade secorities, high yield seouwities, asset-bacied
seriarities, emerging markets, andion varicuk credi® ratings wishin each seclce
Credit indices are traded using eredit default swaps with wandardized terms
Inchudirg a fixed spread and standiasd masuriey dates. A index credit default
srap eelenerces all the mamis in the index, ad il thee is a default, the oredit
ever i6 sertled based on thar name's welght in the Bdeg. The composizian of
the indices. changes perodically, wwualy every six months, aed for most
indices, each rame has an equad weight in the index: A Fund may use credit
default wwaps on credit indees 1o hedge a pertinlio of cred defacl swaps e
bonds, which is less expensive than t would be ta buy many credit default
swaps 1o achieve a similar effect. Credit defasl swaps on indices are
ingzrurmests for prodecting imaeston owning bonds agirt delauli, snd
traders use thism to speculste an changes in credit quali

Implied credit spreads, repeesented in absolute terms, utized in determining
the market walue of coedit defaull swap agreements on cofporate, loan
soveteign, U5 munidpal o U S, Treaswry kssues as of pencd end, If amy, are
dischosed In the Mates to Schedule of lvestments Thl}II serve as an indicador
of the current status of payrenvperiormance eisk and represent the Eoelihood
of ilsk of defach for the elerencad entity. The mplied credn speead of &
particuiar rederenced enity refiects the cost of buyingfsalling protection and
may O lude updront paymisnts requined 10 be made 1o enber inta he
agreement. Widsr credit speeads represent a deterioration of the eferenced
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entity's credit souncness and a greater lielhood or risk of defaw or ather
credit event occurting as defined under the terms of 1he agreement. For crodit
default swap agreemeants on asset-backad securithes and oredit indizes, the
quobted market pices and rewilting values serve as the indicator of the oarrent
s1atus of e pa',.m:n'."pﬂ‘.mmalxr bk, Inereding macke] waloes, in abdalute
terms when companed 10 the natienal amaant of the swiap, represent a
detericeation of the referenced entity's oredit soundress and 2 greater
teelibood af rivk of deliul of other credit enent pEcuiring a5 diefined uncer
the termia al the sgreement

The maximum potertial amoent of future payments (undiscounted) that

& Fund] 4% & wilier al peatecins could be requined 16 make undes & ered
default swap agreement equals the notional amount of the agreement
Haotional amaunts of sach indwidual cedit defzult wwep agreement
outitandng at of petied end lor which a Fund & the selier of protection ang
dicloted in the Maoted 10 Schecule af Investmsnts TR potential amounis
would be partialty of fset by amy recovery vakies of the respective referenced
abligations, upbont payments recefved wpon entering inio the agreement, o
i armounis teceived from the settlement of buy protection medit cefadl
swap agreements entered info by a Fund for the same referenced entity or
enilies

Interast Rate Swap Agreements Certain Funds ae sobyect to infecest rate
fhsk exposure in the nomal course of purasng thelr mestment abjectives
The vahue of the foed rate bonds that a Fond holdy may decrease if imterest
b dise, To hedp hedge againgd this tisk and 10 maintain s ability (e
generate income 3t prevailing market rates, a Funid may entes info interest
rate vivap agreements. Inerest rate swap agreements imvolve the exchangs
bry @ Fursd wigh angther party for their iespeciive ommitmen to pdy ar
tecene intefest o the notlonal amounl of principal. Ceram loms ol inteest
rate swap agreements may include: [} intevest rate caps, under which, in
retorn for & precmius, ane party agrees 1o make payments 10 the other 1o the
extent that imterest rates exceed a specified rate, or "cap”, (i} interest rate
floors, undes which, in et Tor a premium, ore party agrees to make
payments fa the ather to the extert that inserest rates fall below a spectied
rate, o “oor”, (i8) imerest rate collass, undes which 2 party sells a cap and
purchases a floor o vice versa in an attempt 1o protect izsell against intecest
rabe meyements exoeeding given minimum o maxinum levels, i) callabhe
irerest tale swaps, under which the buyer pays an upliont fee in
oonsideration for tha right 1o eady terminate the swap fransaction in whols,
al rero cost and at a predetermined dale and time peiod 16 The maturity case.
{v) spreadincks, which allow the infeness rate swap users B2 lock in the
foroaed differential {or spread) between the Intesest rabe swiap 1a%e and a
speified benchmark, o () basis swags, under which fwo parties can
exchange varisle imerest raes based on dfeent segments of money
markets

Total Retern Swap Agresmsents Certain Funds may enfer into total retum
WD M MERMEns B0 gHn O Mimgate expasure 1o 1he underlying relenenoe
Tottal return swap ageesments imalve commizments whese single or multiple
cash flows are excharged based om the price of an underlying reference asset
and on & looed or variakle interest rate. Total return Swap agreements may
Irtlve commitments 1o pay inserest in exchange fee a market-linked rebun
One counterparty pays out the total return of a specific underdying refevence
aiel, wiich may mclude a '|.r\-g|L- wecunty, & haske! of securities, of an index,
and In return recewes 3 feed or variable rate. At the matunty date, a met cash
Hlow s enchanged wheee tte tntal reteen is equaalent tn the retum of the
uncerlying refitence diet s a fl'li:l{il‘ll‘, rare, i ang. &S 2 recERer.

Fumd would recetve payments based on any pesithes tofal retun and would
awe payments in the event of a negative fotal retum. As Bhe payer, a

Furd would owe payments on any podithee tatal return, and would ecere
payments in the even of 3 net n2giive 1ol rensn

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

In the normal course of business, the Funds (or Acquired Funds, if applcable)
rade Imandial imsiryments and emer io linandial nsschont where ik ol
potential loss exiss due to soch things as changes in the market (market isk)
of failure or Inakefity of the other party to a arsaction o perfoim (oedit and
counterparty risk). See below lor a detailed descrption of select principal
Tiles

Fume of Funs T the extent that certain Funds imest substantially &l of e
respoctive assety in Acgured Funds, the risks associated with imesting in
these Funds will be closely related to the risks associated with the securities
and other investments held by the Acquired Funds. The ability of the Funds to
ichievr their respective investmeni obiectives may depend upon the ability of
th Acquired Funds (0 achiess ther réedpactive mvestmisnt ahjectives. Thete
ran be no assurance that the imvestment objectve of any Aoguied Fund will
be achieved, The HAY of an Acquiting Fund will Tictuale in response 1o
changes in the respective NAY of the Augaied Fund in which il invests

In thee normal course of business, Acguieed Funds trade financial istruments
and gner imo Financial transactions whiess sk of potential loss exists due to
changes in the markes (market risk], of falure or inabilty of the e pamy 1o
a transaction 1o perfoem (oeds and COuniepasTy 1sk)

Markot Riska A Fund's ivestments in finandal derivative instruments and
othier tnanoal instiements exposs the Fund 85 vanbus sk sach a5, but fBat
limited o, intefess rawe, hreign (nan-L0.5 | cureency, eguity end commodicy
s

IriBeress rade fisk if the isk that Ticed income secuities 35d othel mitruments
held by a Fund may decline in valuee berause of an increass in interest ates
s nominal interest rates rise, the value of certain Sxed income securities heid
by & Fund i likely to decredde. A nominad ikleest rate can be descnibed a3
the sum of & real imerest rate and 2 expected inflation rate. Intesest rate
charges can be sudiden and urgpredictable, and a Fund may hose money if
these changes ate rol anticipated by Fund management. A Fund may not be
able to hedge aqaimd changes in interest rates ar may choode rof 1o do 4o fior
ot or other reasons. In-addition, any hedges may not work as intended

[huration i o measune vied to determine the tensitivity of & Secunty’s price to
thanges in inbesest iates that inmmpedates a securitys peld, coupan, final
maturity and call features, among other characteristics. Conveity 5 an
adcitional measuee used to underitand a security's or Fund’s inbenetl rate
sty that meeasures the rate of change of durslion i iedpanse t
changes In interest 1abes. Foted income securities with fonger dwiatkans tend
to be more sensitive to changes in interest rates, usually making them mom
volatle than securities with shorer durations. A wide variety of faciors can
raurse iierest rates to nse le g, central bark manetary pofioes, inflation
rates, geosemal econcenic conditions, elc ], Unde! currenl economic qonditions,
Interest rabes e near histarically fow levels. The Funds currently lace &
heightened level of inferest rate nsk, especialy sinoe the Fedesal Reserve
Baand has ended its quantitative easing program aad has begun, and may
poETlinue, 1o rabe interes! rates. To the extent that the Federal Reierve
continues 1o rafse interest mibes, 1hene ks a risk that rates: acrass the finandial
system may rise. Further, while bond markets have steacily giown over the
past thiee decadss, dealer “markel makirg™ ability has not kept pace and &
soene cases has decieased Given the mportance of nlermediary “market
making™ in creating 3 robust and active market, fieed income securities ane
carrently Eacing increased volatility and liguidity mics. All of these facions
collecthvely andior individsally, could cause a Fund 1o lose value, ¥ the Fund
lost enough value, the Fumd could face inmeased Unitholder redempbions,
which could force the Fund 1o iguidate imsestments at -:I':;nr!m-ﬂarp:u{:. times
of prioes, thereby adveriely affecting the Fund. Ao, the Fund may be
adversely sffected when a lange Unitholder perchases or redeems large
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amounts of units, which can occur at sy time and may ‘mpact the Fund in
the same manner & a high volume of redemption mequests. Lange Uratholder
transactions may impact the Fund's ligudity and net asset value. Such
tramsactions may ako increase the Fand's tramsacton costs or othensise
cause the Fund to perdorm diffesently thas intended. Moceaver, the Fund is
subject ta the rick that ather Unitholders may make Fvestment decsions
hased on the chalces of a lange Unithoide

The Fumds may irmnesd sgnificantly in securities thal are ecoromically ted 1o
Aggenting and thus subgect 1o vanous ks, such a8 palitcal, scoromic, lagal,
markat, and ourmency risks. Cumently, investreents in Argentna are
patticularly subject 1o elfects from the country™s high inflation, economic
ratabslity, and pofitical st

A Tund may have significant esposune 1o ssuers in the United Kingdom. The
Uhnited Kingdom’s decision 10 kave the Ewropean Union may impact Fund
retand This decision miy cluse Substantial volatfity in Biegn exchangs
markats, lead toweakness in the exchange rate of the British pound, result in
a sustained period of market ancertainty, and destabilize iome or all of te
ather European Union member countries andior the Ewozane

Foepign (non-U.5 ) secunities in thes eport e dassifed by the cowniry of
N ol & hodding. In cevlain Emlarce, o secuily's ountny ol
irconparation may be different friom s country of economic expodute

H a Fund imvests directly in foreign {non-U %S ) comendies or in securities that
trade in. and recenve revenues in. foseign fron-U 5D cumrencies, of in Snancial
demvetive instiumerts Thal provide expmure 1o foiegn {noceU S | (eende,
it willl be subject to the risk that those curencies will dediee i value relathe
o the base curvency of the Fund, o, in the case of heaging postions, that
The Fund's base cutrenty will dacling in value relatve 10 1he cuitendy Bivg
hedged. Curiency rates in forelgn countiles may Tuciuate significantly awer
short periods of time Sor a number of reasons, induding changes in interest
tates, intacwention [of the: falune 1o merene] by LS. of Madeigh conmimenent,
central banks or supranational enttizs such as the International Monstary
Fursd, or by the impostion of cavendy controls or other pobtical devecoments
i the Uited States or abroad. A5 8 regalt, 3 Fund's invesimaents in farcign
curtency-deraminated secuities may reduce the Fund's returs

The market values of equities, such & comman stocks and predemed securities
of eguity relsted investmentd sach as futwres and opEicny, kave historically
thsen and fallen in perodic cycles and may declne due fo general marked
condiions which are not specifically related to 3 particuar company, such &
teal of perceived adverse economic conditicen, changes in the general
outleok lor cosparaie eamings, dhanges in imersst or curtency rales of
atverse mwestor senfiment gereraly. They may also dedine due to factors
which allect & partitular indssny of industries, weh as Lo dharages o
ircreasad procultnn (018 and competitive condtions within an indusiry
[efferent types of equity seourities may react differently to these
developments. Equity securities and squity related investments generaly have
qeates marked prace volatilty than foed income secunties

The Funds may invesd in certain instruments that rely im some fashion upon
the Londca interbank Céered Rate (LIBORA™). LIBOR is ar average interest
rate, determned by the ICE Eeschmark Administration, that hanks charge
ane anacher for the use al sharm-tem maney. The United Kingdom's Financial
Conduct Autharity, which regulates LIBOR, has announsted plans 1o phase out
the une of LIBOA by the end of 2021, Thene remaing uscetainty rega M.'Im:j
future utilization of LIBO# and the nature of any replacement rate, and any
potantial effects of the transftion away from LIBCA on a Fend o on certan
wntrumants o which & fond investa aee not knmyn

Credit and Coumtarparty Risks & Fund will be exposed to cred 1 ik 1o
parties with whom it sades and will ako bear the rk ol stiement delaut

A Fund minimizes concentratom of credd rsk by undertating transactions
with a lame nember of costomers and caunterpartics on recognized ard
reputable exchanges, where applicable. OTC dervative trandactions are
sulpedt to the risk that a counterparty to the tramsaction will nat fullill s
cortrectun’ abligations 1o the other party, & many al the pratections sfforded
to centrally deased derivative ransactions megitt not be sadable for OTC
derwative ransactions. For dervatives traded on an exchange of theough a
cantral countisparty, crtde risk regides with 1t creditwcethiness of

the Fust d'itlrurlnq Beaki, af the deanaghoiss i, rather tha 1o &
counberparty in an OTC denvative fransaction. Changes in requlation relating
o -a Fund™s wse of denivatives and related imsruments coukd pu’.-'.ﬂnllﬂ"" lirmit
of nipact the Fund's ability to ewest in deriatives, limit the Fund’s abiiry 1o
employ certain strategies that use derivatives and'or adversely affsct the valee
or performiance of derivatives and the Fund, A Fundi could lowe money i the
IRkuef of Guaranton of A loed Benme Wiity, o the ¢ouflBipaity i A
finzmicial detivative instruments contract, iepurchase agreement of a loan of
postiolio securilies, i$ unable ar umwilkng 1o make timely principal andior
Interest payments, e to otheswise honce its obligation:. Securities and
financial dermvative instruments 2 subgact o varying degees of oredit risk,
which may be rellected in credi ratings.

Sirmilef 8o credif ritk, a Fund may be expoded to counterparty vk, or the ik
that 4n instifution ar other entity with whch a Fund has unsetiled of epen
transactions will defaull. PEMCDL 25 the Marages, minimipes countemparty
1ikes, 16 the Funds hrough & numbsss of ways, Frion 10 emlening inlo
transactiors with a new counterparty, the PRMCO Counterparty Risk
Commistes conducts an exdensive redit review of such countesparty and musst
approve the use of such counterparty. Farthésmeore, pursuant to the 1eimed of
the underlying coniract, i the extent that unpad amousits cwed 1o a Fund
exgeed a precietermined threshald, such counterparty shall advance collateral
1o a Fund in the ferm af cach or securities equal in value ta the unpaid
amouwr owed fo 2 Fund. A Fund may invest such coliateral i secunties or
other instruments and will typkally pay smieresdt to the counterpanty on the
toflateral received. If the uapaid amownt owed e 2 Fund subsequenily
decreases, a Fund wauld be required to retumn to the countesparty all o 2
postn of the collateral previously advanced. FIMCO's atternpts to mmze
counlenpaty risk may, hiwever, be unsacoestul

Al irarsactions m Eted seourites e sentledipaid for upon delivery wsing
approved counterparties. The risk of default is considered minimal, a5 defwery
of securities sold i only made once @ Fund has recenmed payment. Payment is
made on & pusthase ance the seturities have been deliered by the
counterparty. The trade will il f either party fails 10 meet its obligation

B. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject 1o vanoas nelting anangemesis (" Master
Agresmenis”] with sefect counterparties, Maiter Agreements govern the
terms of certain transactions, and are intended to reduce the counterparty risk
assotiated with relevant transachions by soecthyrg credil protection
mechanivms and providing standasdifaton thal i mended bo improve legal
certainty. Each tepe of Master Agresment govens certai fypes of
transactiors. Ditferent types of tansactioes may be traded out of ditferet
legal entities of allilistes of 3 pasticylas prganization, risulling i the: reed oo
midtigle agreements with a sngle counlerpanty, &s the Masies Agreements
are specific 1o unique operations of diflorent asset fypes, they allow @ Fund o
ot out and net its total exposerd b0 & countenpaity in the ovent of a defaws
with respect ta all the transactons govemed under a single haster
Agreement with a coentenparsy. For financlal reporting puiposes the
Statements of Awsets and Liabilities generaly present dertmtive 25wt and
lishalies o & groas basis, whach reflects the ful risks and exposiees peior 1o
natting
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M asier .-fu?'l'--nl-:l'ﬂ. can also help limit counterparty risk by specifying
collateral posting amangeme pie-aranged coposune bevels, Under most
Master Agresments, coflateral is routinely transferad if the total met axposure
o oertain ransactions {net of exsting collateral already in place) govemed
undef the pelevant Master Agreement with a counterpany it & ghven sooun]
eqcoeds 3 spedified theshald, which typscally ranges from 2ero ta §250,000
depending on the counterparty and the type of M:
Sates Tredrsury Balls aned U5, callr cish ang gereral
collateral, althcugh other fore ol A0 fated paper of stnvereign securilie
may be wsed depending on the t2rms putlined in the appli
Agreement Securities and cash pledged a5 collatesal ane r
SLETS on the Satements of Aszets and Liabilmies a5 aithes 3 componant of
mestments at walue {secatities) or Deposits with Counkerpary Cah C
mpceivied & nat typicaly held in a seqgregated acoount and as such is rellocied
Ty oh 1he Sintemants of Asiets and L i il epotins feom

arty. The market vabse of any securities receved as collateral & not
meflected a5 @ component of NAY. The Fund's overall exposune to
courteiparty sk can changh subdtantally wathin & thon peid, a5 i i
attected by each transachon si hiert 1o the relesant Mas:pr Miypement

Wagiet Repurchase Agreements and Global Mash
(individually and cofectively “Master Repo Agr gomern repunchase
reverse repuichase, and safe-huyback transaclions between the Funds and
select counterparties. Master Repd Agreements mairgain provisonsg for
among alher things, init n, income paymeents, events ol delaul
maintenance of collateral The market value of transactions usder the Masier
Repo Ageement, collateral pledged or recerved, and the ret exposure by
countpany i of period end ane ducloted im the Notes 1o Schedude of
TVestmEnts

qreeeits

basier Sec 3 Forward Tramsaction .ﬁl;'rc'r.rﬁl".l:'r.‘im.lnr- Farwaid
Begreeme ) gowern certain lonwvard setling bansactions, such ay TBA
secunties, delayed-deinery or l.ahﬁ-l:u,ua:h. trarsactons by and

between (e Fusds and select countenparties. The

collate hedged o ieceived, and the net eapo
peetiod end are dicloted in the Nows 1o Schedule

i ColE
fIveLImants

Customer Arcount Afreemaerts and related addenda govem cearnsd
derivatives trarsaction such as tubues, options on fuluses, and deared O1C
derivatives. Such ramactions requiee posting of initlal margin as detemaned
by mach mlevant deanng agency which & seqregated in an acoount at a
{utures commission mechant {"FCK™) registened wath the Commodity
Futures Trading Commission (TCFTCT). i thie Unitid S120es, counmespamy tisk
mary be reduced as creditors of an FOM cannot have a claim to Fund assets in
the segregabed account Portabilty of espasure in the event of an FCM
detault seenara furiber redaoes ek 10 the Funds Yariation miat
chaniges in mareat value, a8 eahanged da ly, burt miay naot be retted
between futures and cheared OTC derratives unless the parties have agreed
10 & Separate steangement in resped of fond margning, The masket value ar
atomulated urdealzed appreciation (depreciation), inMal mangin posted, and
any wsettled wariation masgin a5 of period end ane disclosed in the Kotes to
Schedule of Freitment

Imternationsal Swaps and Der ves Assocation, Inc. Masier Agreemenis and
Support Anrexes {1 Master JIII;'I!Pﬂ'PI'llkr:hT.-'UI n hilatera OT(
difvalve Barcticr eflered inla by the Funds with Select courspates
FSMA Blasted Agreements maintain provisions for general obligat
representations, agreements, collatenal posting and events of default or
1emmination Bnents af Temmenaticn icclude condiions that may entitle
counierpariies 1o elect 1o teiminate ealy and cause sett

r

outstardd ng trarsactions under the agpbicab e 1504 Master Agreement Any
electon 10 termerale carly could Be matersa 1o the hinandial shsement In
limited ceoumstances, e DA Master l".glélllr'!l"'. May Contan additonal
provisions thal add counterparty protection beyand caverage of existing daily
experiune i v courtemparty his a decling in credit quality below a peedefined
lewel, These amaunts, i any, may be sagregated with & therd-puwty oostodlas
The market valuz of OTC financial dervative struments, collateral received
of plidged, and net exposure by courterpeety a5 of period end ane divchosed
i thee Netes by Seheduls of Imetiments
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to Financial Statemen

8. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund ks subject to the Follwisg Tees payable at the Tollowing anual rates (stabed as a percentage of the average daily ret assets of each Fund, or Class, #

anplicahle, taken senaratsly)
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MMCD Eurn Tetal Ratem Fend nas% 025%" 0% [k
MMCD Rzal Return Fund oan%" 025%™ % [ilef i
PIMCD Sharl-Tam Sirstogy
. ALD 035 %° 0m%" 032%"
. J LAY
. o (UED|
. Jr 135 %™ ™ o™
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The managemant, ﬂ\“_\q‘l'j' andl adminstrative bees, il appicable, are paid monthly in amears to PIMCO or providing or arranging for the prowision of advisory,
ardministratioe and thind party seneces indudig audit, cusodal, oo, portiolio accounting, routing legal, transter agent and primting senices. The agency and
distribution fees, iF applicable, ane paid monthly in arrears to reimberse finandial imtermediaries that provide senvices and distrution relating to the units of the
applicable Fund (o Class thereol, 35 spplicable). In the case aof the PIMCO Bermuda Foseign Low Duration Fund and MO0 Bermioda U 5. Low Duration Furd, PIMCO,
aut of its managemerst fee, will bear the oot aisocaied with sdvisory and sdministratie seraces, 0. 1% ol which i dedigrated 10 cove sdmirmiiralive expenses. i
eqchange Tor this fee, FINCO will baar the costs of cerrain thind-pasty senvices required by the Funds, including audit, catodial, tnustes, panfelio accounting, legal,
transfer agent and prnting senvices. MIMCO, and not Unitholders, would benefit fram any price decrease in the corst of swch thind-party services, induding decrezses
esulting from an imfhéase in ol assets. In addition, with respect 10 Fusds thal dre subject o an adminigtashoe fee, PIMC O generally mates & poolit on such a fee

A nofed in the table above, cerain Furds and Clasass of Funds s not subisct 1o management, advisory, sdminiicative, agency of distribution fess. AMCD lapan
Lid, PIMCO's affiliale im Japan, is paid a fee from the Japanese investment Trusts or otfer investmert vehicles that irvest in swch Funds or {lasses and a paition of
such bee & then aliocated 1o PRCD 1o compensate if for s services

T Fumds {or Classes thereof, as apolcable) may bear ccher expenses related o thes operaticn that ane mot oovened by the managemient, advisory, adminsirative,
agenty o datribution {ees, includag but not limited to: (1) tases and governmental Seex; [ji) beokerage fees and commessions and other portiofo Tansaction experdes;
{in) coits of berming morey, inchuding interest pperies {iv) extracedinary exseries, including couts of [itigation and sndemnificatsan experriaes: and () any expenses
afecited o allocable to 4 spealic Clats of urits, as agpbcable. FIMCO had paid, o wall pag. the anganizanenal expenses adsocraded with PIMCD Shat-Term Sirateqy’s
irtial set-up

PIMCO andior its affliates wil iritialy advance to FIMC O Shart-Term Strateqy a costs and expenses, inchiding lega! expermes, inoamed in connection with the initial
public n‘!r'-nq of she IPY and USD Classes of Units of the Fund in Lipasy 1= 0# Eapetrega”) AL Of fas B COMmantBmEnt ol the Fund's aaerations, the Fund will
reimburse PINMICO ancor its afiliates o the Ofering Expenses advarced and will amonize such Ciferng Experdes oves the first Bscal year of its cperations. Howeser
PIMCO has agreed o wawve reimbarsement of the Offering Experses to the extent that such experses eaeed 0.05% per annum of the sum of the @Y and LSD
Classes Net Asset Value (the “0ffesing Expense Limitation®). Ay Ofiering Expenses waieed due to the Ofering Expense Limitataon may be ecouped by PINCO andior
its affiliates ot @ period rot ecceeding Bve years from the commencenent ol the Fund's opeations; provided, the amount recouped by PIMCO andior its affiSanes shall
not ddceed 0 05% péd Snnum of the wim ol the IPY and USD Claced” NAV, If enker ol the IPY and USD Clastes of Units of the Fund & teiminatsd ghior 10 the ful
reimbursement af all Otfering Experces, FIMCO andtor s affiliztes shall not seek reimbursement of any remaining uneeimbursed amounis from that Class.
Turthesmore, if both of the IFY and USD Classes of Units of the Fund are terminated prior 1o the full reimbursement of all Offerng Dxperses, FIMCO andor its afilates
thill it seek rismbursement ol any fembining unesmbunisd EHbunts liam this Fund PIMCO S5 pued, oF wall pay, all eodts and espensed, ndluding legal sxperdet,
mcurned in connection with the initlal public offering of the AU Class at Ursts of the Furd in lapan As ol May 31, 2019, there were no recoverable Offering Frpenses
T FIMC D andior its alfiliaes

PIMCO has appoined SMBC Micko Securitie Inc. 10 act as Acen| Company and Ditributar for the distibution and senvicing of units of the PIMCD Euro Totel Retum
Furd, FIMCO Real Retwn Fund, and the i1 ard USD Classes of PIMCO Short-Term Strateqy to retail iveestors in lapan. FIMCO has appointed SMEC Nikko Securities
nc 1o act as Agent Company for senvicng of units of AUD Class of PMCO Short-Term Strateqy. No agent companies bawe been appointed for 2y of the other Funds.
PIMED has pad the crganizational exgerdes associated with the ceation of the Tiust o furiber Funds are launched, sech oosts directly artiibutable to the ielevard
Furd may be bame by the relevant Fund

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Imvestment Advisar 15 a refated party 1o the Funds and ts @ majosity-owned subsidiary of Allanz Asset Management Al Fees pald to the related party, if any, ame
disclosed im Note 9, and accrued related party fee amounts, If any, e disciosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

Alliang Asset Maragement AG. a related party of the Trust, owned 0.054% of the net assets of the PIMCO Shart-Term Strateqy as of May 31, 2015

Certain Funcs ate parmitied ta purchase or sell secusities rem of to cevtain eelated aflilated hunds under spectied conditions autfined in procedures adapted by the
irrvesement Achiser. The procedunes have e designed Bo emsure that any purchase of sale of securities by a fund Tram or 1o another fund that is of could be
comadened an aflikae bry Wit tue of hanirng & comman adviser (of sllilisled imvestment sdvees), is sllected & the cunient ket price. Duiing 1he period ended May
1, 2019, the Fundis) belaw engaqed in porchases and sales of seoulites among aflilated Funds (amounts in theusands):

Ferel Purchases faley
PIMCE Barmrogtia Fodmags Low Dutingn Fung I '] i1
PIMCT Berrraia U5, Lowr Dusstion Fund 1] Z.188
ML Emergeag Matkets Bord Fund W} =1 57 658
PIMCT Byrp Tatal Beten heng 2] [F ]
MDD Ze Rrivm Fad (] 189
FMCD Sz Tm Srategy T TEaE

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Under the Trust"s ceganizational documents, cerfain padties (including the Trustes and PIMCO) are sgemnified against cariain Eabiites that may arse out of
peiformance of thelr dutles to the Funds. Additanally, in the mormal course of butiness, the Funds enter inda coniracts that contain & varety of indemnifcation clauses
Thee Funck' miimum exposaee under these arangements is unknaws as this would invohe fute daims that may be made sgainst the Funds that have nof yet
ocoumed, Howeser, the Funds have not had prior cams or losses porsuant to e copiacs

Rl Rrpirt | My 31, THIN 12
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Notes to Financial Statements «

12. UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

ssued wit
it " - e creale and 3 g 355 o Classes of unigs of any d

Changes in urits of beneficial inbeest were a5 follows (units and ambunis in thousands® )

Viear Dneed Toar Lnded Viear Lnaed Toast mdad
May 11 208 ey T, 3R May 11,203 ey T8, 3000
Unita Bt Uniu Amcins Uit Roviianl Unity Aciim
Eimcagrs b e s . H | 1408 a 1 Lo Mmoo M [ M
S 1] A L) KA NA Wik ge oy [T
ush Mis Kk [ KA WA Wik B 1H15H
Cet ol iain racrmted 5 L EL 4] [TEETT] 411 [EARE:T 2] N
i T Hik N KA WA Wk [ g3
{:21] s ik L KA ) Wik 110,401 (i ol 2]
Hi i | Sermich
e from Fosd urit
T a% Rk @2 o4 digh o ] ! A0S ¢ (190N
Vet Daded Foar Encded Tant Eodd Fooas Ervilaed
My FL B Wy 1, HAY My 11, 3015 ey 1, 1S
Uniin Lanand Unra Awregm Uity Byrwan) “Uaam Areian
Farerges bat e ol T | EMHE WA KA TR - i i 5
J {BALI 1] ik [ 4138 Nk Wik K N
il Ml =] i el WA Wik Ry L1
N iy 1} LTE! N Wik ] N
J N s A ] e N4 Hid KA N
THY ] NIk 4% BE [} Wik KA T
ZAF (11} Ha a | EBE L] Wik KA Wk
Ituad i Faat e of
A mess B i WA KA (] ] i G
NIk Nk I [ Wk Wik [ L
1IN (11 Wi ] 7 Hi Wik L4 LE
Cem of units racasmad 108 5153 ik A 158 ey | e 1.9
EA Hig HE i} L.TEE L) Wik L LR
i Wi NiA 8 (L] L) Wik KA N
(IR ] Hik (L] L B Ci ) Wik ] N4
J[NOH| N s (=]} [¥0 .- o N'A Wk %] M
A TRY s WA 4 L5 R WA ik KA M
AR (1] MLk [} 8 N Wik [ N
Wt et sl
Fiand wevt reracsom BN 1 e 4B 8 (7138 0 OER e 26 1 1554

Rl Rrgirt | My 31, T
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13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATHOMN MATTERS

s are nat named as dedendants in any materiad lisigation or arbliration proceedings and ae not aware of any materizl itgation or diam perding or

egaing spedks only i of the date of the repant

14. INCOME TAX

Trust Is subject to Bermuds L
ary Fung
As a result, B pre

respet o its tax shatus. L

the T

U5, GAAP provides gu
2019, ¢

recoed any

My remain sutsact fo exgim

Rl Repirt | May 31, THIN 4
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(2020 )
) ( )
39,999 5,019
14,266 1,790
25,733 3,229
2,353,669
10.93 1,371
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(€)) (2020
941,473,871.63 991 9,369
850,000 150,000
58,608.02
850,000 150,000
250,000 1,250,000
2016 338,413,044
2017 308,558,334
2018 302,158,349
2019 388,027,447
2020 941,473,871.63
@
(Managing Member)
( (limited liability company agreement)
©))

2020

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Joshua Anderson

Andrew Balls

Jamil Baz

Ryan P. Blute

Philippe Bodereau

Andrew Bosomworth
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David L. Braun

Geraldine Brigliadori Walsh

Erin Browne

Elizabeth Cantrill

Rick Chan

Michael A. Cudzil

Joshua Davis

Craig A. Dawson

Pramol Dhawan

Chris Dialynas

Dragesic, Anna

Jennifer E. Durham

Mohsen Fahmi

Feigley, Patrick

Joachim Fels

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

Alessandro Gandolfi

Russell Gannaway

Stuart T. Graham

Granger, Nicolas

Gubner, Adam L.

Sachin Gupta

Gregory W. Hall

Brent R. Harris

Jonathan L. Horne

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. lvascyn

Andrew R. Jessop
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J
Nicholas J. Johnson

Alec Kersman

Mark R. Kiesel

J
John J. Kirkowski

Kimberley G. Korinke

Ryan Korinke

Richard R. LeBrun

Dirk Manelski

Sudi N. Mariappa

Rene Martel

Scott A. Mather

Ravi K. Mattu

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

Mohit Mittal

Eric J. Mogelof

Alfred T. Murata

John W. Murrary

Lorenzo Pagani

Stephen A. Rodosky

Emmanuel Roman

Jerome M. Schneider

Marc P. Seidner

Robin C. Shanahan

Greg E. Sharenow

Adam Shukovsky

Cathleen M. Stahl

Jason R. Steiner
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Christian Stracke

Peter G. Strelow

John J. Studzinski

Sung Hee Suh

Eric M. Sutherland

Eve Tournier

Qi Wang

Weinstein, Jamie

Whitten, Candice Stack

Frank Witt

Robert 0. Young

1971 1940
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BMA

60

BMA
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2020 316
756,134,525,314

110 432,282,969,481
21 11,826,904,761
12 23,182,295,631
65 210,527,754,578
9 9,743,068,747
31 9,034,921,807
34 20,279,288,243
13 23,333,250,384
1 267,250,248
5 2,334,060,291
15 13,322,761,143
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2020 31
105.36
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
2(c) 422,556,446 44,520,547 429,220,995 45,222,724
2(d), 4 30,623,395 3,226,481 32,459,901 3,419,975
2(e) 698,851,736 73,631,019 552,952,116 58,259,035
2(e) 282,546,439 20,769,093 254,081,349 26,770,011
36,373,824 3,832,346 32,604,941 3,444,739
2(e) 25,219,844 2,657,163 25,166,878 2,651,582
2().8(e) 19,239,181 2,027,040 15,657,169 1,649,639
7 13,010,339 1,370,769 7,382,210 777,790
60,915,714 6,418,080 43,846,429 4,619,660
1,589,336,918 167,452,538 1,393,461,988 146,815,155
2019 12 31
325,786,180 2018 12 31

292,930,004 2(F),6 144,839,482 15,260,288 146,862,606 15,473,444

2(i),10 209,441,754 22,066,783
2(§).8(e) 669,472,591 70,535,632 460,075,450 48,473,549

2(h) 30,865,176 3,251,955

2(9) 24,413,103 2,572,165
2(b) 16,086,963 1,604,922 13,463,668 1,418,532
9 33,253,757 3,503,616 29,821,480 3,141,991
1,128,372,826 118,885,361 650,223,204 68,507,517
2,717,709,744 286,337,899 2,043,685,192 215,322,672
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2019 2018
409,454,573 43,140,134 433,350,570 45,657,816
7 228,000,000 24,022,080 212,000,000 22,336,320
8 208,752,447 21,994,158 155,868,165 16,422,270
5 124,895,219 13,158,960 102,698,345 10,820,298

2(i).10 30,057,351 3,166,843
7 21,460,619 2,261,091 20,488,078 2,158,624
2(r).8(e) 19,239,181 2,027,040 15,657,169 1,649,639
11,190,145 1,178,994 8,230,351 867,150
1,053,049,535 110,949,299 048,292,678 99,912,117
2(r),8(e) 669,472,591 70,535,632 460,075,450 48,473,549

2(i),10 220,717,637 23,254,810
8 164,382,884 17,319,381 130,404,396 13,739,407
2(i),10 42,013,112 4,426,501
3,022,510 318,452 1,550,631 163,374
1,057,595,622 111,428,275 634,043,580 66,802,833
2,110,645,157 222,377,574  1,582,336,267 166,714,949
850,000 (683,902,349)  (72,055,951)  (792,957,184) (83,545,969)
150,000 1,288,040,853 135,707,984  1,267,204,122 133,512,626

2019 12 31
48,876 2018 12 31 45,705 28,952,832 3,050,470 23,722,086 2,499,359
2019 12 31

153,400 2018 12 31 143,858 8(a) 32,591,945 3,433,887 28,576,118 3,010,780
2(0) (58,618,604)  (6,176,066)  (65,196,217)  (6,869,073)
607,064,587 63,960,325 461,348,925 48,607,723
2,717,709,744 286,337,899  2,043,685,192 215,322,672
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2019 2018 12 31

2019 2018
2(e) 3,801,610,877 400,537,722 3,699,085, 263 389,735,623
2(e) 1,011,008, 189 106,519,823 897,932,904 94,606,211
2(e) 1,152,533,169 121,430,895 1,121,459,653 118,156,989
2(e) 380,555,089 40,095,284 400,632,761 42,210,668
2(e) 23,903,886 2,518,513 21,116,690 2,224,854
6,369,611,210 671,102,237 6,140,227,271 646,934,345
8 2,125,025,461 223,892,683 1,921,490,575 202,448,247
5 857,070,964 90,300,997 814,837,039 85,851,230
2(s) 637,010,892 67,115,468 625,372,554 65,889,252
214,712,229 22,622,080 246,110,361 25,930,188
6,10 159,176,036 16,770,787 152,147,106 16,030,219
2(n) 120,596,262 12,706,022 116,090,003 12,231,243
50,264,299 5,295,847 54,856,322 5,779,662
27,702,379 2,918,723 61,327,125 6,461,426
4,191,558,522 441,622,606 3,992,231,085 420,621,467
2,178,052, 688 229,479,631 2,147,996,186 226,312,878
57,347,069 6,042,087 24,051,878 2,534,106
2(i),10 (10,703,929) (1,127,766) (2,267,772) (238,932)
2(b) (1,278,635) (134,717) (1,873,076) (197,347)
2,223,417,193 234,259,235 2,167,907,216 228,410,704
9 98,821,295 10,411,812 105,979,276 11,165,977
2,124,595,898 223,847,424 2,061,927,940 217,244,728
2(0) 6,577,523 693,008 (19,376,611) (2,041,520)
2,131,173,421 204,540,432 2,042,551,329 215,203,208

279/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 2018 12 31

2017 12
31
850,000

IFRS 15

(721,216,276)  (75,987,347) 150,000 1,290,399,100 135,956,449 45,705 28,660,677 3,019,689

(17,852,184)  (1,880,906) (3,319,784) (349,772) (959,921)  (101,137)

850,000

PIMCO

(739,068,460) (77,868,253) 150,000 1,287,079,316 135,606,677 45,705 27,700,756 2,918,552

1,523,328,377 160,497,878 450,997,001 47,517,044 87,602,562 9,229,806
(1,595,853,856) (168,139,162) (470,872,195)  (49,611,094) (91,581,232) (9,648,999)
18,636,755 1,963,569

2018 12
31
850,000

PIMCO

(792,957,184)  (83,545,969) 150,000 1,267,204,122 133,512,626 45,705 23,722,086 2,499,359

1,556,133,972 163,954,275 472,136,883 49,744,342 96,325,043 10,148,807
(1,459,197,453) (153,741,044) (451,300,152)  (47,548,984) (91,397,156) (9,629,604)
1,444,428 152,185
10,673,888 1,124,601 302,859 31,909

2019 12
31
850,000

(683,902,349) (72,055,951) 150,000 1,288,040,853 135,707,984 48,876 28,952,832 3,050,470
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2019 2018 12 31

122,972 30,984,305 3,264,506 (45,819,606)  (4,827,554) 583,008, 200 61,425,744
(22,131,889) (2.331,816)
122,972 30,984,305 3,264,506 (45,819,606)  (4,827,554) 560,876,311 59,003,928
2,061,927,940 217,244,728
(2,158,307,283)  (227,399,255)
16,228,568 1,709,842 16,228,568 1,709,842

(18,636,755)  (1,963,569)
(19,376,611)  (2,041,520) (19,376,611) (2,041,520)
143,858 28,576,118 3,010,780 (65,196,217)  (6,869,073) 461,348,925 48,607,723
2,124,595,898 223,847,424
(2,001,894,761)  (210,919,632)
1,444,428 152,185
14,992,574 1,579,618 14,992,574 1,579,618

(10,976,747)  (1,156,510)
6,577,523 693,008 6,577,523 693,008
153,400 32,501,945 3,433,887 (58,618,694)  (6,176,066) 607,064,587 63,960,325
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
2,124,595,898 223,847,424 2,061,927,940 217,244,728
14,579,559 1,536,102 15,754,902 1,659,936
65,882,645 6,941,395 45,224,698 4,764,874
10,703,929 1,127,766 2,267,772 238,932
1,278,635 134,717 1,873,076 197,347
59,310 6,249 7,685,839 809,780
(99,913) (10,527) 173,827 18,314
28,852,954 3,039,947
14,132,707 1,489,022 4,011,361 422,637
(11,771,410) (1,240,236) (19,366,964) (2,040,503)
(133,320, 387) (14,046,636) (104,148, 954) (10,973,134)
(10,822,134) (1,140,220) (2,258,750) (237,982)
(168,718,254) (17,776,155) 59,695,625 6,289,531
(28,864,869) (3,041,203) 8,957,270 943,738
175,692,797 18,510,993 116,569,743 12,281,788
3,895,278 410,406 (5,043,030) (531,334)
2,086,076,745 219,789,046 2,193,324 355 231,088,654
(51,884,452) (5.466,546)
(30,357,371) (3,198,453) (30,106,393) (3,172,010)
(4,017,970) (423,333) (15,013,633) (1,581,836)
(86,259,793) (9,088,332) (45,120,026) (4,753,846)
2,239,000,000 235,901,040 2,211,000,000 232,950,960
(2,223,000,000)  (234,215,280)  (2,203,000,000)  (232,108,080)
(2,001,894,761)  (210,919,632)  (2,158,307,283)  (227,399,255)
1,444,428 152,185
(28,608,691) (3,014,212)
(2,013,059,024) _ (212,095,899) _ (2,150,307,283) _ (226,556,375)
6,577,523 693,008 (19,376,611) (2,041,520)
(6,664,549) (702,177) (21,479,565) (2,263,087)
429,220,995 45,222,724 450,700,560 47,485,811
422,556,446 44,520,547 429,220,995 45,222,724
233,931,730 24,647,047
(274,626,538) (28,934,652)
40,694,808 4,287,605
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2019 2018 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding
250,000
PIMCO 2019 12 31
48,876
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO PI LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO

Pl LLC

FINRA
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2019 2018 12 31
0.00190 0.00181

PIMCO

FINMA
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51.4 30.6
PIMCO
PIMCO
Pl LLC 2019 12 31 2018 12 31 2.0
3.5
( ) ( ) ) ( )
2017 12 31 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
(7,685,840) (7,685,840)
(35,360, 085) (9,864,613) (45,224,698)
2018 12 31 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606
19,601,796 12,515,207 32,117,003
(358,633) (358,633)
(25,869, 200) (7,912,294) (33,781,494)
2019 12 31 55,556,965 88,261,081 1,021,436 144,839,482
2019 2018 12 31 33.8 45.2
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23,492 23,492)
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6,717) 6,717) 12,618
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2018 2019 23,492 2019 29
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AAM LLC
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Note 2019 2018
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 422,556,446 429,220,995
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d),4 30,623,395 32,459,901
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 698,851,736 552,952,116
Private accounts 2(e) 282,546,439 254,081,349
Prepaid expenses 36,373,824 32,694,941
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 25,219,844 25,166,878
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j),8(e) 19,239,181 15,657,169
Receivables from affiliates 7 13,010,339 7,382,210
Other current assets 60,915,714 43,846,429
Total current assets 1,589,336,918 1,393,461,988
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $325,786,180
and $292,930,004 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively 2(f),6 144,839,482 146,862,606
Right-of-use assets 2(i),10 209,441,754 —
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j),8(e) 669,472,591 460,075,450
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 —
Intangible assets 2(g) 24,413,103 —
Investments in associates 2(b) 16,086,963 13,463,668
Other noncurrent assets 9 33,253,757 29,821,480
Total noncurrent assets 1,128,372,826 650,223,204
Total assets $ 2,717,709,744 2,043,685,192
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 409,454,573 433,350,570
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 7 228,000,000 212,000,000
Accrued compensation 8 208,752,447 155,868,165
Commissions payable 5 124,895,219 102,698,345
Lease liabilities 2(i),10 30,057,351 —
Payables to &ffiliates 7 21,460,619 20,488,078
Deferred compensation 2(r).8(e) 19,239,181 15,657,169
Other current liabilities 11,190,145 8,230,351
Total current liabilities 1,053,049,535 948,292,678
Noncurrent ligbilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r),8(e) 669,472,591 460,075,450
Lease liabilities 2(i),10 220,717,637 —
Other accrued compensation 8 164,382,884 130,404,396
Future lease obligations 2(i),10 — 42,013,112
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,022,510 1,550,631
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,057,595,622 634,043,589
Tota liabilities 2,110,645,157 1,582,336,267
Capital:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (683,902,349) (792,957,184)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,288,040,853 1,267,204,122
Class M members (48,876 unitsissued and outstanding as of December 31,
2019 and 45,705 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2018) 28,952,832 23,722,086
Class M unit option holders (153,400 options issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2019 and 143,858 options issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2018) 8(a) 32,591,945 28,576,118
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments 2(0) (58,618,694) (65,196,217)
Total capital 607,064,587 461,348,925
Tota liabilities and capital $  2,717,709,744 2,043,685,192

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC

AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income

Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Revenues: Note 2019 2018
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) 3,801,610,877 3,699,085,263
Private accounts 2(e) 1,011,008,189 897,932,904
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,152,533,169 1,121,459,653
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 380,555,089 400,632,761
Other 2(e) 23,903,886 21,116,690
Total revenues 6,369,611,210 6,140,227,271
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 8 2,125,025,461 1,921,490,575
Commissions 5 857,070,964 814,837,039
Genera and administrative 2(s) 637,010,892 625,372,554
Professional fees 214,712,229 246,110,361
Occupancy and equipment 6,10 159,176,036 152,147,106
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 120,596,262 116,090,003
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 50,264,299 54,856,322
Other 27,702,379 61,327,125
Total expenses 4,191,558,522 3,992,231,085
Operating income 2,178,052,688 2,147,996,186
Other income 57,347,069 24,051,878
Finance costs 2(i),10 (10,703,929) (2,267,772)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,278,635) (1,873,076)
Net income before income taxes 2,223,417,193 2,167,907,216
Income tax expense 9 98,821,295 105,979,276
Net income 2,124,595,898 2,061,927,940
Other comprehensive income/(10ss):
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency trand ation adjustments 2(0) 6,577,523 (19,376,611)
Comprehensive income 2,131,173,421 2,042,551,329

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members Class M members ClassM unit option holders  trandation Totd
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31,
2017 850,000 $ (721,216,276) 150,000 $ 1,290,399,100 45,705 $ 28,660,677 122,972 $ 30,984,305 $ (45,819,606)$ 583,008,200
Impact relating to adoption
of IFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts

with Customers (17,852,184) (3,319,784) (959,921) — — (22,131,889)
Restated balances at the
beginning

of the financial year 850,000 (739,068,460) 150,000  1,287,079,316 45705 27,700,756 122,972 30,984,305  (45,819,606) 560,876,311
Net income 1,523,328,377 450,997,001 87,602,562 — — 2,061,927,940
Distributions (1,595,853,856) (470,872,195) (91,581,232) — —  (2,158,307,283)
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense — — — 16,228,568 — 16,228,568

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 18,636,755 — — (18,636,755) — —
Other comprehensive loss — — — —  (19,376,611) (19,376,611)
Balances at December 31,
2018 850,000 (792,957,184) 150,000 1,267,204,122 45,705 23,722,086 143,858 28,576,118  (65,196,217) 461,348,925
Net income 1,556,133,972 472,136,883 96,325,043 — — 2,124,595,898
Distributions (1,459,197,453) (451,300,152) (91,397,156) — —  (2,001,894,761)
Contribution 1,444,428 — — — — 1,444,428
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense — — — 14,992,574 — 14,992,574

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 10,673,888 — 302,859 (10,976,747) — —
Other comprehensive
income — — — — 6,577,523 6,577,523
Balances at December 31,
2019 850,000 $ (683,902,349) 150,000 $ 1,288,040,853 48,876 $ 28,952,832 153400 $ 32,591,945 ¢ (58,618,694)¢ 607,064,587

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financia statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,124,595,898 2,061,927,940
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 14,579,559 15,754,902
Depreciation and amortization 65,882,645 45,224,698
Finance costs 10,703,929 2,267,772
Equity inloss of associates 1,278,635 1,873,076
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 59,310 7,685,839
Unrealized and realized (gain)/loss on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss (99,913) 173,827
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 28,852,954 —
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 14,132,707 4,011,361
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (11,771,410) (19,366,964)
Income taxes paid (133,320,387) (104,148,954)
Interest paid (10,822,134) (2,258,750)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Feesreceivable (168,718,254) 59,695,625
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (28,864,869) 8,957,270
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 175,692,797 116,569,743
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates 3,895,278 (5,043,030)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,086,076,745 2,193,324,355
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (51,884,452) —
Purchases of property and equipment (30,357,371) (30,106,393)
Purchases of investments in associates (4,017,970) (15,013,633)
Net cash used in investing activities (86,259,793) (45,120,026)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 2,239,000,000 2,211,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (2,223,000,000) (2,203,000,000)
Cash distributions paid (2,001,894,761) (2,158,307,283)
Cash contribution received 1,444,428 —
Principal elements of lease payments (28,608,691) —
Net cash used in financing activities (2,013,059,024) (2,150,307,283)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 6,577,523 (19,376,611)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivaents (6,664,549) (21,479,565)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 429,220,995 450,700,560
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 422,556,446 429,220,995
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Initial recognition of right-of-use assets $ 233,931,730 —
Initial recognition of lease liabilities (274,626,538) —
Derecognition of future lease obligation 40,694,808 —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of America LLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2019, 48,876
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell as international subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dealer that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutual Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by
PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). PI LLC is aregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is amember of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00190% interest and 0.00181% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUSL P. as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branchin Italy.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.
PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO Asia Limited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) Limited (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll servicesto
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Global Services LLC isaholding company, with branchesin the United Kingdom and Hong Kong.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited isin the process of registering as an investment advisor
in China

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.

After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 24,
2020.

(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to
determine whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under
the equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in PIMCO’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or
loss primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses
from changesin fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating itsinvolvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the
Company from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities,
including the power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the
structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only, and key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities
and a narrow and well defined objective.

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financial instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financia institutions,
nonaffiliated money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by
Allianz SE. There was $179.1 million and $180.9 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. As of December 31, 2019, cash equivalents deposited in the cash
pool with Allianz SE totaled $27 thousand, and $620 thousand was deposited in the cash pool at December 31,
2018. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the
consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivaents in various federally insured banking
ingtitutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar foreign federal programs), and as a result, there is a
concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.
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(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading
business model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a
short-to-moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(e Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects
to be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned
in exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative
services for the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing
costs. The performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are
substantially the same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under
management and recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided
in other periods. As the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of
assets under management, the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the
dependence on unpredictable asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is
generally once these values can be determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company
may also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles.
Such fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually
at the end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and
the fees are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behalf of PIMCO Mutua Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the
performance obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue
amounts are based on percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutua Funds, the
consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset
values. The constraint is removed once these values can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Revenues related to investment advisory and administration is included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.
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Revenues related to distribution and servicing fees are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in
the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. The impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers was inconsequential. There are no
contract liabilities related to these contracts.

(f) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three
to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the
related leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year theitem is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets relate to amounts acquired in a business combination and consist of customer relationships,
developed technology, and trade name. The fair values of the acquired assets were determined using the multi-
period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost method for the devel oped
technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible assets are amortized over
their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to 3 years, using the straight-line method. Certain
contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as indefinite-lived intangible
assets.

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely
than not that a goodwill impairment exists.

(i) Leases

As explained in note 3, the Company has changed its accounting policy where the company is the lessee. Our
leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. For the year ending December
31, 2018, these leases were classified as operating leases. Payments under operating |eases were recognized on
a straight-line basis over the lease term and included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. From January 1, 2019, these leases were
recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability.

The Company has measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or
market rate of variable lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market
rate result in a remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of
lease liabilities that is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current
liability in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.
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Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term |leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases
are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes

PIMCO is not subject to United States (U.S.) federal incometax asit is organized as alimited liability company
and is taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their
proportionate share of PIMCO's taxable income. PIMCO is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the
u.s.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

() Distributions
Although there is no contractua requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after

the end of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably
necessary or appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.
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(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital,
over the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As
the Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the
Company’s management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public
entities, discounted cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the
Company’s historical and forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promotional

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(o) Foreign Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been trandated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date
on which the transactions are recognized. The effects of trandating the results of operations of subsidiaries with
a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income/loss. The
cumulative trandation adjustment of trandating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency
other than the U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial
condition as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financia statementsin conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts
of revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current
economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management
adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects
cannot be determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in
those estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the
financial statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where
judgment is necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the
Company’s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to
the Company’s future earnings; and

(Continued)

317/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(e)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.

(@) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as aresult of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The
amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future
events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision
where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or all of the expenditure is
expected to be reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded
in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(r) Défeared Compensation
The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with I1AS 19 and adjusts the
carrying value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred
compensation trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative
General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under
the administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The
Company is considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

() Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
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(3 Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
Leases

The Company adopted IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach;
therefore, any comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under 1AS 17 Leases
(IAS 17) and IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease (IFRIC 4). Under IFRS 16, the
Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a
corresponding financial liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company used the following practical expedients for al leases:

The need not to reassess whether expired or existing contracts are or contain leases; or reassess any initial
direct costs for existing leases.

Use hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the right-of-use assets.

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied at the date of initial application was 2.59%. A liability of $274.6 million was initialy
recognized for operating leases. The right-of-use asset was measured at an amount equal to the lease liability and
adjusted by the remaining balance of the future lease obligation. The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a
significant impact to the results of operations.

The operating lease commitments reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 can be reconciled to the lease liabilities
reported under IFRS 16 as follows:

Operating lease commitment as of December 31, 2018 $ 206,586,026
Recognition exemption for leases expiring
before December 31, 2019 (96,826)
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 106,291,903
Other 90,806
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
January 1, 2019 (38,245,371)
L ease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 274,626,538
Revenue

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized on the date of initial application. Upon
adoption, the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings was $22.1 million. This adjustment relates to sales
commissions paid to third party intermediaries in connection with the sale of shares of affiliated mutual funds sold
without a front-end sales charge which were previously capitalized. These commission costs do not meet the
criteria of incremental costs of obtaining a contract and are, therefore, expensed as incurred under IFRS 15. Any
sales commissions that are recaptured through contingent deferred sales charges are recorded as other revenue.
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The most significant impact of the adoption to the Company relates to the presentation of certain distribution costs
gross within commission expense that were previously netted within investment advisory fees — pooled funds
revenue.

There was no other impact to revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018, as revenue recognition and timing
of revenue did not change as aresult of implementing IFRS 15.

Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 9 Financial instruments, which fully replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments. Recognition and Measurement and provides a new approach on how to classify financia instruments
based on their cash flow characteristics and the business model under which they are managed. Furthermore, the
standard introduces a new forward-looking impairment model for debt instruments and provides new rules for
hedge accounting.

Financial assets such as the following categories included in IAS 39 are no longer available: held to maturity,
loans and receivables and available for sale. Rather, under IFRS 9, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
amortized cogt, fair value through other comprehensive income (*FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") oninitial recognition based on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics.

This standard did not have a significant impact to the Company’s financial statements. There was no impact to
opening retained earnings aresult of applying this standard.

(4) Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 —Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 — Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 —Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (honobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $30.6 million and
$32.5 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2019 and 2018.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust primarily consist of mutual funds
and equity securities, which are classified as Level 1 instruments for 2019 and 2018.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2019 or
2018.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(5) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed as incurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at a rate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. The contingent deferred sales charges
are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an applicable exemption applies such as if the
redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested dividends or capital gain distributions or
appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. Pl LLC incurred $51.4 million and $30.6 million
in commissions to third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively, which is included in commissions in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges on Class C shares is generally 1% if redeemed during the first year
following purchase for applicable PIMCO Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may also be received on the
redemption of certain PIMCO Funds Class A shares at arate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares,
if theinitial purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. Pl LLC received $2.0 million and $3.5
million in contingent deferred sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively, which is included in other revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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(6) Property and Equipment

The mgjor classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture,
fixtures, and Leasehold
software improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2017 $ 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
Additions 28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
Disposals (7,685,840) — — (7,685,840)
Depreciation and amortization (35,360,085) (9,864,613) — (45,224,698)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606
Additions 19,601,796 12,515,207 — 32,117,003
Disposals (358,633) — — (358,633)
Depreciation and amortization (25,869,200) (7,912,294) — (33,781,494)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 55,556,965 88,261,081 1,021,436 144,839,482

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $33.8 million and $45.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(7) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP for certain overhead, administrative services, and occupancy
costs, including short-term lease costs, that are alocated based on time and usage factors. These expenses
generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for finance, information technology, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $36.1 million and $50.4 million
during 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP in connection with these services and payables to other affiliates in connection
with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on behalf of PIMCO over the
ordinary course of business, totaling $11.1 million as of December 31, 2019 and $10.7 million as of December 31,
2018.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2019
and 2018, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, PIMCO had outstanding short-term loans totaling
$228.0 million and $212.0 million, respectively, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2019 and 2018, PIMCO incurred $3.7
million and $2.3 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees — pooled funds, administrative fees — pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had $724.1
million (2018: $578.1 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $45.8 million and $41.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively, which are primarily included in investment advisory fees — private accounts in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $8.6 million and $6.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses
and marketing and promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PIMCO Deutschland GmbH and its branches (collectively PDG), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH, who in turn, is awholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PDG,
together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are subject to PIMCO’s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer
Pricing Policy) for shared management services that are provided by all PIMCO entities. Shared management
services provided include portfolio management, account management and business management and
administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared management services are allocated in accordance
with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2019, the revenue earned from third parties for shared management services
alocated to PDG was $40.3 million (2018: $36.9 million) greater than the revenue allocated from PDG and is
presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees — private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PDG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2019, costs allocated to PDG
were $33.3 million (2018: $30.8 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2019, the Company had a $9.8 million (2018: $6.5 million) receivable from and a $10.3
million (2018: $9.8 million) payable to PDG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and payables
to affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE, which expires in November 2020. The
facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of LIBOR plus 20bps (rate of 1.743% as of
December 31, 2019). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf of
its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2019 and 2018.
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Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 8. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the
related vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless
transaction unless the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan.
As disclosed in note 8(e), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred
Compensation Plan (the EDCP). If, at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less
than the exercise price of the option award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units
of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt
of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units are authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. As of December 31, 2019
and 2018, 153,400 and 143,858 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding, and 48,876 M units have been
issued from the exercise of options.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing
model. The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party
vauation was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend
yield was estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed to
M unit holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group
of peers using the Merton Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting
tranches (one third in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

(Continued)
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The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 14,519 15,528
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 17.9% 21.0%
Expected dividends 13.2% 11.8%
Risk free rate of return 2.4% 2.5%

A summary of the activity in 2019 and 2018 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the
M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options exercise
Vested Nonvested Total price

Outstanding at

December 31, 2017 — 122,972 122972 $ 14,486
Changes during the year:

Granted — 49,595 49,595 15,528

Vested 19,084 (19,084) — —

Exercised (19,084) — (19,084) 23,594

Forfeited — (9,625) (9,625) 14,954
Outstanding at

December 31, 2018 — 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Changes during the year:

Granted — 39,751 39,751 14,519

Vested 23,492 (23,492 — —

Exercised (23,492) — (23,492) 16,178

Forfeited — (6,717) (6,717) 12,618
Outstanding at

December 31, 2019 — 153,400 153,400 s 13,492
Exercisable as of

December 31, 2019 — — — _

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2019 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $16,587
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 2.87 years.

(Continued)
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The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $14,622 for 2019 and
$15,487 for 2018. M unit options totaling 23,492 vested during 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards
exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 3,171 M units. No other M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2019,
48,445 M units are owned by current employees and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM
LLC.

M unit options totaling 19,084 options vested during 2018. The M unit estimated fair values as of the vesting
dates for those options were less than the exercise price of each of those option awards. Therefore, as a result of
the automatic cashless exercise feature, no M units were issued in 2018 and the entire Black-Scholes amount
was reallocated from the Class M unit option capital account to the Class A member capital account in the
accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $14.6 million and $15.8 million, respectively, and is
included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2019, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested
M unit option awards, net of estimated forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through
December 31, 2024 is $20.1 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation under these programs was $1.3 billion and $1.2
billion for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(¢) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has aLong-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
compensation expense under the LTIP of $50.5 million and $52.6 million for the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively. LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability
was $111.1 million and $106.4 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included within
current accrued compensation and noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

(Continued)
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(d) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP is the sponsor of a defined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering PIMCO
employees. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and allows eligible
employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is subject to a maximum
dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are generally eligible
following the later of attainment of age 21 or on the first day of the month following the start date. After the
completion of one year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to
the Internal Revenue Code limits, contributed by the employees. The amount expensed by the Company related
to this plan during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $15.4 million and $13.3 million,
respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

(e) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company and subsidiaries may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2),
301(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts
deferred under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as
directed by the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to
fund ongoing activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditorsin the event of
insolvency. Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability as
of December 31, 2019 and as December 31, 2018 was $688.7 million and $475.7 million, respectively, and are
included in interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

() Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz
SE determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines
the discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and amounted to $167 thousand in 2019 and $1.1 million in 2018 and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)
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(9) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2019 2018
Current:

Federal $ 11,770 6,278
State 2,022,507 856,534
Foreign 100,158,160 108,644,006
Total current 102,192,437 109,506,818

Deferred:
Foreign (3,371,142) (3,527,542)
Total deferred (3,371,142) (3,527,542)
Total provision $ 98,821,295 105,979,276

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, income taxes payable amounted to $36.7 million and $39.7 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, deferred tax assets amounted
to $21.4 million and $17.7 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2019, and 2018,
amounted to $61 thousand and $21 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial condition.

(10) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs during the year ended December 31, 2019 that are included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset $ 29,146,041
Interest expense on lease liabilities 6,961,811
Variable lease cost 136,753
Short-term lease cost 671,976
Expenses of |eases of low value assets 2,192,653

For the year ended December 31, 2019, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $38.6 million.

(Continued)
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The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities:

Year ending December 31:

2020 $ 37,196,686
2021 36,018,999
2022 34,857,028
2023 33,003,033
2024 19,746,963
Thereafter 124,158,997
Total operating lease payments 284,981,706
Lessimputed interest 34,206,718
Present value of lease liabilities $ 250,774,988

(11) Financia Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financia instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market Risk

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
bank deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk.
However, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually
material to the Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customers is assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does
not require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for
each customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of
collection on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual
customer has been identified as at risk for collection.

(Continued)
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Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will aways have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both norma and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financial
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2019.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial
obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company has access to AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as
discussed in note 7.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk isthe risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions also occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Yen.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, all of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds
the Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material

investments in such funds are managed on an individual basis and al buy and sell decisions are made in
accordance with client guidelines or the funds governing documents.
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In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2019, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material
differences to members capital as of December 31, 2019 or the reported comprehensive income for the year
then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of PI LLC (see note 13) and certain foreign
subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(12) Provisions

PIMCO is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which arise in
the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently pending
and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financial position or results
of operations. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for provisions in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees asincurred.

(13) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. On December 31, 2019, Pl LLC made the election to
operate under the alternative standard set forth in Rule 15¢3-1. As of December 31, 2019, Pl LLC had net capital
of $57.5 million for regulatory purposes, which was $57.2 million in excess of its required net capital of $250
thousand.

For the year ending December 31, 2018, Pl LLC was required to maintain minimum net capital that required that
the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15-to-1. At December 31,
2018, PI LLC had net capital of $49.7 million for regulatory purposes, which was $45.9 million in excess of its
required net capital of $3.8 million. Pl LLC's aggregate indebtedness to net capital ratio was 1.14-to-1 as of
December 31, 2018.

(Continued)

331/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(14) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $535.5
thousand and $178.2 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees — pooled funds in the
accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interestsin those vehicles:

December 31
2019 2018
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 493,340,219 $ 289,027,697
Investment advisory fees
receivable — pooled funds 170,996 131,786

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory feesreceivable.

(15 Acquisition

On January 2, 2019, PIMCO fully acquired the equity interest in Gurtin Municipa Bond Management, a
municipal bond manager. The acquisition alows the combined business to offer clients a more extensive and
enhanced suite of strategies and services, backed by broader muni credit research and quantitative analysis, and
enhanced technology. The Company paid cash consideration of $51.9 million, net of cash received. In alocating
the purchase price, the Company recorded goodwill of $30.9 million, which represents the amount of
consideration paid over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired including intangible assets with a fair
value of $27.4 million as well as future contingent consideration. Intangible assets acquired consist of customer
relationships, developed technology, and trade name.
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(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 24, 2020, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 27,775 vested on January 15, 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards were
exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 9,732 M units.

On March 13, 2020, PIMCO granted 29,802 M unit options that have an exercise price of $17,806 per unit.

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (“COVID-19") was confirmed which has since spread across a
significant number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and global markets. The Company
considers the emergence and spread of COVID-19 to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event. Since the
balance sheet date, the Company has seen AuM outflows and negative returns, but it has not resulted in a material
adverse impact to the Company through April 24, 2020. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practicable at
this time to determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company or to provide a quantitative estimate of
any future impact.
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2020

30

986,012,126 103,886,238
21,253,078 2,239,224
535,339,566 56,403,377
294,683,703 31,047,875
47,193,259 4,972,282
22,516,326 2,372,320
19,524,499 2,057,101
17,624,264 1,856,892
57,060,877 6,011,934
2,001,207,698 210,847,243
129,963,779 13,692,984
196,429,588 20,695,821
627,465,500 66,109,765
30,865,176 3,251,955
28,829,715 3,037,499
15,134,281 1,594,548
46,813,772 4,932,299
1,075,501,811 113,314,871
3,076,709,509 324,162,114

335/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

367,274,561 38,696,048
508,495,201 53,575,054
109,796,650 11,568,175
31,558,658 3,325,020
20,330,975 2,142,072
19,524,499 2,057,101
10,971,849 1,155,994
1,067,952,393 112,519,464
627,465,500 66,109,765
207,122,378 21,822,414
118,556,440 12,491,107
4,131,438 435,288
957,275,756 100,858,574
2,025,228,149 213,378,038

850,000 (216,025,072) (22,760,402)
150,000 1,275,468,926 134,383,406
58,608 34,906,516 3,677,751
153,629 29,612,176 3,119,939
(72,481,186) (7.636,618)

1,051,481,360 110,784,076

3,076,709,509 324,162,114
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2020 30

1,834,662,925 193,300,086
520,077,828 54,795,400
562,972,705 59,314,804
179,780,107 18,941,632

24,815,681 2,614,580

3,122,309,246 328,966,502
956,315,329 100,757,383
388,669,270 40,950,194
299,485,496 31,553,792
112,039,220 11,804,452

81,856,277 8,624,377
54,365,575 5,727,957
22,662,089 2,387,678
20,748,079 2,186,018
1,936,141,335 203,991,851
1,186,167,911 124,974,651

(45,314, 186)

(4,774,303)

(13,862,492)

(3,603,229) (379, 636)
(968,046) (101,993)
1,136,282,450 119,718,719
47,304,597 4,984,012
1,088,977,853 114,734,707

(1,460,552)

1,075,115,361

113,274,154
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2020 30
2019 12 31 (72,055,951) 135,707,984 3,050,470
850,000  (683,902,349) 150,000  1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832
788,445,427 83,070,610 241,963,009 25,493,223 58,569,417 6,170,874
(332,290,733)  (35,010,152) (254,534,936)  (26,817,801) (56,453,628) (5,947,954)
4,984,931 525,212
PINMCO
6,737,652 709,879 3,837,895 404,361
2020 30 (22,760,402)
850,000  (216,025,072) 150,000 1,275,468,926 134,383,406 58,608 34,906,516 3,677,751
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2020 30
2019 12 31
153,400 32,591,945 3,433,887 (58,618,694)  (6,176,066) 607,064,587 63,960,325
1,088,977,853 114,734,707
(643,279,297) (67,775,907)
4,984,931 525,212
PINMCO
7,595,778 800,291 7,595,778 800,291
(10,575,547)  (1,114,240)
(13,862,492)  (1,460,552) (13,862,492) (1,460,552)
2020 30 (72,481,186)  (7,636,618)  1,051,481,360 110,784,076
153,629 29,612,176 3,119,939
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2020 30

1,088,977,853 114,734,707
7,448,098 784,732
36,134,904 3,807,173
3,603,229 379,636
968,046 101,993
12,114 1,276
38,377 4,043
15,010,423 1,581,498
(5.786,719) (609, 689)
(80,637,974) (8,496,017)
(3.455,900) (364,114)
154,078,424 16,233,703
(24,879,984) (2,621,355)
277,275,703 29,213,768
(386,342) (40,705)
1,468,400,252 154,710,651
(3,592,110) (378, 465)
(2,921,920) (307,853)
(18,000) (1,896)
(6.,532,030) (688,215)
416,000,000 43,829,760

(644,000,000)
(643,279,297)

4,984,931
(18,255, 684)

(67,851,840)

(67,775,907)
525,212

(1,923,419)

(884,550,050)

(93,196,193)
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(13,862,492) (1,460,552)
563,455,680 59,365,690
422,556,446 44,520,547
986,012,126 103,886,238
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds listed in the table below (collectively referred to
as the “Funds”), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May 31,
2019, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-
Term Strategy the statements of cash flows, and the financia highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These
financia statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as “financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (3)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2019

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2019

(3) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the year ended May 31, 2019, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of each of
the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2019, and the results of each of their operations, the changes in each of
their net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the results of each of their cash flows, and
each of their financia highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 6, 2019

381/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31

JITF

2020 31

2020 31

2020 31

382/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 31

2020

383/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds indicated in the table below (collectively referred
to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May
31, 2020, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Rea Return Fund and PIMCO
Short-Term Strategy the statements of cash flows, and the financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below.
These financia statements and financia highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as “financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (3)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2020

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2020

(3) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows for the year ended May 31, 2020, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant
to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of each of
the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2020, and the results of each of their operations, the changes in each of
their net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy the results of each of their cash flows, and
each of their financia highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 5, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and
its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31,
2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in capital, and cash
flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statementsin
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Pecific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financia Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for

leases in 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

April 24, 2020
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